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Founded in 2001 and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in 2010, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (“Sihuan
Pharmaceutical” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
(Stock Code: 00460.HK) is an international medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical
company led and driven by innovation, with a leading independent production,
and research and development (“"R&D") technology platform, a rich global product
pipeline and a mature and excellent sales system. Focusing on high-growth
therapeutic areas such as medical aesthetics, oncology, metabolism, diabetes,
cardiovascular and cerebrovascular, modern Chinese medicine and industrial hemp, it
adheres to its overall strategic objective of “Adhering to the full-speed promotion of a
two-wheeled strategy of Sihuan medical aesthetics and biopharmaceuticals” to build
a leading medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical enterprise in China.
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Exg((Eg=sg)) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD")
BITES Executive Directors

BHEABE(ERE) Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

S AE (B FFERITHER) Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO"))
o AW BE B8 Dr. Zhang Jionglong

ERAEE(BEEYBE) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chief Financial Officer (“CFO"))
BR# IS &+ Ms. Chen Yanling

FHITES Non-executive Director
CHEAERZZE=Z—FNASBET) Mr. Kim Jin Ha (resigned on 6 August 2021)
BIUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FEELEA Mr. Patrick Sun

BERELE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

KiE L Dr. Zhu Xun

BEARME JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
FREEE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong

ERELL Ms. Mok Ming Wai

REAR AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
ERBEE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong

RPEErL Ms. Mok Ming Wai

EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

FEEEE(ER) Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman)

BERELE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

KAE L Dr. Zhu Xun

THEELAE(R-_ZE-_—F \ANXHEMT) Mr. Kim Jin Ha (resigned on 6 August 2021)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman)
Dr. Che Fengsheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Dr. Zhu Xun

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng

Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
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MILESTONES

2021

The Group has officially launched and sold its exclusive Korean botulinum
toxin product Letybo® 100U. Letybo® is the No. 1 botulinum toxin brand in the
Korean market and is well-known in the global market. The introduction of
Letybo® into the Company's medical aesthetic platform not only enriches and
expands the product portfolio of the platform, but also reflects the Company’s
product layout strategy towards diversification and internationalization. The
Company expects to expand the market awareness of its products and brands
through the implementation of marketing projects and reasonable pricing.

PLLA gel (product name: Karlian) (2ml/unit), which is independently R&D
and manufactured by the Group, has formally obtained the medical
device manufacturing license approval from the National Medical Products
Administration (“NMPA"). The approval and launch of the first independently
R&D medical aesthetic product by the Group will further supplement the
Group's product pipelines in the field of medical aesthetic, and further forging
the Group’s medical aesthetic product matrix. This would help the Group
accelerate the expansion of the independently R&D pipelines of medical
aesthetic products, improve the comprehensive strengths of the Group and
significantly enhance the core competitiveness of the Group in the field of
medical aesthetic.

Acquisition of all equity interests in Genesis Biosystems, Inc. (“Genesis”). It
further consolidates the Group's comprehensive layout in the non-surgical
and surgical medical aesthetics field, and further accelerates the development
of the Group's medical aesthetics business from a product distributor to an
integrated platform-based company. Genesis's fat harvesting system LipiVage®
is an innovative product which has mild effects on fat cells, and delivers refined
fat tissue to surgeons in minutes and has been available in the United States.
It is expected to help the Company to further expand its medical aesthetics
product pipeline, improve the Company's comprehensive strength in the
field of surgical medical aesthetics, and greatly enhance the Company's core
competitiveness.

The Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement with Dongbang
Medical Co.,
distribute its two types of products, namely absorbable suture and incontinence

Ltd. of South Korea (“Dongbang Medical”) to exclusively

sling kit, in the People’s Republic of China (“China”). These two types of
products have been approved in China and are ready for sale. The introduction
not only enriches and expands the product portfolio of the platform, but
also reflects the Group’s product layout strategy towards diversification and
internationalization.
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Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu Biopharm”), a holding
subsidiary of the Group, completed a Series B financing of over RMB600
million, led by Sunshine Life and followed by Efung Capital, China Zhongji
Investment, TJ Capital, SDIC Taikang, Hai Chuang Fund of Funds, BOC
Capital, Jinjiang Xuanhong, Shaanxi Financial Holding, Hainan Wanxin Private
Equity Fund Management, DNV Capital, HY Capital and other renowned
investment institutions. This financing round was a new financing round
following RMB963 million of Series A strategic investment led by CMG-SDIC
in August 2020. The introduction of two rounds of heavyweight investors
fully demonstrates that Xuanzhu Biopharm’s continuous innovation capability
and the Group’'s forward-looking layout have been recognized by the
capital market, and accelerates Xuanzhu Biopharm to become an innovative
pharmaceutical company rooted in China's global vision.

The New Drug Application (“NDA") for Anaprazole Sodium Enteric Dissolve
Tablets has been accepted by the NMPA. It is the first NDA submitted by
Xuanzhu Biopharm, and its acceptance by the NMPA marks a new milestone

for Xuanzhu Biopharm to move from R&D to commercialization.

Two indications of Birociclib, a Class 1 innovative drug for the treatment of
breast cancer, were approved by the NMPA for starting phase Il clinical trials.
Due to the novel targeting mechanism of CDK4/6 inhibitor, Birociclib is able
to demonstrate clinical benefits and market influence through multiple novel
Birociclib-based combination therapies. It will further enrich the Company's
innovative drug R&D pipeline, facilitate the future market sales and market
competition of the drug, and have a positive impact on the Company's
operating performance.

Xuanzhu Biopharm’s first product in the field of non-small cell lung cancer
(NSCLC), XZP-3621, an innovative drug under development, has obtained
approval for clinical trials from the NMPA, which will further enrich the
Company's innovative drug R&D pipeline, facilitate the drug’'s future market
sales and market competition, and have a positive impact on the Company's

operating performance.

Xuanzhu Biopharm and HB Therapeutics, Inc. (the United States) (“HB")
agreed to cooperate to introduce the drug discovery and screening technology
platform from HB, work together to develop three novel molecular glue protein
degraders and obtain the future development and commercialization rights
of the product in the Greater China region, thereby further strengthening the
scientific and technological level of Xuanzhu Biopharm in the field of new drug
R&D and enhancing its competitiveness in the industry.

1% & & A& IR A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Xuanzhu Biopharm, and WuXi XDC, a subsidiary of WuXi Biologics
(Cayman) Inc., jointly announced that Beijing Xuanzhu Kangming Biological
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu Kangming“), a large molecule
biological drug platform, and WuXi XDC, have reached a collaboration
on the development and manufacturing of an innovative oncology drug
KM501, a bispecific antibody drug conjugate (“ADC"). It is expected that the
establishment of this strategic collaboration with WuXi XDC will accelerate and
empower the development of KM501 bispecific ADC, an innovative bispecific
antibody drug conjugate. As one of the important projects of Xuanzhu
Biopharm's innovative product line of a large molecule biological drug, relying
on dedicating to end-to-end bioconjugates services of WuXi XDC and rich
project service experience, it is expected to provide strong support for KM501
bispecific ADC to successfully submit an IND application in the future, help the
innovative drug to accelerate its entry into clinical trials and verify the potential
of clinical treatment as soon as possible, and solve unmet clinical needs.

Xuanzhu Biopharm and SignalChem Lifesciences Corporation (“SignalChem”)
have entered into a cooperation and licensing agreement for the
development and commercialization interests of SLC-391, a highly potent
and highly selective AXL targeting inhibitor, in the Greater China region.
The Group obtained the exclusive research, development, manufacture and
commercialization rights for each indication of SLC-391 in the field of oncology
in the Greater China region (mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan).
The cooperation with SignalChem will further expand and advance the Group's
pipeline layout in solid tumour and hematoma space. Both parties will use their
respective resources to accelerate the approval of SLC-391 in China. The Group
is committed to develop and commercialize innovative drugs in oncology field.

Xuanzhu Biopharm’s independently R&D drug XZP-6019 was approved by
the NMPA to conduct clinical trials for indication of Non-alcoholic Fatty Liver
Disease (“NAFLD"). XZP-6019 is the 16th Class | innovative drugs of Xuanzhu
Biopharm successfully approved for clinical trials and the first among drugs
with the same target to conduct clinical trials in China.

Fadanafil, a new independently R&D PDE-5 inhibitor by Xuanzhu Biopharm, has
obtained Investigational New Drug (“IND") approval in relation to indications
for Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension (“PAH") for the treatment of adult arterial
pulmonary hypertension, so as to improve exercise ability and delay clinical
deterioration. As a new self-developed PDE-5 inhibitor by Xuanzhu Biopharm,
fadanafil features a clear therapeutic mechanism for arterial pulmonary
hypertension, and has shown excellent efficacy in pre-clinical pharmacodynamic
research in the early stage.

F[Z 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 7
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XZP-5955, an independently R&D Class 1 new drug of Xuanzhu Biopharm has
received the notice for drug clinical trial approvals. XZP-5955 entering into
clinical development will further enrich Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s innovative drug
R&D pipeline. Its therapeutic areas cover a wide range of solid tumors such
as lung cancer, gastric cancer and sarcoma, with potential clinical value in
both adults and children. XZP-5955 is expected to be the core product of dual
targeted tyrosine kinase inhibitor for the second generation of NTRK and ROS1
with independent intellectual property rights in China.

On 26 January 2021, the Group accelerated its integration in innovation layout,
and its subsidiary Xuanzhu Biopharm completed the acquisition of Beijing
Combio Pharmaceutical Inc. (“Combio Pharmaceutical”), an innovation-
driven biological company. Combio Pharmaceutical has 12 projects under
research, mainly focusing on the research and development of innovative
bispecific antibodies, bispecific ADC and other multifunctional antibody drugs.
The overall value of Xuanzhu Biopharm's acquisition of Combio Pharmaceutical
should be more than RMB5 billion. With the support of the new international
first bispecific antibody technology platform, Xuanzhu Biopharm's innovation
drive has been further improved.

The diabetes drugs developed by Jilin Huisheng Biopharm Co., Ltd. (“Huisheng
Biopharm”), insulin degludec and insulin aspart injection, has successfully
obtained the approval for the conduction of clinical trials from the NMPA,
with its research and development progress being the first with respect to
biosimilar in China. Apart from Novo Nordisk's already marketed original
product Ryzodeg, no other product from other companies has been approved
for clinical trials in China. It will help the Group to accelerate the opening up of
its diabetes product pipeline, enhance the Group’s comprehensive strength and
significantly strengthen the Group’s core competitiveness.

Huisheng Biopharm entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with
Porton Pharma Solutions Ltd. (“Porton Pharma”). Huisheng Biopharm and
Porton Pharma will strategically cooperate in the therapeutic areas of diabetes
and related complications in relation to the development and supply of APIs
and the co-development and launch of related preparations. This strategic
cooperation will enhance the competitiveness in the pharmaceutical market
of both Huisheng Biopharm and Porton Pharma, and to achieve advantage
complement, mutual benefit and joint development.

The Group's liraglutide project has completed its phase | clinical trials for
the treatment of type 2 diabetes and obesity, and obtained preliminary
bioequivalence results on pharmacokinetics and  pharmacodynamics.
Liraglutide, a glucagon-like peptide-1 (GLP-1) activator, is approved by the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration for the treatment of adults and patients over 10
years old with type 2 diabetes, as well as for reducing the risk of heart attack,
stroke, and cardiovascular death in patients with type 2 diabetes. In addition,
liraglutide has shown potential for losing weight and improving obesity-related
complications in clinical trials.

8 | mumBEEZR e E AR 2 A SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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2020

Commencement of Phase Il Clinical Trial in the PRC for Self-Developed
Innovative Patented Drug “Anaprazole Sodium” and Inclusion of “Huineng®”
into the National Reimbursement Drug List. The progress made by the above
products is believed to further extend and diversify the Group’s product

pipelines in the therapeutic areas of digestive system and liver related diseases.

Acquisition of all interests and intellectual property rights of plazomicin, a new
generation of aminoglycoside antibiotics in the Greater China Region. The
Group expects that plazomicin will generate significant economic benefits after
its launch in the Greater China Region.

Capital injection by new investors into Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co.,
Ltd. (an associate of Sihuan Pharmaceutical) to accelerate capacity expansion. In
the future, the national sales of Beijing Ruiye’s products will be fully entrusted
to the Group. At the same time, the investor will give full play to its advantages
in market access and facilitate quick market launch of the products. The Group
believes that Beijing Ruiye will gradually become a leading enterprise in the
therapeutic solid-liquid double chamber infusion industry in China to meet the
medication needs of the patients in general and create considerable returns for
the Group.

Official release of the result of large scale clinical trials after the launch of
cinepazide maleate injection which takes stroke treatment into a new era with
its verified efficacy.

Discloseable transaction — subscription by investment funds under CMG-SDIC
Capital Co., Ltd. in Xuanzhu (Shijiazhuang) Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.. After
the subscription, the two parties will be able to fully cooperate with each other
in the R&D and introduction of innovative drugs in the future. The Group
intends to apply the proceeds from the subscription to further develop the
Group’s mid to late stage clinical trial product line and to introduce more late
stage product projects, as such, the Group will be able to provide newer and
better treatment solutions to patients across the PRC.

Investment in Ascendum Capital Life Technology Fund Phase I. The Group
looks forward to expanding its resources in the development of innovative
drugs and accelerate the introduction of overseas innovative drugs, strengthen
its resources and the development of its international product pipeline and

accelerate its product innovation and internationalization.
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Approval to launch the group’s exclusive Korean botulinum toxin product
“Letybo®” in the PRC market. The introduction of Letybo® into the Group's
medical aesthetics platform will not only enrich and expand the platform’s
product portfolio, but also reflect the Group’s product layout strategy towards
diversification and internationalization. The Group expects to expand the
market awareness of its products and brands through the implementation
of marketing projects and reasonable pricing. The Group will deepen
communication with medical institutions and doctor groups to further improve
service standards and expand market share. The Group will also develop its
ability to compete against its peers so as to outrun its competitors and to
become the leading and first-class medical aesthetics platform.

2019

The first self-developed anti-diabetic innovative patented new drug janagliflozin
commenced Phase Il clinical trials in China.

The first company in China that has been granted drug registration approval
for “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for ceftazidime/sodium
chloride injection”, “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for cefodizime
sodium/5% glucose injection”, “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag
for cefodizime sodium/sodium chloride injection”, and “Non-PVC solid-liquid
double chamber bag for cefuroxime sodium/sodium chloride injection”.

Acquired Phase | to Il clinical trial approval for the third generation of EGFR
inhibitor XZP-5809.

Post-launch large-scale clinical trials of cinepazide maleate injection were
completed with efficacy verified.

10 | /o3 %8120 % B 45 R 2 7) SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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2018

Three self-developed innovative drugs commenced Phase | clinical trials
in China, including selective CDK4/6 inhibitor birociclib, third-generation
irreversible tyrosine kinase inhibitor XZP-3621, and PDE-5 inhibitor fadanafil.

2017

Acquired 100% equity interest in Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Company
Limited (“Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)”) which currently holds the drug
production approvals for monoammonium glycyrrhizinate and cysteine and
sodium chloride injection and floium ginkgo extract with the brand name
“Huineng” and tertram ethypyrazine sodium chloride injection with the brand

name “Mainokang”.

Established joint venture company (“JV"”) with Austria-based pharmaceutical
company CROMA-Pharma GmbH (”Croma-Pharma”),
aesthetic medicine market in China.

expanding into the

The Croma hyaluronic acid the Group distribute was launched on the market.

The NMPA granted approval of Phase |-l clinical trials for “birociclib”, a self-
developed innovative patented new drug.

2016

The NMPA granted approval for clinical trials of self-developed new drug
janagliflozin for diabetes treatment.

The NMPA granted approval for Phase I/l clinical trials of self-developed
innovative patent new drugs, fadanafil.

2015

Acquired 39% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Ruiye”) to enrich and expand the Group's product resources.

Phase | clinical trial of Birociclib, the first self-developed innovative patented
oncology drug commenced in the U.S. The NMPA granted approval of Phase
171/ clinical trials of pirotinib.
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2014

. Signed exclusive distribution agreement with South Korean Hugel Inc. on
botulinum toxin and hyaluronic acid products.

o The investigational new drug (“IND") application of Birociclib was successfully
submitted to the U.S. FDA and the clinical trial approval was granted.

. The application for clinical trial approval of janagliflozin (the self-developed
innovative anti-diabetic drug) was accepted by the NMPA.

° Established cooperation with Chongging Peg-Bio Biotechnology Co., Ltd for
development of insulin products.

2013

o Obtained clinical trial approval for innovative patent drugs anaprazole sodium.

2012

° Acquired the remaining 40% equity interest in Shandong Xuanzhu which then
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

2011

. Acquired Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sihuan”) which owns
three exclusive drug products and various exclusive drug formulations mainly
focused on CCV diseases.

. Acquired 80% equity interest in Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Changchun Xiangtong"”) which owns both the manufacturing facility
and production license of active pharmaceutical ingredient (“API").

2010

° Listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

o Ranked No. 4 in the Forbes 2010 list of the most promising enterprises in the
PRC and No. 1 among pharmaceutical companies.
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[BREEEBRERBELR] [HEIRBERE]

TEICF-AT—B  ERVIERD (202282 KR EABEREEE NEeARBERME] £ R
LK RAEEBERBEREAT] k [REIREEKE] (BR2) #1F BEXREZAAELEER
B ITEMERE - TERBRI e RAREERHFE REEERBRNBENBERAER LT AR -
AR EES [RAEEBERERAR] #IR  LETENMREANBIERA - HIIREEIE
REVEE) - BE—TEHK -

The “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and Medical Company ( [REEEBEREEAT ] )" and
The “Best IR Team Award ( [ & {EIREIBEE | )"

On 11 January 2022, Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and
Medical Company” ( [REEEBERBEALT] ) and the "Best IR Team Award” ( [ R{EIREE
# ] ) (Picture 2) at the “2022 Global Investment Trend Forum and Sixth Golden Hong Kong Stock”
Awards Ceremony held in Shenzhen. Such Award aims to praise the Hong Kong-listed pharmaceutical
and medical companies with healthy corporate governance structure, supreme industry position, excellent
core businesses and continuous and stable value return for investors.

This award of the “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and Medical Company” won by Sihuan
Pharmaceutical demonstrated the attention and recognition of the industry and investors, which is not
only a great encouragement but a spur to Sihuan pharmaceutical.

[BEAEHEEFELTAF]

SEC-F+ZA+TAE MEREFEEHNRVICERNSEBRESEZR ETARRHE - &£ (2021
FRMGEHBBRAMSEFE LT AR  MBBESEXRY LTRARSNRTHEEE - RNHEEERETT
HHEBE NBETRSEOEME  EHEEKRE  £RR%E  AERBESHTEELERERN EHAF -

The “Most Socially Responsible Listed Company ( [RE#ESELHAF ] )"

On 16 December 2021, Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the “2021 Sina Finance Golden Kylin
Most Socially Responsible Listed Company” ( [2021¥TRIMEBBH AL ST LT AR] ) in the
selection of the best Hong Kong and U.S. stock listed company of Golden Kylin Award held by Sina Finance.
Such award aims to praise listed company for their efforts to practice social responsibility, actively fulfill
their responsibilities to consumers, communities and the environment, and make positive contributions to
targeted poverty alleviation, ecological protection, public welfare donations and other aspects.

[REEATISBER ]

SEZ—F+ZAZSt+AR - ETARREEBERAFESEE RET E S HIREREEERNNEH - [T
REEEAERNETETREE [(BEEATSEBRR] - SER/REATSH I RIFRETIFLEE  HHE
AR EEBRESRN - ZWAXEKNABEAREASZFENRHE L, — -

The “Best Communication with the Capital Market Award ( [ R{EEARTIHBEE | )"

On 29 December 2021, the Investor Relations Innovation Summit of Listed Companies and the Fifth
China Excellent IR Awards Ceremony was held in Shenzhen. Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the
“Best Communication with the Capital Market Award” ( [FR{EEARTIHEBEE | ) in this selection.
Such award aims to set a good example for investor relations and promote the high quality of investor
relations in the capital market. The award has become one of the most professional awards in the
domestic IR field.

[2021FEHEEELER ]

TEZZH-A+ZR BT EARHECEMEEARFEL DFRT KIEGHBTZEES - 1
REEZREERE 2021FELEEMALSER]  EHSSAUMNRBEEHSETIRNHE I
R o R MIREEE — BT B R A - B E BERETBRECENTEEES -

The “2021 Social Responsibility Pioneer Award ( [2021FEEHEEFEkEE] )"

On 13 January 2022, the Eleventh Public Welfare Festival and Corporate Social Responsibility Carnival
was held in Shanghai. After the consideration by the Nomination and Recommendation Committee,
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group was granted the “2021 Social Responsibility Pioneer Award”
([2021FEEHEEE L8] ), which is the recognition for efforts made by all wakes of life in respect
of social responsibility of Sihuan Pharmaceutical. In the future, Sihuan Pharmaceutical will continue
to adhere to public welfare, return to the society, and actively fulfill the responsibilities and duties of
pharmaceutical enterprises.
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#2021 Best IR Team Award (2021 EE R EIRERE) |
On 10 December 2021, Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the “The Best IR Team of the Year” at the
“6th Gelonghui Global Investors Carnival 2021" ( [E75/E o ISEE RN E EFZFEE ¢ 2021 ) award
ceremony organized by Gelonghui.
The “Best IR Team” is the final result of a comprehensive selection based on the analysis of institutional
research data, investor relations maintenance, capital market feedback collection, rewards and
punishments, information disclosure and other indicators, and conducted by way of “online voting,
quantitative data analysis and expert jury”, in recognition of the company’s professional capabilities.

2021FHEBEHNFAFHE ] DEBR

TEC-FNA-H NRONFZEEBEIXEEFEE20200FETEBETETARERHE | XR
WERBAGH - ARFE HEIRSTPEBEIXERTLOBATRBETRMTRR - LEBETE
MR ERE/NME - W BB AN HANCRETERNTREROMRESN - BRELP
EISEMHAN N BIEE  FTEYREELRRNBIFTE NELIRE -

#2021 Innovative Pharmaceutical Enterprise of China ( 20215 P ESBEFHAIF HE | SEER)"
On 1 August 2021, the “China Pharmaceutical Industry Information Annual Conference 2021
and 2020 China Pharmaceutical Industry Top 100 List Presentation” ( [2021FZEHEBE T #E
BEEGB00FEFTEBEIXTRBERMHE ] ) was held in Jinan City (Nickname: City of Springs).
In this annual conference, the organizer of the conference, the China National Pharmaceutical Industry
Information Center (FREIEE%:T %/ B H1)), together with China National Institute of Pharmaceutical
Industry (FBIEE%E T #43548F%) and Shanghai Institute of Pharmaceutical Industry (/5% 5T 247
FtBt), formed a panel of experts to analyze and research the new innovative enterprises in China’s
pharmaceutical industry based on objective data, and launched the list of new innovative power
of Chinese pharmaceuticals for the first time, and Xuanzhu Biopharm was honored for its strong
innovation ability.

2020 EHE 2B mRAE]

—E- EE-I— A+AhB - EWECTBREETREBE ML REBEEHBRBRARZBE2NENETE
ToRBESEITHMRSER M - 1£20205F E AR A MSREIRE - XBATHEMRE [ERFRIAHE]

2020 SOYONG “Star Shine New Product Promotion Award” (20205 E &S [ ERFRIEAE] )
On 19 December 2020, Beijing Meiyan Kongjian Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of listed
pharmaceutical company Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holding Group, was invited to participate in the 6th
SOYONG Asia Pacific Aesthetic Medical Awards Ceremony (SB73NfE¥TE R R ERITERERM). In the
2020 Annual Popularity and Word-of-Mouth Brand Awarding Session, MeiYan Kongjian's product was
granted the “Star Shine New Product Promotion Award (£ 257 E 7€)

20205 EEE [HRRERSE]

CEC-FHAAZTH  #REBEYestarZESBHERFNEAEIRBELRRE2HEHEAERE
M EFEHRRELN  EXESYestarBERBESZ B3 2 ESERRENASTLIERER - 28
(R SEIRRTAE - RS - MRERKE  BHEHHPREASETREN2.05ER -

2020 Yestar “Letybo Program Strategic Partnership” (2020 FE2E [&I2HEEKEE] )

On 20 May 2021, the strategic signing ceremony between Letybo and Yestar Group (YestarZ 2 £ H)
and the nationwide debut of Letybo at Yestar Beijing was successfully held! The strategic signing of both
parties formally announced that Yestar Group had introduced Korean botulinum toxin product, Letybo
in 23 hospitals in 19 cities across China. Shining like stars is Letybo do (228X + £442F74). The two
parties joined hands to build an alliance of genuine products, which will jointly help Chinese botulinum
toxin product enter a New Era 2.0 (2.0¥7B5 ).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—T—+F —T-N\F —T-NEF —E-FF —E--F
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
AREFIT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
REEE Operating results
g Revenue 2,745,809 2,917,405 2,878,318% 2,464,226 3,291,270
EX Gross profit 1,986,853 2,379,088 2,289,331% 1,914,449 2,448,516
9% R A B 2 Research and development expenses 303,926 480,325 598,952* 729,157 868,069
R (B1B) Operating profit/(loss) 1,688,256 2,025,943 (2,406,225)* 787,125% 763,941
BRETEHATRA (BE) Profit/(loss) before income tax 1,729,075 2,012,165 (2,422,955)* 765,844% 486,049
KABHE AEN Profit/(loss) attributable
w Al (EE) to owners of the Company 1,448,935 1,619,956 (2,717,515)* 502,569* 416,509
Ex Profitability
EM=E Gross profit margin 72.4% 81.5% 79.5%* 77.7%" 74.4%
wRl(EE) = Net profit/(loss) margin 53.9% 57.6% (94.3%)* 22.2%" 7.1%
BREM (EE) Earnings/(loss) per share
ERANREES) Basic (RMB cents) 15.28 17.10 (28.70)* 5.31# 4.42
BEANRES) Diluted (RMB cents) 15.28 17.10 (28.70)* 5.31¢ 4.39
BEEMR Asset status
WEE Total assets 13,591,863 15,443,475 12,571,436 13,043,926 14,495,623
RAREEE A Equity attributable to equity
JE5#E owners of the Company 11,056,992 12,510,413 9,606,684 9,190,342 8,284,148
FE=N Total liabilities 2,255,793 2,669,112 2,629,242 3,095,201 5,345,557
RekBReHEY Cash and cash equivalents 831,859 3,314,845 5,117,143 4,604,041 5,682,425
RENLE(F) Quick ratio (times) 2 2 3 2 3
B E(F) Current ratio (times) 3 3 3 3 3
FEBSE(A) Inventory turnover ratio (days) 102 177 217% 296 259
ZoRUETFBE(H) Trade receivables turnover ratio (days) 69 58 48 50¢ 64
B 5EMEFEE(H)  Trade payables turnover ratio (days) 43 24 31 56 48

* RIZEZZEFRAZH FAEBEEMHELRE *
BETHELEEBFAR HEDBERCKRILEEL
EBEB -BE_Z-NF+_-_A=+—BLF
EWHREFEET -

On 3 May 2020, the Group announced the disposal of certain subsidiaries which operated
non-core businesses of the Group is classified as discontinued operations. Comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been re-presented.

POBERBRELEEBER #  Related to continuing operations only
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Striving to create history and working hard to achieve

the future

Full speed ahead to upgrade and develop Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Version 2.0 into a leading medical
aesthetic and innovative pharmaceutical company

Chairman and Executive Director of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

—ECF BENERBLERZTELE
WRTEELENZHUKE  BhRERY
EESE BAETEEEARBERLE
TR RZEBEELHEINEST - &
BEREEXTENBEEMLRTRE-—HF
R BRTELEFEA -

R AEETE STTERBEATE

T
Eor

£ BIECLIRERER  KTAEERTH
BERZERM A ETEE - BAEH

BEENRAE  BXEIFNAEGEEA
EIXMHSEE HRAIFE BEEBET
B MoaHARMENTF  BHEe EHE
BlF  RERASZFHERMLE - RS - BB
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—RIHEE  BEVRE  RAFENEER
BB o

n

HREZETERNTEE

ERABLE
Dr. Che Fengsheng

In 2021, although the COVID-19 epidemic has brought operational challenges in
many aspects to many Chinese enterprises, due to the country’s proper control, China
has now entered the stage of normalized control of the epidemic, and driven by the
"appearance economy”, Chinese residents’ consumer awareness and demand for
medical aesthetics has further increased, ushering in a new windfall for the medical
aesthetics industry.

At the same time, in the pharmaceutical industry, China’s centralized procurement
has become normalized, institutionalized, and expanded at a faster pace, thus forcing
traditional generic drug companies to accelerate their transformation to innovative
R&D. The domestic innovative drug industry accelerates its reshuffle, independent
innovation and research and development emerged and more market attention was
attracted. For innovative drugs, the policy side also gives guidance to strengthen the
quality control of the supply side, encourages independent R&D and innovation, and
ensures the supply of products that are urgently needed in clinical practice. At the
same time, through a series of combined efforts such as the Medical Security Law, the
adjustment of the National Reimbursement Drug List (NRDL), and the DRG/DIP policy,
a series of cages are vacated to pave the way for the development of innovative
drugs.
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ERABE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In 2021, according to the two-wheel drive strategy of Sihuan medical aesthetics
and biopharmaceuticals formulated at the beginning of the year, we promoted
the development of various business sectors at full speed, and successfully realized
the magnificent transformation and development from a leading company in
cardiovascular and cerebrovascular generic drugs to a Chinese leading company
focusing on innovative biological drugs and medical aesthetics. We have made great
strides towards the new journey of the next glorious decade of the Group.

Building China’s leading medical aesthetic and
biopharmaceutical company with the rigor and
innovation of a pharmaceutical company

China’s medical aesthetics market started late compared to foreign countries,
but with the promotion of the national policy of common prosperity bringing a
continuous increase in people’s income level and a change in concept, the demand
for medical aesthetics services has grown up significantly, thus driving the rapid
rise of China’s medical aesthetics industry, which has now entered a rapid growth
channel. The gradual improvement of national policies and the continued entry of
industrial capital have also created a good industrial environment for the booming
development of the medical aesthetics industry. The rise of the "appearance
economy” has brought about the release of demand for medical aesthetics, and the
advancement of medical aesthetics technology has brought about the landing of
a large number of new products, which have jointly pushed the medical aesthetics
industry into a high boom period from both demand and supply. Compared to
developed countries, China’s medical aesthetics penetration rate is significantly
lower, and there is huge room for improvement. Pharmacy segment of the medical
aesthetics industry has the dual attributes of medicine and consumer goods. It is a
high-quality track with both high medical threshold and high consumption ceiling. It
has both technology and license thresholds, and also requires strong marketing and
channel delivery. Throughout the development of the medical aesthetics industry,
the leading international and domestic medical aesthetic enterprises are those with
outstanding advantages in both products and marketing.

As a leading pharmaceutical company in China with a history of over 20 years, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Group has strong R&D and technology transformation capabilities
in biopharmaceuticals, as well as rich experience in pharmaceutical registration and
excellent marketing capabilities and a nationwide marketing network. We have the
ability factors and success genes to become a leading medical aesthetic company
in China. Since we signed the exclusive distribution agreement for botulinum toxin
Letybo® in 2014, we have been building on our strengths over the past few years,
and in 2021, our “one-stop” medical aesthetic platform, Beijing MeiYan Konglian
Biomedical Co., Ltd ("MeiYan Konglian” or “Beijing Meiyan"), through its global
layout, comprehensive and professional product matrix, strong R&D and registration
capabilities, cost-controlled local production facilities and diversified marketing
capabilities and comprehensive channel coverage, has left the single-product
distribution model of Letybo® and grown into an international medical aesthetics
platform with a full product matrix covering the life cycle of beauty seekers, including

R&D, production, sales and marketing.

F [Z 45 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 17



TRBE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

T F EREZBENBEAMERRESE
HEBZERAE BMNEMERERFH
TR BREZEMURL N BREER
ol xit BREOSEEER  EZRK
MABERRENERKKE St S
ASXEM  BORESFRAK2-3FAE
B XBETHBEEEEZERMEMA
@%'Q%@ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁmé&
EUBLITEERNZR(L - BMBEERR
UHEREREERAKRMEBINBRE T
S| AL B S| B MR E B R BT A
Em o WHER I ER#ETRTE{CERE
WEEHE HEEDNRBRXEBENSR
R -BMESHEERROEH]IBK  F
- ARG B MR B R BB A B
XESWMEDK LEELRT  HEAREER
QSR REEEN T —RBEMBPHAKER K&
ERNEMRENBEEEME  BRRRIF
BRWIEIFmS I TEEENTEBES
EEREMBERBEEMEEANESES
TEMZEERMOLEEED - BMbBEESE
BEREXERYBENERER  BB[aH
+BD 1 & 5| & 8E &) K F Hh = B = 6 U B3R OF
RRITEPHNEEEREERER - AR E
ENBERBMEIMERITERKRCEEZRE
ENEBRER HRMAEAERMETE2M -
EmE aMRNBEEER BARHKEHR
BERDT BHIRRPEREEFRESZE
HOBAINBERENEXER  REEF
BEBEEZ N -

3 0] £ %7 of 2% B B AY p B <
EYRECEBRRNERE

Am o i

AR RBECENHEREENEE 1
EREBEROTBY N - B2012F Tk H &
MEMHEERERSL  AEBERE I WE
BB S B0 B2 o B E A1 37 L 00 3 R B PR AR
MENE-Z25 RMTEREEFESH
AARABBARB2ET  BEBCILKD
TEHMESEBRKRTE  BRAME M-
AENHEER —BNTREALETHELY
BEMEYS  ETENLREAEY -

18 | mmsm

In 2022, MeiYan Konglian's domestic research institute will continue to promote
the research and development of medical aesthetic products. We have dozens of
Class Il licensed medical aesthetic products and Class Il medical aesthetic products
including PLLA filler, PCL filler and collagen, etc, in our self-developed product
pipeline, together with imported medical aesthetic products such as Korean
hyaluronic acid and golden micro-needle that we are the exclusive distributor, which
will be launched this year and in the next 2-3 years, respectively. MeiYan Konglian
focuses on innovation in medical aesthetic products and technology, adheres to
innovation-driven and carefully creates product differentiation through cost-effective
product positioning. Through the Meiyen Laboratory Inc set up in the United States
as our overseas medical aesthetic product R&D and introduction centre, we continue
to introduce overseas cutting-edge medical aesthetic technologies and products, and
bring them back to China for technology transformation and product production and
sales, and continue to promote the rapid growth of Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s medical
aesthetic business. In line with the country’s “Carbon Peak and Neutrality” strategy,
at the beginning of the year, we formed a joint venture with Bluepha Co., Ltd, a
Chinese unicorn company in the field of synthetic biomaterials, to jointly develop
PHA microspheres, the next-generation regenerative material that is the best choice
for non- or minimally invasive medical aesthetics, and bio-manufacturing-based
regenerative medical materials. We are actively exploring new business models that
perfectly combine “new technologies” and “new markets” to build and consolidate
our first-mover advantage in the two huge blue ocean tracks of synthetic biology
and medical aesthetics. We will also learn from the development experience of the
international medical aesthetic giant Allergan and build a comprehensive and high-
quality medical aesthetic product matrix through the dual engine of “independent
R&D + BD” and high-quality overseas mergers and acquisitions, to achieve our
strategic goal of becoming a leading international medical aesthetic company with
the rigour and innovation product matrix of a pharmaceutical company. We are
committed to making only high-safety, high-quality and high-effect medical aesthetic
products, saying no to parallel and counterfeit products, and striving to bring more
and better domestic and foreign high-quality and safe medical aesthetic products to
Chinese beauty seekers, contributing to a beautiful China.

A spectacular turnaround to become a leading
biopharmaceutical company in China driven by
innovation and research

Innovation is the social responsibility and commitment of a pharmaceutical
enterprise, as well as the inexhaustible impetus for long-term development. Since the
completion of the acquisition of Xuanzhu Biopharm in 2012, the Group has been
focusing on the R&D of innovative oncology drugs and diabetes drugs with high
technological barriers. To date, we have invested a total of over RMB2.5 billion with
our own capital, and have successfully incubated and built two of China’s leading
independent biopharmaceutical R&D platforms that integrate clinical research, clinical
development, registration, production and sales: Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng
Biopharm.
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Xuanzhu Biopharm: Focusing on anti-oncology
field to build a leading Chinese biopharmaceutical
company with comprehensive innovative drug
development capabilities in both small molecule
drug and macromolecule fields

Undergoing nearly ten years of development, Xuanzhu Biopharm has successfully
grown into a leading innovative drug development company in China. It has
gathered a professional R&D team with nearly 400 senior returnee scientists,
formed a complete new drug R&D system, and created a professional platform from
new drug structure design, evaluation, establishment of candidate compounds to
clinical research, and then to new drug marketing application. With high quality
and rich R&D pipeline, as well as a world-class R&D and management team led
by returnee scientists, Xuanzhu Biopharm has been highly recognized by capitals
with pharmaceutical focus, and has successfully completed two rounds of A and B
financing in just 16 months from August 2020 to the end of 2021, receiving over
RMB1.5 billion in funding and capital support, and reaching a valuation of RMB7
billion after the investment.

Xuanzhu Biopharm has the capability of continuous innovation through independent
R&D. All of its products are self-developed and are not dependent on License in and
CRO, and possess the capability of continuous innovation and continuous output.
Xuanzhu Biopharm has established two major R&D platforms for small molecules
and macromolecules, covering small molecules, monoclonal antibodies, bispecific
antibodies, bispecific antibodies-ADC, fusion proteins, protein degradation and other
areas, and has continuous R&D output capability. Xuanzhu Biopharm focuses on
the development of new drugs in the areas of oncology, metabolism, anti-infection
and digestion, and is committed to the development of Class 1.1 innovative drugs,
including the CDK4/6 inhibitor Birociclib, with a pipeline of over 20 products. At
present, Xuanzhu Biopharm is one of the companies with the most comprehensive
layout in the breast cancer track in China. With the strong financial and capital
support that the company has successfully obtained, several of its products will
successfully complete clinical development and enter the product registration and
marketing stage. We are confident that Xuanzhu Biopharm will be able to rapidly
upgrade from a biotech company to a biopharmaceutical company in the near future.
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Huisheng Biopharm: A leading biopharmaceutical
company with full product coverage focused on
diabetes and complications

In order to fully expand into the RMB100 billion diabetes arena, we established
Huisheng Biopharm in 2014, which focuses on diabetes and complications fields.
After seven years of careful cultivation and an investment of over RMB1.5 billion,
today, Huisheng Biopharm has a world-class professional R&D team of over 200
people with extensive experience in diabetes drug research and development. With
the company’s four innovative technology platforms, namely the High Expression
Platform, Long-Acting Hypoglycemic Drugs, New Mechanism Oral Peptide Drugs and
Dual-Activators, Huisheng Biopharm has successfully researched and developed a
rich and comprehensive product pipeline of nearly 40 products at different stages,
achieving full coverage of the targets in the field of diabetes, covering a full range
of second-, third- and fourth-generation insulin and analogues (covering basic,
premixed and fast-acting products), innovative drugs with the latest mechanism,
such as SGLT-2, GLP-1 and DPP-4, as well as other mechanisms of glucose-lowering
drugs and complication drugs. Huisheng Biopharm is now the only biopharmaceutical
company in China that has achieved full product coverage in the field of diabetes
and complications, with integrated R&D, production and sales capabilities. Unlike
other biotech companies founded by scientists, Huisheng Biopharm has built its own
modern advanced biopharmaceutical production base with sufficient capacity since
2017. While leveraging on the sales and commercialisation capabilities of the Group,
it now has a comprehensive drug development and industrialisation capability. With
the upcoming launch of SGLT-2 Janagliflozin, the first class 1 self-developed new
drug, Huisheng Biopharm will realize the leap of transformation from an R&D driven
company to a biopharmaceutical company with commercialization and revenue.

Sihuan CDMO: Vigorously promote the “APlI +
CDMO” integrated strategy to build a new growth
curve of pharmaceutical business

Leveraging on our strengths in R&D and industrialization of pharmaceutical
intermediates and APIs, we have successfully developed a high quality “API + CDMO”
platform in 2021 by firmly implementing our “APl + CDMO" integrated strategy. The
platform has not only effectively ensured sufficient and cost-competitive supply of
APIs for our products, but also established a number of business cooperations with
more than 40 well-known domestic and overseas pharmaceutical companies. In 2021,
we have been given the opportunity to start collaboration projects with a leading
CDMO company in China, which is a strong guarantee for the development and
growth of this segment in the coming year, and is expected to become a new growth
curve of our pharmaceutical business in the future. Our goal is to become a leading
integrated CDMO company in the field of pharmaceutical intermediates and APIs, and
to help leading domestic and international pharmaceutical companies produce more
and better quality new drugs for the benefit of patients.
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Conclusion: Maintaining the original spirit of
innovation and entrepreneurship, we are fully
committed to promoting and realising the Group’s
Innovation and Transformation Version 2.0

| am very pleased to see that after more than 20 years of unremitting efforts by
all Sihuan people, the Group has successfully developed into a leading medical
aesthetic and biopharmaceutical group in China with an independent and leading
R&D technology platform, a rich R&D product pipeline, a comprehensive, advanced
and powerful production facilities and manufacturing capabilities, as well as a mature
and excellent sales system. In 2022, all of us at Sihuan Pharmaceutical will follow
the spirit of enterprise "Striving to Create History and Working Hard to Achieve
the Future" and adhere to our original spirit of innovation and entrepreneurship,
carefully “carve” our product pipeline with the spirit of craftsmanship, and make
every effort to promote and realize the Group’s innovation and transformation
enterprise development version 2.0. We are committed to building China’s leading
medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical enterprise with the rigour and innovation
of a pharmaceutical company, and to creating good investment returns for investors

who trust and support us.
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Founded in 2001 and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010, Sihuan
Pharmaceutical (Stock code: 00460.HK) is an international medical aesthetic and
biopharmaceutical company led and driven by innovation, with an independent and
leading R&D technology platform, a rich global product pipeline and a mature and
excellent sales system. Focusing on high-growth therapeutic areas such as medical
aesthetics, oncology, metabolism, diabetes, cardiovascular and cerebrovascular,
modern Chinese medicine and industrial hemp. Adhering to the overall strategic goal
for the “full promotion of a two-wheel drive strategy of its medical aesthetic and
biopharmaceutical businesses”, Sihuan Pharmaceutical endeavors to “build itself into

a leading medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical company in China”.
Dr. Che Fengsheng
Chairman of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

29 March 2022
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Industry Overview

In 2021, with the continuous outbreak of COVID-19, the overall economic situation
of the world is still facing the bottleneck of development. But with the continuous
improvement of the economic structure and the normalization of COVID-19 control,
signs of economic recovery are still visible. In 2021, the global economic growth
rebounded to 5.5%, and showed a steady recovery and good development trend in
overall.

In China, driven by the normalization of the epidemic control, the awakening
of residents’ consumption awareness and consumer demand, medical aesthetic
consumption has gradually recovered, and the medical aesthetic industry has
ushered in a new period of important opportunities. According to the “2021 Medical
Aesthetic Industry White Paper” ( (20218X1TE£HAKZE) ) (the “White Paper”)
released by So-Yong Aesthetic Data Research Institute (T 2UEEETTR), the scale
of China’s medical aesthetic market is expected to reach RMB184.6 billion in 2021,
returning to the growth channel of more than 20%. Botulinum toxin, photoelectric
technology, medical aesthetic e-commerce and hyaluronic acid have become the
four key factors to promote the rapid development of medical aesthetic market and
comprehensively promote the transformation of industry ecology. With the prosperity
of the medical aesthetic industry, the medical aesthetic industry also entered the
stage of strong supervision at the policy level in 2021. The White Paper mentioned
that the medical aesthetic industry has reached the critical point of transformation
and upgrading from extensive development to refined development. With the policies
such as the action for cracking down on illegal medical aesthetic services jointly
adopted by eight ministries and departments and the “Enforcement Guidance for the
Medical Cosmetology Advertising” ( (EEEREEHEIERM) ) promulgated by the
State Administration of Market Regulation during the Year, stricter policy supervision
is becoming normal practices and major trends, further promoting the reorganization
and reshuffle of the medical aesthetic industry, eliminating pirated and counterfeit
products and clearing out illegally-operated institutions, and bringing long-term
benefits to the development of formal institutions.

In the pharmaceutical industry, 2021 witnessed the continuous impact of industrial
policies. Centralized procurement has been normalized and institutionalized with
a faster and broader development, and the full coverage for all purchases in need
should be finalized. At the same time, the domestic innovative medicine track has
accelerated the reshuffle, and independent innovation R&D has emerged, which
has attracted much attention in the market. For innovative drugs, the guidance also
has been given by the policy to strengthen the quality control of the supply side,
encourage independent R&D and innovation and ensure the supply of products
in urgently clinic needs. Meanwhile, a series of combination such as the medical
security law, the adjustment of NRDL and diagnosis-related groups (DRG)/diagnosis-
intervention packet (DIP) payment policy, and the “keep the cage, but change the
birds” measures paved the way for the development of innovative drugs.

The Group’s Business

2021 was also a special year for the Group, which also was the turning point of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical. During the past year, the Group fully promoted the two-
wheeled strategy of medical aesthetic and biopharmaceuticals, and successfully
realized the transformation from traditional generics company to leading innovative
drugs and medical aesthetic company.
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Pharmaceutical Business

The pharmaceutical business segment of the Group successfully incubated two
innovative drug platforms. Among them, Xuanzhu Biopharm began to hatch
innovative drug sector in 2012, which is leading in the industry and focusing on
the independent R&D of oncology drugs. It is one of the companies in China with
the most comprehensive coverage in breast cancer. It has more than 20 products
in the pipeline, with CDK4/6 inhibitor Birociclib as the core. It serves as a leading
biopharmaceutical company in China focusing on oncology with comprehensive
innovative drug self-development capabilities in both small and large molecule areas.
During the Year, the NDA of Anaprazole Sodium developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm
has been accepted, and Birociclib as well as other products have been approved to
enter clinical phase Ill. R&D has made rapid progress.

HMTEYEHRER BEETZEXTANBER

EERERE - RF - HLEEBERBRERWAEREE - 2FIPRE - ABout-licensingég
The Key Pipeline of Xuanzhu Biopharm:

Fully Independent Intellectual Property Rights

Focusing on the oncology, metabolic diseases, digestive system and other therapeutic areas in
great clinical needs with the protection of global IP and out-licensing opportunities
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CDKa4/6
I WEFEE
CDK4/6 Birociclib  Br
Inhibitor
FLARAE HER2
Breast SEBRAE
HER2 KM-257
cancer Bispecific
antibody
HER2
BN KM-501
L -ADC (FRKM-254)
Tumor HER2 (Original
Bispecific KM-254)  oth
antibody
-ADC
FMERIE
SERD Fulvestrant
ALK/ROS1
N S XZP-3621
o ALK/ROS1 25
Inhibitor
NSCLC
AXL XZB-0004
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HERE NTRK/ROS1 XZP-5955
Inhibitor
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Protein XZB-001-003
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metabolism  NASH ST
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Inhibitor) (KBP-3571)
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LI/LO: Lead Identification/Lead Optimisation
IND: Investigational New Drug

HER2T{E5R3E (FLIRE - A EEBMBRE - fifR)

LR (HR+/HER2- / RARART)
Breast cancer (HR+/HER2- / End-line)
FLARAE (HR+/HER2- / Bt& R RIBF —#067%)

east cancer (HR+/HER2- / Second-line treatment with
fulvestrant)

ZLBRAE (HR+/HER2- / Bt & AI—40A%E)

HER2BXRERER (FLRME - HMEBENEEE -
I THNE)
HERZ2 high expression tumors (Breast cancer, other
solid tumors such as cholangioma and herceptin)

HER?2 low to medium expression (Breast cancer,
er solid tumors such as gastric cancer and lung cancer)

HR+FZRER+FLER AR
HR+ and/or ER+ breast cancer

NSCLC (&%)
NSCLC (End-line)
NSCLC (1#43)
NSCLC (First-line)
NSCLC
NTRK/ROS1RE& FIZe & ) B e, SR 1L B

Locally advanced/metastatic solid tumors
with NTRK/ROS1 fusion and mutation

TR
Solid tumor
NASH (FEBHEMEREILIERT4¢)
NASH (Non-alcoholic Steatohepatitis)
PBC (REMMETIEIEER)
PBC (Primary biliary cholangitis)

NAFLD/NASH

DU (+—i&lE%)
DU (Duodenal ulcer)
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Huisheng Biopharm was incubated in 2014, focusing on the field of diabetes
and complications, with nearly 40 products in the pipeline and became one of the
few domestic integrated R&D, production and marketing platforms to achieve full
product coverage in the fields of diabetes and complications. During the Year and
early 2022, multiple products of Huisheng Biopharm have made positive progress,
the NDA of innovative drug SGLT-2 inhibitor Janagliflozin, and the NDA for insulin
aspart injection, insulin aspart 30 injection and insulin aspart 50 injection have been
accepted. The fourth-generation insulin degludec injection finished phase Il clinical
trials. Insulin degludec and insulin aspart injection has obtained the approval for the
conduction of clinical trials, and its R&D progress ranks the top in China.

SHREMEARKBZNGER  ERERMERR=FARELD
The Key Pipeline of Huisheng Biopharm

A number of products have entered into phase I to lll clinical trials, and blockbuster product
will be successively launched in the next three years.

Em
Drug Name

puit -2l
ORR 11EHE Janagliflozin

Oral Class 1.1 AR+ =
new drug Janagliflozin and Metformin tablets

BRRBILHR

Development stage

HRPRAT AR TR R RIS PRI BRI $EE
Pre-Clinical IND Phase | Phase Il Phasellll NDA/BI

RS

Insulin Degludec Injections

BAFISBRBFEHA
HEURBR Insulin Degludec/Aspart Injections

BARBF/R A BHOE SR

Insulin Degludec/Liraglutide Injections
BRBPILRBFOEH A

Faster-Acting Insulin Aspart Injections

PIRE FEH A
Insulin Aspart Injections
RERR PIL R F30 LA
=3 Insulin Aspart 30 Injections

=RRB%E PILRBES0E SR
Insulin Third Insulin Aspart 50 Injections

Generation BB AR
Mixture Insulin Insulin Glargine Injections

TR B L5
Insulin Lispro Injections
BEHRRRBRES

Mixture of protamine and Insulin Lispro Injections (25R)

REOEBRBFRSENR (50R)
Mixture of protamine and Insulin Lispro Injections (50R)

BAANRBILHR

Recombinant Human Insulin Injection

BEAEAARS ISR
Human Insulin Inj

New Insulin

—RERB%E
Second

SESIR (25R)

Generation

Insulin BEASAARBILHR (30R)
Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injections (30R)

BEABAARSILHR (50R)
Protamine Recombinant Human Insulin Injections (50R)

FIALBOE SR
Liraglutide Injections
REBPOEHE

Semaglutide Injections

SRS
Semaglutide Tablets

GLP-1E {4
GLP-1

HSP-004 (CIfR)(GLP-1
Analogue HSP-004 (Oral ((5LP-1) b

B ERE
Independent
R&D

HSP-005/HSP-006 (& 3B25ENAI)
HSP-005/HSP-006 (dual target agonist)

HSP-001 ($i—REKMGLP-1)
HSP-001 (A new generation of long-acting GLP-1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group began its independent R&D layout in 2012. In the past few years, the
Group has invested more than RMB1 billion in Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng
Biopharm respectively. The funds are derived from the income of the Group’s generic
drugs business.

Generic drugs sector is an important cash cow business of the Group, which
provides sufficient finance and talent support for the Group to build two innovative
drug platforms. The Group’s high-end generic drug R&D platform has dozens of
products under R&D, which will gradually enter into the market and continue to
create new revenue. Meanwhile, the Group also has strong active pharmaceutical
ingredient (“API") production resources. In 2020, it consolidated the “API + Contract
development and manufacturing organization (“CDMO")” integrated platform,
and made breakthrough for business progress in this field in 2021. There were
approximately 160 projects in list, and approximately 40 customers actually signed
the agreements, which made breakthroughs in the quality and quantity of customers.
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Medical Aesthetic Business

The Group has begun to incubate medical aesthetics segment since 2014 and
entered into exclusive distribution rights in respect of botulinum toxin and hyaluronic
acid with Hugel, Inc. (“Hugel”), a leading biopharmaceutical company in Korea.
Botulinum toxin Letybo® was successfully launched in February 2021 and achieved
great sales progress and channel coverage of approximately 2,500 medical aesthetics
institutions, of which more than 430 institutions account for the 500 leading
institutions. MeiYan Konglian realized the growth both in quality and quantity and
penetrated into the core area of medical aesthetics by means of self-development,
acquisitions and mergers, joint venture cooperation, exclusive distribution and other
ways, expanded the medical aesthetics product portfolio to cover the whole life
cycle needs of beauty lovers. The self-developed pipelines own more than 10 Class
Il products and almost 20 Class Il products. In respect of the acquisition of business,
the Group has completed the wholly-owned acquisition of Genesis, which is an
American manufacturer of high-quality aesthetics and biomedical products, covering
the fat harvesting system LipiVage®, and also established a joint venture with Bluepha
to jointly develop PHA microspheres and bio-manufacturing-based regenerative
medicine materials. The Group exclusively distributed the embedding thread products
and golden microneedle products during the Year and in early 2022. The Group has
successfully achieved version 2.0 upgrade in the medical aesthetics segment in 2021,
transforming itself from an exclusive distribution enterprise with single product into a
platform-type company achieving the integration of R&D, production and sales in the

field of medical aesthetics.

BRBEEEZALTZEGBHES

The Key Pipeline of MeiYan KongJian: To cover the entire life cycle’s need of beauty lovers

3 Al
Business Category

EmEB 473
Product Name

3
registration

£

clinical stage marketing

EEBREA (EWEERR) HEH (18) Y
Complex Collagen (Bio-fermentation Source) Filler (Type IIl)

H7ER —f [ZErst] ExA ()
Filler The first generation PLLA filler (Type Ill)
—R [Dxit] Ezl (I58)

| dg E}Ej& t The second generation PCL filler (Type III)
e e WM LBES AeemaTIEER”
[T Volumization/Support 10+ independent R&D Type III products*
KR (18)
b 350 PLLA gel (Type Il)
Skin care ~20 X BHIEER
~20 independent R&D Type Il products*
felid JiERs R4 R #iLipiVage® ([ Genesis)
Sculptra Fat harvesting system LipiVage® (USGenesis)
B R I BT PHARIR FAEBEAR (ERERRED)
REE Filler
ME&AIIV WERE R 2
Optoelectronic system (Shenzhen Yimei)
BIEER HEFH/ARR ($EHugel)
Sculptra Botulinum toxin / Letybo (South Korea Hugel)
HFTHE WREE (32EIHugel)
Filler HA filler (South Korea Hugel)
BRAE KB SYLFIRM X™# & 5t (8EVIOL)
Exclusive Optoelectronic
Distribution

Support Dongbang Medicine)
wHasE CELLBOOSTER (¥ Suisselle)
Volumization CELLBOOSTER (Switzerland Suisselle)

PHA microsphere regenerative medicine materials (Bluepha)
HRBERS (RIIHE)

Two-in-one ultrasound technology, cold and heat lipolysis

SYLFIRM X™ Golden Microneedle (South Korea VIOL)
L e AR AR R DR BB R ER (RER)

Absorbable suture and incontience sling kit (South Korea

"RBERERARERBRIET only shown the fastest R&D development in the category
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Three Core Capabilities

In addition, the three core capabilities of the Group support the above business
development and produce favorable synergies. The Group has very strong registration
capabilities and is the first enterprise to bring Korean botulinum toxin into the
Chinese market and can also complete the registration of self-developed varieties
in a very short-term. Strong registration capability brings first-mover advantage
for the launch of products. Secondly, the Group has a high-efficiency and low-
cost production platform, and its mastery of production capacity and raw materials
enables the Group to have a strong cost advantage to achieve rapid industrialization
development. In addition, the Group also has the market-recognized medical
academic marketing ability. On the professional and efficient academic marketing
platform covering the whole China, the professional marketing team and business
sales network of the Group not only can promote the continuously rapid penetration
of existing products, but also endow the new launched products with strong
“monetization” ability.
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Annual Results

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (“during the Year”), the Group recorded
a total revenue of RMB3,291.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
33.6% over the total revenue of RMB2,464.2 million for the same period in 2020.
This increase was mainly due to the Group’s new business segment, the medical
aesthetics segment, recorded a revenue of RMB399.0 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 1,383.3%, which was mainly due to the launch and marketing of the
botulinum toxin Letybo®, actively contributing to the performance of the Group.

The generic medicine segment achieved a revenue of RMB2,598.1 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 18.2%, which showed that the impacts of Key Monitoring
List products on the generic medicine business of the Group have come to an end and
the performance of the Group’s generic medicine segment has entered the upward
channel.

During the Year, the Group achieved a gross profit of RMB2,448.5 million,
representing an increase of 27.9% over the gross profit of RMB1,914.4 million for the
corresponding period in 2020, mainly due to the significant growth in the revenue
side.

During the Year, the Group continued to ramp up the investment in the R&D to
promote the rapid amplification in value of the Group’s pharmaceuticals segment.
During the Year, the R&D expenses (including Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng
Biopharm) were RMB868.1 million, representing an increase of 19.0% over the R&D
expenses of RMB729.2 million for the same period 2020, accounting for 26.4% of
total revenue. The high and continuous R&D investment mirrors the confidence and
determination of the Group in continuous R&D and innovation, and at the same time
exactly enhanced the value of R&D segment significantly for the Group. Xuanzhu
Biopharm attracted the equity investment with a total of RMB1.57 billion from the
top private equity fund in China in the two years from 2020 to 2021. As of the end
of 2021, the post-investment valuation of Xuanzhu Biopharm was increased by more
than 50% from RMB4.6 billion in August 2020 to nearly RMB7.0 billion.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents plus wealth
management products amounted to approximately RMB5,791.7 million, and the
total amount of cash and cash equivalents plus wealth management products, net
of interest-bearing bank borrowings and other borrowings, was approximately
RMB4,747.0 million. The Group’s debt to capital ratio (i.e., a percentage of
borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 12.6%,
which remained low. The Group’s financial position is very solid. The Board proposed
the final cash dividend per share of RMB1.3 cents and special cash dividend per share
of RMB9.5 cents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

1.

Medical Aesthetic Business Segment: Building a Leading
Medical Aesthetic Platform in China based on the Rigor
and Innovation of a Pharmaceutical Company

The medical aesthetic platform MeiYan Konglian under the Group takes a
foothold in Chinese medical aesthetic market characterized by high growth and
low penetration rate and is dedicated to building a leading medical aesthetic
company with full product matrix by leveraging the rigor and innovation of a
pharmaceutical company. Since the exclusive distribution agreement entered
into in 2014 regarding the botulinum toxin Letybo®, focusing on the “one-
stop” new medical aesthetic platform, MeiYan Konglian had grown from a
platform of single product distribution into an integrated medical aesthetic
platform on R&D, production and marketing with various self-developed
products or distribution products, strong marketing abilities and full product
matrix by means of globalized layout, comprehensive and professional product
matrix, strong R&D and registration capabilities, low-cost localized production
and diversified marketing abilities and comprehensive channel coverage in
2021 after years of great efforts.

In 2021, MeiYan Konglian built a whole medical aesthetics product matrix by
virtue of strong self-development and business development (“BD") abilities
with an aim of covering the whole life cycle needs of beauty lovers and with
its product layout covering dozens of high-quality medical aesthetic products,
including the filling, shaping, supporting, supplementing, optoelectronic
device, body sculpturing, skin care and others to provide non- or minimally

invasive medical aesthetic comprehensive solutions.

During the Year, the revenue of MeiYan Konglian, the medical aesthetic
reached RMB399.0 million,
increase of 1,383.3%, accounting for 12.1% of the Group’s overall revenue.
It realized profit before tax of RMB248.5 million,
increase of 971.1% year-on-year.

business segment, representing a year-on-year

representing a significant
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The significant growth of revenue mainly resulted from the official launch
and sales of type A botulinum toxin for injection Letybo® 100U (trade name:
Letybo®), a product exclusively distributed by MeiYan Konglian and produced
by a leading South Korean biopharmaceutical company Hugel, in February
2021. Letybo®, as the leading product of Hugel and exclusively distributed by
MeiYan Konglian, ranked first in terms of sales in the botulinum toxin market
of South Korea for five consecutive years from 2016 to 2020, representing a
market share of approximately 50%. Letybo® is the fourth type A botulinum
toxin product approved for launch in the market of China and the first of
its kind from South Korea. With its unique advantages of high quality, high
efficacy and high safety, Letybo® has been highly recognized and concerned
by the industry, doctors and consumers, and its sales volume has increased
rapidly after launch. The annual sales revenue of Letybo® reached RMB399.0
million. As of the end of January, it has been marketed to nearly 2,500
medical aesthetics institutions nationwide, and more than 430 institutions out
of the top 500 institutions. In addition, type A botulinum toxin for injection
Letybo® 50U has also officially received the marketing approval from the
NMPA in February 2021. With the approval of the new product specification,
Letybo® 50U has enriched product specifications and types on the basis of the
previously launched Letybo® 100U, which will be conducive to the expansion
and market popularization of Letybo® standard products.

In addition to the exclusive distribution of Hugel's products, MeiYan Konglian
has been constantly enriching and expanding its product portfolio. Through
“self-development + exclusive distribution”, it has deployed a pipeline of high-
quality medical aesthetics products, and has become more diversified and
internationalized under the product layout strategy.

During the Year, the Group also made positive progress in the self-developed
pipeline of medical aesthetics products. Currently there are more than ten
types of class Ill medical device products in the self-developed product pipeline,
including the first-generation “PLLA filler” and the second-generation “PCL
filler”, as well as dozens of class Il medical device products, among which, the
Group's self-developed and produced three types of products, namely PLLA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

gel (product name: Karlian® (2ml/unit), medical skin care gel and medical skin
repair gel, have obtained the medical device registration certificate approved
by the NMPA. The indications of liraglutide developed by the Group for obesity
have also entered into the development plan communication of the clinical
phase Ill trial, and will soon enter the clinical phase Ill stage. As more and more
self-developed products are approved and blockbuster products enter the mid-
to-late clinical stage, the Group's self-developed products will further help build
a complete product matrix and further enhance the comprehensive strength of
the Group's medical aesthetics business.

What supports the rapid progress of the above self-developed pipelines is
MeiYan Konglian’s strong in-house R&D and technology transformation
capabilities. During the Year, MeiYan Konglian has established the Meiyen
Laboratory in Los Angeles, the United States, to conduct innovative
technology introduction, independent research and development of new
generation medical aesthetics products and biomaterial, and the technology
transformation and manufacture in China. The R&D center established in China
is responsible for the improvement in existing medical aesthetics products
and the exploration of new applications, and the industrial implementation of
the cutting-edge technologies developed by the US R&D center. Meanwhile,
it has in-depth cooperation with a number of well-known domestic research
institutes and colleges to build strong R&D capabilities.

Faster realization has been seen in BD products. Relying on its strong
registration and marketing capabilities, the Group has signed exclusive BD
cooperation with a number of global leading enterprises at home and abroad
to further expand its product portfolio of medical aesthetics products and

realize rapid increase in sales scale.

During the Year, the Group started its layout in the market of embedding
thread products and entered into an exclusive distribution agreement with
Dongbang Medical to introduce its two types of products, namely absorbable
suture and incontinence sling kit. According to market statistics, the potential
market of embedding thread in China is approximately RMB1 billion, with a
compound growth rate of 26% in the next five years. The products distributed
by the Group have obtained FDA certification in the US and CE certification in
EU, and are ready for sale.
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In January 2022, the first layout of the Group in the optoelectronic equipment
market was implemented. The Group entered into an exclusive distribution
agreement with South Korea VIOL Co., Ltd (“VIOL") in respect of the SYLFIRM
X™ (golden microneedle) (& & &) product and obtained the exclusive
distribution right of the product in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
At present, among the domestic golden microneedle projects, three imported
products (mainly from Israel and South Korea) occupy approximately 70% of
the market. The SYLFIRM X™ distributed by the Group is a new generation of
golden microneedle, which has great advantages over other radiofrequency
microneedle products currently on the market. It is also the first radiofrequency
microneedle instrument with continuous wave plus impulse wave dual-wave
action in the world, which can treat skin problems at all levels from superficial
to deep. With the rapid growth of China’s radiofrequency medical aesthetics
equipment market, it is believed that the new technology iterations brought
by SYLFIRM X™ will bring greater attraction to Chinese medical aesthetics
institutions and beauty seekers.

In addition, the Group further expanded its product matrix through
acquisitions, mergers and joint ventures. In December 2021, the Group
wholly acquired the entire equity of Genesis, a manufacturer of high-quality
aesthetic and biomedical products in the United States. Genesis specializes
in microchannel system and fat collection system. Its LipiVage® fat collection
system is an innovative product with independent and ready-to-use two-step
fat collecting, cleaning and transferal system, which is easy to operate and
has mild effects. Its unique technology can increase the survival rate of fat
transplantation to 80% to over 90%. In June 2021, Meiyen Laboratory Inc,
an American subsidiary of the Group, has entered into a strategic cooperation
with Genesis on this product and obtained the exclusive distribution right for
this product in Greater China and South Korea.

32 | e gEiR AR 4 4 IR 2 A SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



ZEIF R AEEE-—SHRRE
mAAs YA RLEE  BERWEY
BEWHE EHIBKNILAEEAR KA
B2 B IEPHARBR R ER £ B EMH
EBEBNE &5 RRTNE MO
B AMEEBNEERELCER - B
AMEANE=REEBERIHER &
BEMRFPLANMPCLY FH Z BB/ 2
BERSTES  BEBLERBAERDN
B - MPHAR BIAEY & K — & 48
BAERE 2 EBRAAEHITEAD
EmRIERIM A E AR R MR E
EmMBEREMBAGLZ 2 FE
PHAER S R EEEM R 171818 - A AE
MEESBBEANEENS  MIHE
B EBEEAEE AREMEWS
BB ZZEZAFBIA30%MIES Fi
RERRIER - Mt X AL B RE S
EVREEEE  HRKIZEEQR -
FEEAEBARERIARBAKRENS
EEERAMEXES KIHBLYE

E 30 1A T IR R i At A 1T R ey B8 —
B BEPAEERE - S EEEBESE
BOHER  BEAEBMOZLBTEF S -

ABEAMEERNERE A - XEE
MAEBAEZLT MERRE - EKAK
W AEEEM - BETEE14,000F 5K
BRIZRVIKEER ERESBER
BREMEE BR2ME  MHE
LEoLAERABRERAL  £EREE
Bl REBEMEHEER I REERE
WA R £EBMHIFTEERFL
BEER EAREMEEEEBER
THERNEZEGANERRBREE
MREGOLEE - BRME  -EE20E
Moo

BIEE R LT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In January 2022, the Group further expanded its product portfolio and entered
into core areas. It signed an agreement with Bluepha, whereby the two parties
will establish a joint venture to jointly develop PHA microspheres and bio-
manufacturing-based regenerative medical materials, and the two parties will
jointly complete the R&D, compliance declaration and subsequent commercial
promotion of the products. Currently, there are only three compliant
regenerative injection products in China. Both PLA and PCL in the existing
products require chemical interaction to achieve molecular aggregation and
are subject to the risk of chemical interaction agent residue. However, PHA is
an intracellular polyester synthesized by microorganisms and a natural high-
molecular polymer. Whether for entering the scarce non- or minimally-invasive
medical aesthetics market as a new material or in terms of the safety of the
material itself, PHA will be a good choice for non- or minimally-invasive medical
aesthetics. There is great development potential in the field of synthetic
biology. The market predicts that in the field of commercial applications, the
synthetic biology market is expected to grow rapidly at a CAGR of 30% by
2025. The strategic cooperation between the Group and Bluepha to jointly
establish a joint venture gives the Group an opportunity to enter the huge
industrial blue ocean of synthetic biology in advance and successfully take
the first step in the vertical extension from the medical aesthetics industry
end to the upstream raw material end, which will help the Group to further
improve its layout in the field of medical aesthetics and enhance the core
competitiveness of the Group.

In order to realize the industrialization of R&D products, Meiyan Kongjian has
set up two high-efficiency and low-cost production bases in China, with a total
area of 14,000 square meters. Currently, nine production lines have been set
up, covering pre-filled products, lyophilized powder injection products, active
equipment and dressings, etc. The production process is automated, and the
production status is controllable in real time to ensure the ability to manage
details and the traceability of the production process. All production workshops
meet aseptic purification workshop requirements and have a perfect quality
management system, and risk management is implemented for the whole life
cycle of products to ensure safety, effectiveness and quality controllability of
the products.
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After the implementation of product industrialization, with the diversified sales
capabilities and comprehensive channel coverage of the medical aesthetics
platform, the new products can be launched and achieve sales expansion
quickly. The sales team of more than 60 members of Meiyan Kongjian are
mainly from well-known multinational pharmaceutical and medical aesthetics
companies, with more than 10 years of rich sales experience. In addition, the
Group also cooperates with approximately 40 agents to jointly promote the
launch of the products. It has achieved a coverage of more than 200 cities in
China, covering nearly 2,500 medical aesthetics institutions, of which more
than 430 institutions are among the top 500 institutions.

In 2021, the Group’s medical aesthetics business segment has gradually
improved and achieved considerable results in product, R&D, registration,
production and sales. With the “independent R&D + distribution” products
being gradually implemented and launched into the market, the Group's
medical aesthetics business will continue to maintain strong growth
momentum and further become a leading medical aesthetics company in China
that achieves full product coverage for the whole life cycle needs of beauty-
loving people.

Pharmaceutical Business Segment: Innovation-driven
Transformation of Pharmaceutical Business from a
Traditional Generics to an Innovative Drugs to further
Build a Leading Biopharmaceutical Company in China
During the Year, the pharmaceutical business segment had successfully
incubated two innovative drug platforms, namely Xuanzhu Biopharm, a leading
domestic biomedical company focusing on oncology drugs with comprehensive
innovative drug development capabilities in the fields of small molecules and
macromolecules, and Huisheng Biopharm, one of the few integrated research,
production and marketing platforms in China with full product coverage in
the field of diabetes and complications, and its innovation drive continuing to
increase to continuously promote the long-term development of the Group’s
pharmaceutical business segment in the field of innovation. Jilin Kangtong
continued to develop its API business under the integrated strategy of “API
+ CDMO" and promoted the gradual implementation of CDMO/contract
manufacturing organization (“CMO") business. The high-end generics under
the generics business platform have been successively approved and marketed,
which continues to provide revenue and becomes a strong “cash cow”,
ensuring that the Group’s pharmaceutical business segment becomes an
innovative drug enterprise without a money-burning model.
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in China with Comprehensive Innovative Drug
Development Capabilities in the Fields of Small
Molecules and Macromolecules

Established in 2012, Xuanzhu Biopharm is an innovative drug subsidiary
of the Group. Undergoing nearly ten years of development, Xuanzhu
Biopharm has gathered an excellent team with nearly 400 people
leading by returnee scientists, which are equipped with the ability of
independent research and development of innovative drugs, forming
a complete research and development and a new drug research
and development system, and creating a professional platform from
new drug structure design, evaluation, establishment of candidate
compounds to clinical research, and then to new drug marketing
application. In early 2021, Xuanzhu Biopharm integrated Beijing
Combio, a macromolecule biopharmaceutical company dedicated to
the research and development of multifunctional antibody drugs such
as innovative bispecific antibodies, bispecific ADC through mergers
and acquisitions. Hence, Xuanzhu Biopharm is now one of the few
platform-type innovative drug companies with comprehensive innovative
drug development capabilities in the fields of small molecules and
macromolecules in China.

Rapid progress has been seen in Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s self-developed
product pipeline, with over 25 innovative drugs under development,
targeting areas such as oncology, metabolism and digestion. Focusing
on major diseases, big markets and multi-target layout of same diseases,
Xuanzhu Biopharm has made a comprehensive layout for the main
targets of breast cancer in the key track, and is one of the companies
with the most comprehensive layout in the breast cancer track in China.
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During the Year, Birociclib, the class | new drug candidate of Xuanzhu
Biopharm, has obtained the approval for the conduction of phase Il
clinical trials from the Center for Drug Evaluation of NMPA, specifically:
Birociclib is used in combination with aromatase inhibitor in locally
advanced or metastatic breast cancer that is hormone receptor positive
(HR+) and human epidermal growth factor receptor 2 negative (HER2-),
and Birociclib is used in combination with fulvestrant in locally advanced,
recurrent or metastatic HR+/HER2- breast cancer that showed disease
progression after previously endocrine therapy. Breast cancer is one of
the most prevalent malignant tumors in the world. Hormone receptor
(HR) positive breast cancer accounts for approximately 70% of all
breast cancers and covers the majority of patients with breast cancers.
Currently, the most popular drug in this field is CDK4/6 inhibitor. The
blockbuster product of Xuanzhu Biopharm, Birociclib, as a novel selective
CDK4/6 inhibitor, has the potential to overcome endocrine therapy
resistance in hormone receptor positive (HR+) breast cancer patients.
Birociclib also exhibited significant efficacy in patients with advanced
breast cancer who have failed multiple lines of treatment. Pre-clinical
data showed that Birociclib has a unique pharmacokinetic profile, which
penetrates the blood-brain barrier, predicting its potential efficacy in
breast cancer patients with brain metastases and patients with brain
tumors. Moreover, due to the novel targeting mechanism of CDK4/6
inhibitor, Birociclib is able to demonstrate clinical benefits and market
influence through multiple novel Birociclib-based combination therapies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the field of non-small cell lung cancer (“NSCLC"), XZP-3621, Xuanzhu
Biopharm'’s new drug, has obtained approval for the commencement of
phase Il clinical trials from the Center for Drug Evaluation of NMPA, the
specific indication of which is ALK-positive advanced non-small cell lung
cancer, marking the first product of Xuanzhu Biopharm in the field of
NSCLC entering key development stage. XZP-3621 is a next generation
dual inhibitor of ALK/ROS1 for the treatment of NSCLC. Clinical study
results have shown that XZP-3621 has curative effects on both the initial
treatment of ALK inhibitors and the treated ALK-rearranged advanced
NSCLC patients; that XZP-3621 has better safety and a higher safety
window compared to that of first and second generation ALK inhibitors.
XZP-3621 is expected to be the Best-in-class among the next generation
ALK inhibitors.

In the field of solid tumors, XZP-5955 tablet, a self-developed Category 1
new drug of Xuanzhu Biopharm, has received the notice for drug clinical
trial approvals during the Year. XZP-5955 shows high activity against
a variety of TRK and ROS1 resistant mutations including TRKA G595R,
TRKA G667C, TRKC G623R and ROS1 G2032R. XZP-5955 entered into
clinical development, which will further enrich Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s
innovative drug R&D pipeline. Its therapeutic areas covered a wide range
of solid tumors such as lung cancer, gastric cancer and sarcoma, with
potential clinical value in both adults and children. XZP-5955 is expected
to be the core product of dual targeted tyrosine kinase inhibitor for the
second generation of NTRK and ROS1 with independent intellectual
property rights in China.

In the field of digestion, the NDA for Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s self-developed
Anaprazole Sodium Enteric Dissolve Tablets has been accepted by
the NMPA. Anaprazole sodium, the only Chinese domestically self-
developed PPI inhibitor of the new generation, is used to treat duodenal
ulcers. Clinical data shows that the safety and symptom relief abilities
of anaprazole sodium developed by the Group are the best-in-class
among similar products. This NDA for anaprazole sodium was the
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first NDA submitted by Xuanzhu Biopharm, and its acceptance marks
a new milestone for Xuanzhu Biopharm to move from research and
development to commercialization.

In addition, Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s self-developed XZP-5610 and XZP-
6019 for the treatment of non-alcoholic steatohepatitis (“NASH") have
both been approved by the NMPA to conduct clinical trials. Fadanafil,
a new self-developed PDE-5 inhibitor, has obtained IND approval in
relation to indications for Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension (“PAH"). The
R&D progress of various products has been accelerated and the product
pipeline has made rapid progress.

During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm also continuously strengthened the
business development. It cooperated with a number of biotechnology
companies to introduce blockbuster products and enrich its own
product pipeline during the Year. In September, Xuanzhu Biopharm and
SignalChem entered into a collaboration and licensing agreement for
the development and commercialization interests of SLC-391 (currently
known as XZB-0004), a highly potent and highly selective AXL inhibitor,
in the Greater China region, pursuant to which the Group will obtain
the exclusive research, development, manufacture and commercialization
rights for each indication of XZB-0004 in the field of oncology treatment
in the Greater China region (Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan). XZB-0004 is a potent, highly selective and orally bioavailable
small molecule AXL inhibitor. Current preclinical investigational data
shows that it is a “Best-in-Class” inhibitor and has the potential to
become a “First-in-Class” (“FIC") inhibitor.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, in August 2021, Xuanzhu Biopharm and the U.S. company
HB have agreed to collaborate and will jointly develop a novel targeted
protein degradation technology, including three potential non-druggable
targets for FICs, pioneering the molecular glue degrader pipeline of
innovative drugs. Xuanzhu Biopharm will acquire the right to develop,
manufacture and commercialize the co-developed programs in the
Greater China region. Targeted protein degradation (TPD) is a novel
therapeutic method and it represents a revolutionary drug discovery
opportunity and is anticipated to bring about a paradigm shift in modern
healthcare.

During the Year, Xuanzhu Kangming, a large molecule biological
drug platform of Xuanzhu Biopharm, and WuXi XDC (“WuXi XDC"),
a global CDMO company dedicated to end-to-end bioconjugates
services under WuXi Biologics (Cayman) Inc. (stock code: 2269), have
reached a collaboration on the development and manufacturing of an
innovative oncology drug KM501, a bispecific antibody drug conjugate
(ADC). KM501 bispecific ADC is a bispecific antibody drug conjugate
for the treatment of low and medium expression of HER2 and is
independently developed by Xuanzhu Kangming. It is currently in the
IND enabling stage of development. According to the collaboration
agreement, Xuanzhu Kangming will promote the R&D process of KM501
bispecific ADC through the integrated CMC service of WuXi XDC.
WuXi XDC will provide end-to-end services such as antibody, linker,
payload, analytical method and process development, development
and manufacturing of conjugate drug substances and drug products
to support the IND application of KM501 bispecific ADC. It is expected
that the establishment of this strategic collaboration with WuXi XDC will
accelerate and empower the development of KM501 bispecific ADC, an
innovative bispecific antibody drug conjugate.
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During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm also successfully introduced two
promising self-developed antibody technology platforms, fully expanding
the depth and breadth of the Company’s innovative drug product
pipeline and further enhancing its innovation drive. In early 2021,
Xuanzhu Biopharm completed the acquisition of Combio Pharmaceutical.
Combio Pharmaceutical is an innovation-driven biological company
dedicated to the R&D of multifunctional antibody drugs such as
innovative bispecific antibodies and bispecific ADC. It has two antibody
technology platforms, “Mab Edit” (antibody editing) and “Mebs-
Ig” (antibody editing bispecific antibodies), focusing on the R&D of
innovative antibody drugs for diseases such as major malignant tumors,
immune system diseases, and infectious diseases, which can carry out
the R&D of bispecific antibodies, ADC and other multifunctional antibody
drugs simultaneously.

Furthermore, the development of Xuanzhu Biopharm also has been
recognized by the capital market. In December 2021, Xuanzhu Biopharm
completed a Series B financing of over RMB600 million, led by Sunshine
Life and followed by Efung Capital, China Zhongji Investment, Taijin
Capital, SDIC Taikang, Hai Chuang Fund of Funds, BOC Capital, Jinjiang
Xuanhong, Shaanxi Financial Holding, Wanxin Investment Holding,
DNV Capital, HY Capital and other renowned investment institutions.
The estimated value after the investment is nearly RMB7 billion. This
financing round was a new financing round following RMB963 million
of Series A strategic investment led by CMG-SDIC in August 2020. The
introduction of two rounds of heavyweight investors fully demonstrates
that Xuanzhu Biopharm’s continuous innovation capability and the
Group’s forward-looking layout have been recognized by the capital
market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2.2

Xuanzhu Biopharm is the core for the Group to achieve innovation
driving, transformation and upgrading. In terms of R&D platform
capability, Xuanzhu Biopharm has built two R&D platforms for small
molecule and macro molecule, covering small molecule, monoclonal
antibodies, bispecific antibodies, fusion protein, bispecific antibodies-
ADC, protein degradation and other fields, with the ability to sustain
R&D output. In terms of the layout of its product pipeline, Xuanzhu
Biopharm focuses on the more cutting-edge new drug development
fields of oncology, metabolism, anti-infection and digestion, and is
committed to the development of Class 1.1 innovative drugs. In addition,
leveraging the commercialization capacity of its parent company,
Sihuan Pharmaceutical, Xuanzhu Biopharm is now transforming from
biotechnology to biopharmaceuticals and is gradually becoming a
company with excellent R&D and industrialization capabilities at the
same time. In the future, as Xuanzhu Biopharm further enriches its
product pipeline and advances its product development, it will become
a leading biopharmaceutical company in China with comprehensive and
innovative drug self-development capabilities in both small and macro
molecule fields.

Huisheng Biopharm: the biopharmaceutical leader
with full product coverage in the field of diabetes
and complications

Huisheng Biopharm is a biopharmaceutical company of the Group
focusing on the field of diabetes and complications. After seven
years of construction and development, the company now has a
world-class R&D team of more than 200 people. With extensive
experience in R&D of diabetes drugs, it has built product pipelines
of more than 40 products by using four innovative technology
platforms, covering second-, third- and fourth-generation insulins
(covering basic, premixed and fast-acting products), various oral
hypoglycemic drugs, new targets such as DPP-4, GLP-1 and SGLT-2,
and drugs for complications, etc. It is currently the only company in
China that has achieved full product coverage in the field of diabetes
and complications. Among others, the NDA for insulin aspart injection,
insulin aspart 30 injection and insulin aspart 50 injection have been
accepted by NMPA, and the innovative drug Janagliflozin is ready to
submit NDA. The fourth-generation insulin degludec injection, insulin

deglude and insulin aspart injection and other blockbuster pipelines,
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with their clinical progress leading the industry, are expected to become
the first domestic marketable drugs. Its innovative products continue
to emerge. Under such products, Huisheng Biopharm has a strong
production capacity of over 100 million sticks yearly, ranking among the
top in China, which can support an annual output value of 10 billion,
and brings cost-effective production advantages by virtue of its large
production capacity and high quality characteristics. Riding on the strong
sales resources of its parent company Sihuan Pharmaceutical, Huisheng
Biopharm also has the capacity for rapidly increasing sales volume. With
full-coverage and multi-level product layout, leading and blockbuster
R&D pipelines, and strong and comprehensive strategic resources,
Huisheng Biopharm is gradually becoming a biopharmaceutical leader in
comprehensive solutions for diabetes and complications.

During the Year, progress in the development of a number of Huisheng
Biopharm'’s products reaped milestones. Among them, the NDA of
Insulin Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart 30 Injection and Insulin Aspart
50 Injection developed by Huisheng Biopharm has been accepted by
NMPA. Huisheng Biopharm is currently the only company in China
that has simultaneously applied for the biologics license of all types
of insulin aspart and with all applications having been accepted, fully
demonstrating the comprehensiveness and integrity of the Company’s
R&D strategy to meet the clinical needs of different insulin treatment
options for diabetic patients.

In addition, the insulin degludes and insulin aspart injection developed
by Huisheng Biopharm has successfully obtained the approval for the
conduction of clinical trials from the NMPA, with its research and
development progress being the first with respect to biosimilar in China.
Apart from Novo Nordisk’s already marketed original product Ryzodeg,
no other product from other companies has been approved for clinical
trials in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Furthermore, the liraglutide project developed by Huisheng Biopharm
for the treatment of type 2 diabetes and obesity, has completed its
phase | clinical study and obtained preliminary bioequivalence results on
pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics.

China is the world's largest country with diabetes, and according to data
from flow surveys, the number of diabetes patients in China reached
129.8 million in 2020, with a prevalence rate of 12.8%. Diabetes is a
chronic disease requiring lifelong use of hypoglycemic drugs. Insulin
and its analogues play an important role in the treatment of diabetes
and there is a massive demand in the whole market, with a current
market share of over 50%. With the gradual move towards the listing of
Huisheng Biopharm's products, it will also help the Group to accelerate
the opening up of its diabetes product pipeline, quickly capture the
market share, enhance the Group’s comprehensive strength and
significantly strengthen the Group’s core competitiveness.

During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Porton Pharma on 27 April 2021. Pursuant to the
strategic cooperation agreement, Huisheng Biopharm and Porton Pharma
will strategically cooperate in the therapeutic areas of diabetes and
related complications in relation to the development and supply APIs and
the co-development and launch of related preparations. In this strategic
cooperation, Porton Pharma will provide APIs and comprehensive services
for the development of preparations for Huisheng Biopharm, and will
also actively explore cooperation models in the strategic supply of APIs
as well as in the development of preparation techniques and process
in the future. It is believed that both parties will give full play to their
advantages in pharmaceutical production, sales, R&D and services, to
enhance the competitiveness in the pharmaceutical market of both
Huisheng Biopharm and Porton Pharma, and to achieve advantage
complement, mutual benefit and joint development.
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2.3

Huisheng Biopharm is one of the two innovative drug platforms
meticulously incubated by the Group. Targeting the diabetes and
complications market with huge potential in China, in the future, with
the gradual implementation of Huisheng Biopharm’s product pipelines
and the continued emergence of innovative products, Huisheng
Biopharm will become the leading biopharmaceutical company in
China to achieve full product coverage in the field of diabetes and
complications, reaching continuous value amplification.

CDMO/CMO: “API + CDMO” integrated strategy to
gain new growth momentum

At present, the competition among domestic pharmaceutical enterprises
is fierce, so the capacity optimization, industry integration and
structural upgrading of Chinese pharmaceutical enterprises will become
increasingly important. Benefiting from global capacity transfer and
domestic policy dividends, China’s CDMO market is expected to reach
US$52.6 billion in 2024, and is expected to reach the level of US$100
billion in the future.

In 2020, the Group revitalized its redundant API production resources
and production capacity from its subsidiaries. Relying on the Group's
strengths in R&D and industrialization of pharmaceutical intermediates
and APIs, and implementing the integrated strategy of “API + CDMO",
the Group has established an APl + CDMO platform to gain new growth
momentum and aims to become a leading integrated CDMO company
in the field of pharmaceutical intermediates and APIs. After a year of
development, the Group has successfully built a CDMO/CMO platform
with approximately 180 projects and approximately 40 customers. The
Group has also cooperated with domestic leading CDMO companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2.4

In the field of API intermediates, the Group has a rich customer base,
including over 100 overseas customers, of which 50% are from Japan
and South Korea, 20% from Europe, and 20% from India, including
Kaneka, the generic drug company in Japan, Hanmi and Dong-A, the
generic drug companies in South Korea, and more than half of the
top 20 factories of companies in India, which all maintained long-
term and friendly partnership with the Group; it also has nearly 50
Chia Tai
Tianging Pharmaceutical, Yangtze River Pharmaceutical, and Kelun

customers in China, including Hengrui Pharmaceutical,

Pharmaceutical, etc.

In addition, the Group has started the equity acquisition of Jilin Aotong
Chemical Co., Ltd. and lJilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. through lJilin
Shengtong, a subsidiary of the Company since 2020. As at 31 December
2021, the Group held 100% equity interest in Jilin Aotong and 75%
equity interest in Jilin Jiahui, respectively. The acquisition will be taken as
the key link in Group's entire industry chain layout.

Generic drugs: stable “cash cow” of the Group to
guarantee long-term and steady development of the
Group

As a strong “cash cow” business of the Group, the sustained and steady
growth of generic drug business further supports the continuous growth
of the Group's revenue and profit, and also provides strong support
for the development of innovative drug platform. During the Year,
the income from generic drug business segment reached RMB2,598.1
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 18.2%.

Generic drug platform of the Group has nearly 100 products under
development, dozens of which are high-end generic drugs with high
technical barriers. By accelerating the pace of product cultivation and
enriching existing product pipeline, the generic drug business has
become an important “cash cow” business for the Group.
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During the Year, the Pantoprazole Sodium Injection (40mg/unit) and
Octreotide Acetate Injection (Tml: 0.05mg, Tml: 0.1mg, Tml: 0.3mg)
developed by the Group have obtained the notice of approval of
supplemental applications on the products that passed the consistency
evaluation issued by the NMPA. In addition, eight drugs developed by
the Group such as Rivaroxaban Tablet (10mg and 15mg), Ambroxol
Hydrochloride Injection (2ml: 15mg), Lacosamide Tablets (50mg and
100mg), Moxifloxacin Hydrochloride and Sodium Chloride Injection,
Caspofungin Acetate for Injection (50mg), Clopidogrel Bisulfate Tablets
(75mg), Fondaparinux Sodium Injection (0.5ml: 2.5mg) and Ticagrelor
Tablet (60mg and 90mg) have obtained the Drug Registration Certificate
issued by the NMPA, approving the manufacture of the drugs.

During the Year, Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a general marketing services agreement with
Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd. for the products relating to the Metoprolol
Succinate Sustained-release Tablets (23.75mg/47.5mg/95mg/190mg) on
30 March 2021, and the Group owned the exclusive marketing rights
for the Product in the mainland of the PRC. Subsequently, Metoprolol
Succinate Sustained-release Tablets (47.5mg, 95mg) were granted the
Drug Registration Certificate from NMPA in September 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The key core product, Kelinao (Cinepazide Maleate Injection), was
approved for a new indication through a large-scale evidence-based
clinical study with 1,301 cases, demonstrating its clinical value in
treatment for cerebrovascular disease and is the only approved drug
in the field of stroke treatment since post-marketing clinical studies
were conducted in China. The Group is expected to continue to get
Kelinao back to NRDL through evidence-based medicine and achieve a
resurgence in sales. The high technology barrier product Non-PVC Solid-
liquid Double Chamber Infusion Soft Bag (the “Non-PVC Solid-liquid
Double Chamber Bag”), which includes “non-PVC solid-liquid double
chamber bag for cefuroxime sodium/sodium chloride injection”, “non-
PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for ceftazidime/sodium chloride
injection” and “non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for cefodizime
sodium/sodium chloride injection”, as well as “non-PVC solid-liquid
double chamber bag for cefodizime sodium/5% glucose injection”,
has obtained drug registration approval. This product has a high R&D
technology barrier with a long development period and is expected to
achieve rapid growth after its official launch.

In the fields of modern Chinese medicine and industrial hemp, lJilin
Sihuan Aokang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, has
seized the development opportunity and prioritized a comprehensive
layout. In the field of pharmaceutical manufacturing, Aokang Yaoye has
164 production varieties of Chinese medicines and chemical medicines
with approval numbers, of which 128 varieties are national medical
insurance varieties, and 4 national exclusive varieties are “Haitianyishen
Capsule”, “Niuhuang Qingnao Kaigiao Pills”, “Caoxian Hepatitis B
Capsule” and “Gandan Shuangging Granules”. In the field of industrial
hemp, aiming at the R&D and industrialization of high-content CBD
medicinal and medical materials, the Group’s subsidiary Jilin Aokang
Yaoye explores the entire industrial chain from upstream cultivation,
extraction and processing to downstream application, and is committed
to building an R&D, production and marketing center of industrial hemp
in northern China.

With the gradual implementation of production and sales layout of
these products and relying on the Group's inherent high-efficiency and
low-cost production platform, as well as its nationwide professional
and efficient academic marketing platform, these newly launched
products will quickly penetrate into the market and achieve high-speed
“monetization”, further ensuring the continuous growth of revenue and
profit of the generic drug business segment.
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Prospects and Future Growth Strategies

The medical aesthetic business has brought vigorous revenue
and profit growth, and the pharmaceutical business has
become an innovative but not “money burning “drug R&D,
production and sales integration platform

The business and corporate value of the Group will further realize upgrade in 2022
based on the high growth of 2021.

The Group's medical aesthetic business bid farewell to the single product distribution
sales model and grew into an international medical aesthetic platform integrating
R&D, production and sales with a full product matrix covering the life cycle of beauty
lovers. The domestic research institutions of the Group will continue to promote the
R&D of medical aesthetic products. Dozens of class Il products, class Il PLLA filler
(ZEEET) and PCL filler (A Z&1) in the self-developed product pipeline are expected
to take place successively in the next few years. In addition, the Group is using the
Meiyen Laboratory Inc (XEEEERZE) established in the United States as the Group's
overseas product R&D and introduction center. It will continue to introduce overseas
cutting-edge medical aesthetic technologies and products, and bring them back to
China for technology transformation and product production and sales. The Group
will inherit the high-quality and leading production capacity of Sihuan in the past,
realize the large-scale production of various new medical aesthetic products through
three domestic production bases, and rapidly increase its volume of new products
in the market through the Company’'s experienced sales team and professional
marketing network covering the whole country. Looking forward to the future
development direction of the Group’s medical aesthetic business, we will learn the
development experience from international giant Allergan, and achieve the goal
of building a leading platform for the domestic medical aesthetic industry through
comprehensive product matrix,

“self-developed + BD” dual engine-driven and

overseas high-quality mergers and acquisitions.

The Group’s pharmaceutical business will further focus on and accelerate the process
of transformation and development to independent R&D and innovative drug
enterprises. The innovative drug platform is on the threshold of realizing a leap from
product R&D to commercial development, and launching the first NDA respectively.

Xuanzhu Biopharm will continue to promote the product R&D and insistently adhere
to independent R&D and continuous innovation. It aims at transforming the R&D
investment into profit and from Biotech to Biopharma, so as to become a leading
innovative drug company focusing on the field of tumor drugs as well as small
molecules and large molecules with the capabilities to develop comprehensive

innovative new drugs in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Huisheng Biopharm focuses on R&D, production and sales of drugs for diabetes and
complications. Through a complete layout of multi mechanisms, multiple varieties of
diabetes pipelines, we provide full coverage and comprehensive treatment solutions.
With its localized production and cost advantages, Huisheng Biopharm will build
a nationwide online and offline dimensional sales network to further achieve the
strategic goal of building a biopharmaceutical leader in the field of diabetes and
complications with a full product matrix coverage.

The implementation of the Group’s CDMO/CMO business will also be gradually
included into sequence projects, relying on its high-quality customer resources and
adhering to the integration strategy of “API + CDMQO" to achieve sustained high
business growth. The Group’s generic drug business will continue to promote the
large-scale growth of the registration, listing and sales of high-quality and high-
end generic drugs, continuously being the Group's steady “cash cow” to ensure the
long-term and steady development of the Group. Through its strong registration
ability, production capabilities of high efficiency, low cost and full coverage of various
dosage forms and a comprehensive and professional academic marketing platform,
it ensures the successful listing of existing products and new products and the
continuous growth of sales volume, so as to provide the Company with stable and
sustainable cash flow. At the same time, it ensures that the innovative drug sector
can be continuously invested in R&D so as to promote the release of enterprises value
without relying on external emergency aid.

Through the continuous implementation and commercialization of high-quality
product pipelines in the medical aesthetic and pharmaceutical sectors, combined
with the strong cash generating capacity of the Company’s high-end generic drug
business, and relying on the Group's strong registration capacity, high efficiency, low
cost and full coverage of various dosage forms and a comprehensive, professional and
efficient academic marketing platform, it will help the rapid commercialization of a
number of new products to be launched, and promote the continuous high growth
and value amplification of the Group's overall business.

Conclusion

Sihuan Pharmaceutical always insists on being a friend of time and builds the Group's
product pipeline with high-quality ingenuity. In 2022, both medical aesthetic and
pharmaceutical business will step in the product harvesting period. The self-developed
product pipeline will be gradually launched on the market or achieve phased clinical
trial results, and more projects in product introduction, acquisition and merger will
be gradually implemented, in order to further expand the product pipeline, build a
complete product matrix and grow steadily. The Group will continue to implement
the two-wheel drive strategy of “medical aesthetic plus pharmaceutical” with high
efficiency, further achieve the strategic goal of building China’s leading medical
aesthetic and biopharmaceutical enterprise, and bring more and better investment
returns to the respected shareholders and investors who have always firmly believed
in and supported the Group.
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Financial Review

Revenue

Revenue of the Group for the Year increased by 33.6% to approximately RMB3,291.3
million (2020: RMB2,464.2 million). Among it, the revenue from medical aesthetic
products increased significantly by 1,383.3% to approximately RMB399.0 million
(2020: RMB26.9 million). In addition, revenue from innovative medicine and
other medicine increased by 23.0% to approximately RMB294.2 million (2020:
RMB239.1 million), whereas the remaining revenue from sales of generic medicine,
which contributed to 78.9% of total revenue, increased by 18.2% (approximately
RMB399.9 million) to approximately RMB2,598.1 million (2020: RMB2,198.2 million).

Cost of sales
Cost of sales of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately RMB842.8 million
(2020: RMB549.8 million), accounting for approximately 25.6% of the total revenue.

Gross profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to approximately RMB2,448.5 million (2020:
RMB1,914.4 million) with an increase of approximately RMB534.1 million, mainly due to
the significant growth in the revenue. Overall gross profit margin declined from 77.7%
for the last year to 74.4% for the Year. The lower gross profit margin was resulted from

centralised procurement which caused a slight decrease in selling prices.

Other gains - net
Other gains — net for the Year increased by approximately RMB5.3 million to
approximately RMB254.9 million (2020: RMB249.6 million). It was mainly due to an

increase in government grants.

Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB59.2 million (2020: Nil). The gain was related to a deemed disposal of Jilin
Zesheng. For further details, please refer to section headed “Material acquisitions and
disposals” below.

Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB547.5 million
(2020: RMB368.8 million). The increase of approximately RMB178.7 million compared
with last year was mainly due to continuing efforts in expanding and developing the
market share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year increased by 24.0% to approximately RMB607.5
million (2020: RMB489.8 million) as a result of an increase in overheads and activities
of the Group.

R&D expenses

R&D expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB868.1 million (2020:
RMB729.2 million) which represented an increase of 19.0%. It was mainly
attributable to more efforts in R&D activities as a result of transformation of

innovative R&D.

Other expenses
Other expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB36.6 million (2020:
RMB34.1 million).

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from continuing operations of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB486.0 million (2020: RMB765.8 million).

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group for the Year increased by 15.7% to approximately
RMB253.3 million (2020: RMB219.0 million). The increase was mainly attributable to higher
taxable profits generated compared with last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB416.5 million (2020: RMB473.4 million).

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB183.7 million (2020: RMB38.5 million of profit). The turnaround was mainly due to

changes in shareholding structure of certain subsidiaries.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group maintained strong financial position. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB5,682.4 million (31
December 2020: RMB4,604.0 million). As at the same date, bank borrowings of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1,013.2 million (31 December 2020: RMB719.1
million) and borrowings from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB31.5 million (31 December 2020: RMB32.0 million).
Accordingly, the Group maintained net cash of approximately RMB4,637.7 million (31
December 2020: RMB3,852.9 million). The Group’s debt-to-equity ratio, expressed as
a percentage of borrowings over equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
12.6%.

In general, the Group places its excess cash into interest-bearing bank accounts. The
Group may use extra cash for short-term investments for higher returns. Thus, the
Group has entered into agreements with certain banks for surplus cash investment.
According to the terms of the agreements signed, the total amount of investment
conducted by the Group for the Year was approximately RMB20,042.0 million. The
investments made by the Group were short-term in nature and mainly consisted
of financial planning products purchased from certain state-owned banks. At their
discretion, issuing banks for the above-mentioned financial planning products
may invest in financial instruments such as government bonds, discounted bank
acceptance bills and commercial acceptance bills and bank deposits. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio in respect of the investments in each bank (after
aggregation according to rules 14.22 and 14.23 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange) separately is less than 5%
as at the time of the investments according to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules, such
investments do not constitute notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recognised total financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB109.3 million, comprising principal of
investment of approximately RMB108.0 million and approximately RMB1.3 million of
interest income, in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at the date of
this annual report, total amount of sold/redeemed investment principal amounted to
approximately RMBO0.6 million.

The Group had sufficient cash as at 31 December 2021. The Directors are of the
opinion that the Group does not have any significant capital risk.

R+=A=+—A8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —ERCTE
2021 2020
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RERBELZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,682,425 4,604,041
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Inventories

As at 31 December 2021, inventories amounted to approximately RMB715.3 million
(31 December 2020: RMB495.9 million). The inventory turnover period for the
year was 259 days (31 December 2020: 296 days). The increase in inventories was
attributable to new products for sales and more pharmaceutical ingredients kept for
internal production demand.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade receivables and notes receivable include credit sales of its products
to be paid by its distributors. Other receivables of the Group mainly consist of
prepayments to suppliers and amounts due from related parties. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s trade and other receivables were approximately RMB1,234.4
million (31 December 2020: RMB971.5 million). Such increase was mainly attributable
to amounts due from third parties.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment include buildings, production and
electronic equipment, vehicles and construction in progress. As at 31 December
2021, the net book value of the property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB3,304.9 million (31 December 2020: RMB3,053.3 million). The increase during
the Year was mainly attributable to factory construction and purchase of new
equipment.

Goodwiill

The Group’s goodwill arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries and business
combinations. As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of goodwill was
approximately RMB28.4 million (31 December 2020: RMB12.3 million).

Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets mainly comprise customer relationships, deferred
development costs, product development in progress and trademark and software.
The deferred development costs and product development in progress mainly
referred to the acquisition of several drug R&D projects and its R&D projects featuring
independent development.

As at 31 December 2021, net intangible assets amounted to approximately RMB595.9
million (31 December 2020: RMB505.6 million).
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Trade and other payables

The Group's trade and other payables mainly comprise trade payables, deposit
payables, accrued expenses and others. As at 31 December 2021, trade and other
payables amounted to approximately RMB1,971.3 million (31 December 2020:
RMB1,830.2 million). The increase of approximately RMB141.1 million was mainly
attributable to the increase in accrued reimbursement to distributors and other
payables.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (31
December 2020: Nil).

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had neither entered into any off-balance
sheet arrangements nor commitments to provide guarantees for any payment
obligations with any third party. The Group did not have any variable interests in any
unconsolidated entities which provide financing or liquidity funding, or incur market
risk or provide credit support, or engage in the provision of leasing or hedging or R&D
services to the Group.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total capital commitment was approximately
RMB468.5 million. It was mainly set aside for purchase of property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, notes receivable,
wealth management products and other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain PRC reputable
financial institutions and high-quality international financial institutions outside
Mainland China. All those irrevocable bank bills, classified as notes receivable, are
issued by banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There was no recent history
of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation to these financial
institutions.
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In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk and has policies in place to ensure that certain cash advance has been received
upon the agreement of the related sales orders with customers. For those with credit
periods granted, the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors. It also undertakes
certain monitoring procedures to ensure that proper follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group regularly performs aging analysis, assesses credit
risks and estimates the recoverability regarding such receivables based on historical
data and cash collection history of groups of trade receivables bearing similar credit
risk.

Wealth management products are the bank financial products issued by certain
PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no recent history of default and the
executive directors of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk
related to the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors is assessed by taking
into account their financial position, relationship with the Group, credit history and
other factors. Management will also regularly review the recoverability of these other
receivables and follow up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive
Directors are of the opinion that the default by counterparties is low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s functional currency is RMB and financial instruments are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group has some cash balances mainly denominated in
United States Dollar (“USD"”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"). It is expected that any
fluctuation of these foreign currencies’ exchange rates would not have material effect
on the operation of the Group. In addition, dividend payment in foreign currencies
converted from RMB is subject to foreign exchange rules and regulations promulgated
by the PRC government. The Group would closely monitor such exchange risk from

time to time.

During the Year, the Group did not purchase any foreign exchange, interest rate
derivative products or relevant hedging tools.

Treasury policy

The Group finances its ordinary operations mainly with internally generated resources.
The principal objective of the Group’s capital management is to maintain its ability
to operate on a continuous basis. The Group regularly reviews its capital structure
to ensure that the Group has sufficient financial resources to support its business
operations.
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Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure mainly includes purchase of property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and intangible assets. For the Year, the
Group's capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB725.6 million, of which
approximately RMB601.0 million and RMB124.6 million were spent on purchase of
property, plant and equipment and purchase of or self-development of intangible
assets, respectively. For the Year, the Group’s investment in capital expenditure
for R&D amounted to approximately RMB184.7 million, of which approximately
RMB119.1 million was spent on property, plant and equipment. The remaining
approximately RMB65.6 million related to, the purchase of, and self-development of

intangible assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals
During the Year, the Group acquired assets, liabilities, employee resource and
contract rights from Combio Pharmaceutical at a consideration of RMB131.0 million.

For further details, please refer to note 36 to the financial statements.

On 31 December 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Genesis at a
consideration of USD3.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB19.1 million). For
further details, please refer to note 36 to the financial statements.

The interest in Jilin Zesheng was diluted during the year ended 31 December 2021 as
a result of the capital injection from a third-party investor. For further details, please
refer to notes 20 and 37 to the financial statements.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets
Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged certain assets to secure banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries. For further details, please refer to note 33 to the

financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human resources and remuneration of employees

Human resources are indispensable assets to the Group’s success in a competitive
environment. The Group is committed to providing competitive remuneration
packages to all the employees and regularly reviewing human resources policies,
to encourage employees to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and promoting the sustainable growth of the Company. The Group has also
adopted share option scheme and share award scheme to recognise and reward the
contribution of the employees for the benefit of the Group’s operations and future
development.

The Group continues to promote the building of talent training and development
system, and conducts online and offline training based on the competency standards
for positions at different levels to promote the cultivation and development of talents
in the Group and ensure continuous supply of various types of talents.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 4,282 employees. For the Year, the Group's
total salary and related costs were approximately RMB716.5 million (2020: RMB591.5
million). Salary for employees was determined based on their job nature, personal
performance and the market trends. The Group provides basic social insurance and
housing accumulation fund for company employees as required by the PRC law.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Che Fengsheng, aged 60, is our executive Director and chairman of the
Company (the “Chairman”) and was appointed to the Board on 18 May 2006. He is
a co-founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management, strategic
planning and business development of the Group and is instrumental to the Group's
growth and business expansion since its establishment in 2001. Prior to the Group’s
establishment, Dr. Che had more than 8 years of experience as a medical doctor/
neurologist and more than 20 years of experience in the sales and marketing of
pharmaceutical products and the management of pharmaceutical companies. From
1997 to 2001, Dr. Che was a general manager of Hainan Kang Tong Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. where he was in charge of the company’s overall management. From 1995
to 1997, Dr. Che was the assistant general manager and vice manager (marketing)
of Shenzhen City New Special Pharmaceutical Products Co., Ltd. where he was
responsible for the marketing and overall management of the company’s business.
Between 1993 and 1995, Dr. Che was the product promotion manager and East
China Regional manager of Shenzhen City Healthcare Pharmaceutical Company, in
charge of sales and marketing. From 1991 to 1993, Dr. Che held the position of
chief neurologist and lecturer in First Military Medical University, Zhu Jiang Hospital,
Guangzhou City, PRC. Dr. Che was a neurologist and an assistant lecturer at the
Fourth Military Medical University in Xi‘an City, PRC and at the Fourth Military Medical
University, Xi Jing Hospital in Xi'an City, PRC from 1984 to 1991 respectively. Dr.
Che was the vice-chairman of several committees and associations including China
Political Science Training Centre, China Medical Economics Magazine Board and
the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association. Dr. Che is also a deputy supervisor of the
Hainan Food and Drug Working Committee in the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association
as well as a specially appointed research member of the China Enterprise Reform
and Development Research Institute. In 2006, he was awarded the title of one of
the Top 10 New and Enterprising Businessmen in Hainan Province by the Hainan
Province Commerce Association, the Hainan Industry & Economics Association and
the Evaluation Committee of Top 10 Leading Businessmen and Top 10 New and
Enterprising Businessmen in Industry and Commerce in Hainan. He was vice chairman
of the Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber of the All-China Federation of Industry and
Commerce from 2010 to 2011. He won the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur Award for
Life Science Industry of China in 2012. He was awarded the National Labour Day
Medal in 2014. He was appointed as the director for the Fourth Session of the board
of the Beijing Society of Biomedical Engineering in 2014. He was recognised as the
National Labour Model in 2015. Dr. Che received his Bachelor of Medicine (Aviation)
and Master of Medicine (Neurology) from the Fourth Military Medical University, Xi'an
City, PRC, in 1984 and 1990 respectively. He also received an Executive Master of
Business Administration from China Europe International Business School in 1999.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Guo Weicheng, aged 58, is our executive Director, deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. He was appointed to our Board on 18
May 2006 and is a co-founder of the Group. Dr. Guo is responsible for the overall
operations of the Group, sales and marketing and our R&D activities, with a focus on
strategic planning, particularly in relation to mergers and acquisitions and product
collaborations. He has also become responsible for the overall operations of Shenzhen
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. after it was acquired in 2007. Dr. Guo has been
instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion since our establishment
in 2001. Prior to our establishment, Dr. Guo had more than 4 years of experience as
a general surgeon and more than 20 years of experience in the sales and marketing
of pharmaceutical products. From 1992 to 1993, Dr. Guo held the position of chief
surgeon in Guangzhou Military 177 Hospital. Dr. Guo was a surgeon and an assistant
lecturer at the Fourth Military Medical University, Tang Du Hospital, Xi‘an City,
PRC from 1986 to 1989. Dr. Guo received his Bachelor of Medicine and Master of
Medicine (General Surgery) from the Fourth Military Medical University, PRC in 1986
and 1992, respectively.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong, aged 60, is our executive Director and was appointed to the
Board on 20 April 2018. He is in charge of the Group’s investment and mergers
and acquisitions. He joined the Group in 2005 and was first appointed to the Board
as a non-executive Director on 18 May 2006 until 8 December 2017. Dr. Zhang
has more than 10 years of experience as a medical doctor. From 1983 to 1992, Dr.
Zhang worked as a medical doctor in Shenzhen People’s Hospital, one of the largest
hospitals in Shenzhen City, PRC. Dr. Zhang obtained an Undergraduate Certificate in
Medical Treatment from Shantou Medical College (llIZEE&E2ZRIEALT) (now known
as Shantou University Medical College (I8 A E288£2p7)) in 1983. In 1992, Dr. Zhang
was conferred the professional title of Attending Physician by the Shenzhen City Title
Conferment Reform Leadership Group (731177 B 2k 48 &/ |\ 48).
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Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, aged 48, is our executive Director, chief financial officer and
one of the joint company secretaries and was appointed to the Board on 8 December
2017. Mr. Choi joined the Group in 2006 and is responsible for overseeing and
managing the accounting and finance functions of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Choi gained his finance and accounting experience at listed companies
and Deloitte. Mr. Choi received a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) from
Nelson Polytechnic (now known as Nelson Marlborough Institute of Technology),
New Zealand in 1997. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK) and also a member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of Singapore. Mr. Choi did not hold any directorship in any listed companies during
the past three years.

Ms. Chen Yanling, aged 44, is our executive Director and the person in charge of
the secretariat of the Group’s Board of Directors and was appointed to the Board on
20 April 2018. Her main responsibilities are to manage all matters on the Board, the
daily matters relating to the listing of the Company and matters on the management
of the Group in Hong Kong, Macau and overseas companies. She joined the Group
in March 2006 and has served in the Group for 16 years. Since joining the Group
in 2006, she has been working as an assistant to the Chairman of the Group and
the secretariat of the Board. Prior to joining the Group, she worked as an English
translation officer at the information centre of Guangzhou Tourism Bureau in 2001.
In 2002, she worked as an assistant to general manager at Yip's Ink & Chemicals
(Zhongshan) Company Ltd. (ZEECHE2& (1L ) B AR]) and was in charge of the daily
management of the general manager’s office as well as planning and promotion.
In 2004, she worked as an assistant to the president of Guangzhou Culturecom
BN EEZARAR]) and was in charge of the daily management
of the presidents office, planning and budgeting, media resources integration and

Company Ltd.

development, and maintenance, etc.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Patrick Sun, aged 63, is our independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 7 October 2010. Mr. Sun is currently an independent
non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (stock code: 135) and
Ferretti S.p.A. (stock code: 9638), both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Sun was an independent non-executive director of CRRC Corporation Limited
(stock code: SH601766 and HK1766) and China Railway Construction Corporation
Limited (Stock code: SH601186 and HK1186), both of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange. He also previously served as an
independent non-executive director of China NT Pharma Group Company Limited
(stock code: 1011) and Trinity Limited (stock code: 891) (both of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange). He was formerly the chairman of the Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies from 2013 to 2015. He was a member of the Takeovers & Mergers
Panel and the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures Exchange,
Deputy Convenor/Chairman of the Listing Committee and a member of the Council
of the Stock Exchange. He was previously the Senior Country Officer and Head of
Investment Banking for Hong Kong of JPMorgan Chase, group executive director and
Head of Investment Banking for Greater China at Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited.
Mr. Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, United
States with a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics in 1981. Mr. Sun is a fellow
of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 70, is our independent non-executive Director and
was appointed to the Board on 4 September 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Tsang was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China. He
has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial public
offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang is currently an independent non-
executive director of a number of companies, including China Merchants China
Direct Investments Limited (stock code: 133), TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 2283), CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1566) and Shirble
Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (stock code: 312) (all of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tsang is currently an independent director of HUYA Inc.
(which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, NYSE: HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an
independent director of Agria Corporation (formerly listed on the New York Stock
Exchange) from August 2011 to October 2017, a director of PGG Wrightson Limited
(a company listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange) from December 2014 to
October 2017 and an independent non-executive director of Ping An Securities Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 231) from February 2016 to March 2020 (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tsang received a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.

Dr. Zhu Xun, aged 64, is our independent non-executive Director and was appointed
to the Board on 20 February 2014. Dr. Zhu is a native of Changchun City. From
1995 to 2000, he served as the vice principal of Norman Bethune University of
Medical Science. From 2000 to 2003, he served as a deputy secretary general of the
Changchun Municipal Government and from 2004 to 2006, he served as a special
assistant to the mayor of Changchun Municipal Government. Prior to joining the
Group, Dr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He is
currently the chairman of the board of directors of the Tongxieyi New Drugs Talent
Club* ([R5 B #T &5 4 B443]), the Chief of Medicine and Strategy* (22 B(#%), and
the Honorary Principal of Shell University* (B 5% AX22%). He is also a special medical
expert of Advantech Capital Investment* (i&IhE ),
EINBUE YD), a senior consultant of Changchun Jinsai
| B 58 ),

an independent director of
Shenzhen ChipScreen BioS (
Pharmaceutical* (E%%%i% ), and Shenzhen Osa Pharmaceutical* (&

*  For identification purposes only

* B
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Dr. Zhu founded Changchun Medical Biotechnology Center* (&% &8 %A ¥R flTrh
L) in 2001 as the supervisor of the center. In the same year, he founded Changchun
(REBLEDEMA
of the board. Funded with 8 million US dollars from the British listed company Cathay

Boxun Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* 7l) and served as the chairman
International Pharmaceutical Limited in 2003. Dr. Zhu founded Changchunbotai* (&
A 182R) as chief executive officer until 2010.

Dr. Zhu has served as a member of the National New Drug Advisory Committee* (B
R AZE B €), a member of the expert review group of the Life Science Division
of the National Natural Science Foundation of China (X BAREBE ST E 4+ mEt
BIERTEMME), a member of the expert advisory group in Biotechnology of the
National Development and Reform Commission (BIZRZ2hZ £ WRMTERE ALK
8), a member of the review group of the Innovation Fund for SMEs of the Ministry of
Science and Technology of the PRC (BIREHZ I/ NMEERITAIFESFEZ 8) and
a member of the China Medical Science Awards Committee* (FFEEEEER| B ME TR T
B@Z8), the founding editor of the Chinese Journal of Experimental Diagnostics*
(FEIEBDEMFEIG ER),
Progress* (2R 558]E4R), the editorial board of the Chinese Journal of Cancer
Biotherapy* (F BEREYAEMEARE), and the editorial board of the Chinese
Journal of Immunology* (1 Bl % & 25 7R E).

the deputy editor of the Journal of Pharmaceutical

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong, is our executive Director, chief financial officer and joint
company secretary. Please refer to this section headed “Executive Director” for his
biography.

Ms. Mok Ming Wai, is our joint company secretary. Ms. Mok was appointed in
December 2013. Ms. Mok is an executive director of corporate services of Tricor
Services Limited. Ms. Mok has over 25 years of professional and in-house experience
in company secretarial field. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the United Kingdom.

*  For identification purposes only

* EHMEE
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Period
From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Year").

Good corporate governance is favorable for the improvement of the overall
performance, transparency and accountability of the Company and is crucial to the
modern corporate administration. The Board, in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”), devotes considerable efforts to maintaining and
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate
image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the reporting period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Kim Jin Ha resigned as the non-executive Director on 6 August 2021
due to his desire to devote more time and dedication to focus on other business
commitments and engagements. Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material relationship among the members of the
Board. The biographical information of the members of the Board are set out on
pages 58 to 63 in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”. During
the Year, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated
and such roles are exercised by Dr. Che Fengsheng as the Chairman and Dr. Guo

Weicheng as the CEO.

The Board is responsible for the governance of the Group's strategic development,
determination of the Group's objectives, business strategies and policies, and the
supervision and control of the operation and financial performance in pursuit of
the Group's strategic objectives. Our management team, which possesses extensive
operating experience and industry knowledge, has been delegated by the Board
with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Group.
In addition, the Board has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to the
various Board committees, namely, the audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and risk management committee. Further details of these

Board committees are set out below.

1% & & A& IR A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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The Board convened eight Board meetings during the Year. All Directors were sent
meeting notices, at least 14 days prior to the regular meetings, with the Board
meeting agendas. The views of independent non-executive Directors were actively
solicited by the Company during Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and
Board committees meetings are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective
meetings. All Directors are provided with Board papers and related statistics in a
timely manner, which enabled the Board to make informed decisions on matters
proposed. In addition, all Board members have regularly reviewed the business
documents and information related to the Group.

All Directors are entitled to access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries. The joint company secretaries of the Company are Mr. Choi Yiau Chong,
who is an executive Director and the CFO of the Company, and Ms. Mok Ming Wai.
The primary contact person of Ms. Mok at the Company is Mr. Choi.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. Choi and Ms. Mok, has

undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, during the reporting
period, is stated below:

R B/
BERHREZ
EEEERNH
Attendance/
No. of Board
meetings eligible
to attend
HBTES Executive Directors
BEABEE(ERE) Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman) 8/8
S ERA (B EFERITHBER) Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO) 8/8
o A B BE A Dr. Zhang Jionglong 8/8
ZRBEE(BERMBE) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (CFO) 8/8
PR 3 3% 22 & Ms. Chen Yanling 8/8
FHITES Non-executive Director
HEELEERZTE=-_—FN\ASNBET) Mr. Kim Jin Ha (resigned on 6 August 2021) 2/4
BYKBITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FEEERLE Mr. Patrick Sun 7/8
oI A Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 8/8
KB L Dr. Zhu Xun 8/8
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

With regards to the code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved in such commitments,
the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has currently appointed three independent non-executive Directors.
At least one of the three independent non-executive Directors holds appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. One-third of the members of the Board
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Patrick Sun, being an independent non-
executive Director has renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of one year commencing from 28 October 2021. Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and
Dr. Zhu Xun, being the independent non-executive Directors, have renewed their
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing from 4
September 2021 and 20 February 2022, respectively. The independent non-executive
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or re-election in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws. Each independent non-executive Director has submitted to
the Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent and meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The bye-laws of the Company provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if the number is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation and being eligible, can offer themselves for re-election. In addition, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election. The retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the Shareholders at the
respective general meetings.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng
and Dr. Zhu Xun will retire by rotation and be eligible for re-election as Directors at
the annual general meeting to be held in 2022 (the “2022 AGM").

Since Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong has been an independent non-executive Director for
nine years in 2022, his further appointment will be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by Shareholders at the 2022 AGM pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of
the Code. Mr. Tsang has offered himself for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company before the
expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any claim which such
Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him and the
Company) provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of
removing a Director shall contain a statement of the intention to do so and be served
on such Director 14 days before the meeting and, at such meeting, such Director shall
be entitled to be heard on the motion for his removal.

As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been put in place to
ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in this respect provides
sufficient protection for the interests of Shareholders to a standard commensurate
with the provision of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, the
Directors are committed to complying with the code provision A.6.5 of the Code
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional

development and provided a record of training they received.

BIEER - Hlm

WA RERDE

HEHESHE EREBERER
HENHTE Reading materials

BERIEL like newspapers,
Attending seminar, journals and
conference and updates relevant
workshop related to to corporate
EEHE Name of Directors director’s duties governance
HBTES Executive Directors
B E Dr. Che Fengsheng v v/
204 BE Dr. Guo Weicheng / v/
RN BE B A& Dr. Zhang Jionglong v v/
ERE A Mr. Choi Yiau Chong v v/
PR 3% 22 & Ms. Chen Yanling v/ v/
FHITES Non-executive Director
©HEE LA Mr. Kim Jin Ha v v/
(RZZE=Z—F/\ANHEE) (resigned on 6 August 2021)
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FTELE Mr. Patrick Sun v/ v/
BEREE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong v v/
Kig L Dr. Zhu Xun v v/
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and with its
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent view on
the effectiveness of the financial reporting procedures, internal control and risk
management system of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as required by the Board. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr.
Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun), and is chaired by Mr. Patrick Sun who has a
professional qualification in accountancy.

During the Year, three meetings were held by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s financial reporting matters, reviewed the
internal control system in relation to finance and accounting and submitted
improvement proposals to the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and approved the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the interim results for the period
ended 30 June 2021. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
also reviewed the auditor’s remuneration for 2022 and recommended the Board to
re-appoint Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor for the year of 2022, which is
subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members at the meetings held during
the Year was as follows:

R B/
AERLEEZ
BERH
Attendance/
No. of meetings

BEEHE Name of Directors eligible to attend
FEEEE(ER) Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman) 3/3
EHEE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 3/3
KAE L Dr. Zhu Xun 3/3
SHEEEA(N-_Z-—FE N \ANBEE) Mr. Kim Jin Ha (resigned on 6 August 2021) 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are, among others, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director (Dr. Guo Weicheng) and three independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun) and is chaired
by Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code. During
the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in
accordance with the requirements as stipulated in the Code and concluded that the
Board comprised members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured
check and balance and safeguarded the interests of Shareholders as well as the
public.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify
members of the Board. The Company believes that a diversified perspective can
be achieved through implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The following
measurable objectives were adopted: selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise, professional and educational qualifications, background and
other personal qualities. The ultimate decision will be based on objective criteria,
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors and assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee, had also, taking into consideration the skills, experience and knowledge,
the relevant requirements of the Company and the structure and composition of the
Board, identified, reviewed and nominated, with diligence and care, candidates who
are suitable as Board members of the Company before making final recommendations
to the Board for their final appointment.
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The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members at the meetings held

o during the Year was as follows:
R B
AEREEZ
BRRE
Attendance/
No. of meetings
BEEHE Name of Directors eligible to attend
BENEA(ERE) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman) 2/2
204 B8 Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2
FEERLE Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2
KA E L Dr. Zhu Xun 2/2

REZEGR TR EFTERNEZ TR
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REBBE
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REER
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HoKR HE HEERK
B -ERkEMEARE

18

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination

Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy on 18 March 2019

according to the requirements of the Code. It sets out the criteria and procedures to

be adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as directors

of the Company.

NOMINATION CRITERIA

1. When considering a candidate nominated for directorship or a director’s

proposed re-appointment, the Nomination Committee will have regard to the

following factors:

1.1 age, gender, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and

educational qualifications, background and other personal qualities of

the candidate;

12 HEEgMHEAEKEZITIEZ
PR

13 BEEARAZEHOERE A KM
BITEBRENAZE ~BmE -
JEEEFEZEARRRA RS AR
B g E R ME R AT
BRETSEMEZ AT ERE

14 FEEAREZMSIZREE BE
B il 25 2

1.5 fRZEAMNBLIE

1.2

1.4

1.5

effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient time to effectively

carry out his/her duties. In this regard, the number and nature of offices

held by the candidate in public companies or organizations, and other

executive appointments or significant commitments will be considered;

potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the candidate is

selected,

independence of the candidate;
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1.6

1.7

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an independent non-
executive director, the number of years he/she has already served; and

other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee on
a case by case basis.

NOMINATION PROCEDURES AND PROCESS

2. Subject to the provisions in the Company’s bye-laws, if the Board recognises

the need to appoint an additional director, the following procedures should be

adopted:

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

the Nomination Committee identifies or selects candidates recommended
to the Committee, with or without assistance from external agencies or
the Company, pursuant to the criteria set out above;

the Nomination Committee adopts any process appropriate to evaluate
the candidates, which may include personal interviews, background
checks, presentations or written submissions by the candidates and third
party references,

the Nomination Committee will hold a physical meeting to consider the
matter and avoid the making of decisions by written resolutions unless it
is impractical that a physical meeting be held;

the Nomination Committee provides to the Board with all the
information required including information set out in Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules in relation to the candidates;

before recommendation to the Board, evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board to prepare a description of
the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment, then the
Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the appointment;

the Board deliberates and decides on the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee;

all appointments of director should be confirmed by letter of
appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of the
appointment of the directors, which should be approved by the
Nomination Committee; and
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2.8 pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Listing Rules, where shareholders are
required to vote on electing or re-electing a director, the circular
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting should contain
all the information of the candidates required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

In cases of re-appointments of existing directors, a physical meeting will be held to
consider the re-appointment based on the same criteria set out in above.

NOMINATION BY SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders may also propose a person for election as a director, details of
which are set out in the “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” on the Company’s website.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things, to
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals. The remuneration of the Directors is
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience, and to
prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
one executive Director (Dr. Che Fengsheng) and three independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun) and is chaired by
Dr. Zhu Xun. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are consistent
with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

During the Year, four meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee, during
which the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance of executive Directors;
reviewed the remuneration policy; reviewed and approved the proposed remuneration
for executive Directors in 2021 and made recommendation to the Board on the
directors’ fees for independent non-executive Directors; made recommendation to the
Board on the grant of share options.
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RAFE FHZESKEHESHTEN The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members at the meetings
T held during the Year was as follows:

R B/
AEREEZ
BEXH
Attendance/
No. of meetings
BEEHE Name of Directors eligible to attend
KAEE(EFE) Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman) 4/4
BIEAE Dr. Che Fengsheng 4/4
FEESE Mr. Patrick Sun 4/4
BERTE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 4/4
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the financial statements
for the Year. As the Company does not have senior management, disclosure about
senior management’s remuneration by band is not applicable.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

On 13 December 2015, the Board approved and established the risk management
committee of the Company (the “Risk Management Committee”) with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are,
among others, to review the Company’s risk management, internal control system
and environmental, social and governance (“ESG") strategies, policies, guidelines and
procedures and to review the effectiveness of the work on risk management, internal
control systems and ESG. The Risk Management Committee consists of two executive
Directors (Dr. Guo Weicheng and Mr. Choi Yiau Chong) and two independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong), and is chaired by
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Risk Management Committee.
The Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company, and made suggestions to the Board. The
Risk Management Committee had also reviewed and assessed the ESG strategies,

policies, guidelines and procedures, and expressed their opinions to the Board.
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The attendance record of the Risk Management Committee members at the meetings
held during the Year was as follows:

R B/
AEREEZ
BEXH
Attendance/
No. of meetings

BEEHE Name of Directors eligible to attend
BERALEE(ER) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chairman) 2/2
204 B A Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2
FEERLE Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2
ESEE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its
own code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year. To comply with
code provision A.6.4 of the Code, the Group has also established and adopted the
Model Code as the code of conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees
to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Group by certain employees of the
Group who are deemed to be likely in possession of the inside information of the
Company.

DIRECTORS * RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirmed that it is their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021. A statement on reporting responsibility with
respect to the external auditor of the Company is set out on pages 119 to 125 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group has adopted
internal control procedures and policies to safeguard the assets, to ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records, to carry out reliable financial reporting and to
ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board to review the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems every year. Review scope covers the control
of all major aspects, including the Company’s financial control, operation control
and compliance control. It also reviews the adequacy of resources in the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, staff qualifications and experience,
and the level of training attended and related subsidies that employees have received.
During the Year, the Board is satisfied with the review results of the Group’s risk
management and internal control and considers them effective and sufficient.

The Group has established an internal audit team who conducts independent auditing
work under the guidance of the Audit Committee. The annual work plan of the
internal audit team was to review periodically in relation to the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems and reports to the Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee. The internal audit team reported the audit
results to the Audit Committee, carried out follow-up actions agreed based on
recommendations of the Audit Committee and to assist the Audit Committee and
the Board to promote continuous improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal controls. The internal audit team is staffed by persons with certain
professional ethics, professional competence, audit experience and appropriate
communication skills.

In 2021, the Board has appointed a professional third party to provide professional
advice and services on risk management and internal control system to the Group.
The Group also implemented internal control review at the Company level and key
business processes in 2021. The management has taken measures to control related
risks and developed internal monitoring management mechanism and rectification
plan which will continue to be implemented.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system and realized
organic integration with the internal control system. Through a systematical risk
management process, a list of risks is compiled by identification with respect to the
operating conditions of the Company. Judgment on the possibility of occurrence and
the effects of various types of risks is attained through assessment of risks. Ranking
the severity of the Group’s business impact by combining qualitative and quantitative
analysis to find out the causes of risks, recommendations of multi-dimensional and
effective responsive strategies are made from seven aspects, including operation
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strategy, system process, structural functions, technical tools, skills of staff, allocation
of resources and performance appraisal, and a written report is prepared for
submission to the management and the Board. The Group further developed risk
management measures to maintain risk within an acceptable level. Finally, fruitful
results of risk management will be realized through effective implementation of
the internal control system. The Group has formed a regular mechanism for daily
monitoring and regular assessment of risks to realize continuing supervision on

essential risk factors in the daily operational management activities.

In addition to internal implementation of risk management and conducting regular
review on internal control, the Group will engage external auditors annually to
perform statutory audits as well as to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
certain key risk management and internal control aspects. Under appropriate
circumstances, the Group will adopt the relevant recommendations of the external
auditors to enhance risk management and internal control.

Moreover, to regulate operations of the Group and to ensure that all businesses of
the Group comply with relevant laws and regulations, the Group’s former surveillance
department has been restructured into the compliance department in 2015 and is
responsible for the establishment, inspection and reporting of all compliance-related
work of the Group. A compliance risk management organizational structure has been
established within the Group since then to conduct regular reviews on the compliance
of conducts of the Group’s internal staff, customers, suppliers and cooperative
partners, provide training and education on observing discipline and laws and
complying with anti-corruption rules, and sign letters of undertakings on compliance
with employees annually.

Regarding the handling and release of inside information, the Group has formulated
the “Information Disclosure Management Measures”, and has complied with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules, to disclose information truthfully,
timely, accurately, legally and completely in accordance with the information
processing and release procedures to perform the obligations of disclosure, and to
ensure that such information has been kept confidential prior to the proper approval
of its disclosure to protect the legitimate interests of the Shareholders, creditors
and other stakeholders. The Company has implemented necessary internal control
measures to restrict Directors, senior management and related employees to obtain or

use the inside information without prior authorisation by the Company.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

In 2021, the Group has participated in a number of institutional investor conferences
and regularly communicated with many investors through various means. The
Group has also set to provide the highest standard and financial transparency
through publication of annual and interim reports, results announcements, other
announcements and circulars through the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the Year, the Company held the annual general meeting on 30 June 2021.

The attendance records of the Directors at the general meetings held during the Year
are set out below:

IR B BT
ZEBERHY
Attendance/

No. of meetings held

BITES
BESTEL
S
RAMEEES
ERE KL
BRI Lt

FHITES
SHBEEE(R_ZT=_—F N A BHET)

BIHRTEE
FEBEE
SR P2 L2
KAWL

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng 11
Dr. Guo Weicheng 11
Dr. Zhang Jionglong 1Al
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 7
Ms. Chen Yanling 171

Non-executive Director
Mr. Kim Jin Ha (resigned on 6 August 2021) 0/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Sun 171
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 171
Dr. Zhu Xun 11
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Shareholder Communication Policy
The Board adopted a shareholder communication policy (“Policy”) according to the

Code.

1. Purpose

1.1

1.2

This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring
that Sihuan Group’s shareholders, both individual and institutional
(collectively, “Shareholders”), and, in appropriate circumstances, the
investment community at large, are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile), in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively with the
Company.

For the purpose of this Policy, references to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysts
reporting and analysing the Company’s performance.

2. General Policy

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
the investment community, and will regularly review this Policy to ensure
its effectiveness.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim and
annual reports), annual general meetings and other general meetings
that may be convened and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Sihuan Group website.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and
the investment community shall be ensured at all times. Any question
regarding this Policy shall be directed to the Company Secretary or Head

of Corporate Communications.
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Communication Strategies

Shareholders’ enquiries

3.1

3.2

3.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided with
designated contacts and email addresses in order to enable them to
make any query in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communication*

3.4

3.5

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose the
language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in
particular, their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate
timely and effective communications.

Corporate Website

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

A dedicated “Investor Relations” section is available on the Sihuan
Group website (www.sihuanpharm.com). Information on the Sihuan

Group website is updated on a regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is
also posted on the Sihuan Group website immediately thereafter.
Such Information on website includes financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and

associated explanatory documents etc.

All presentation materials provided in conjunction with the Company’s
annual general meeting and results announcement each year will be
made available on the Sihuan Group website as soon as practicable after
their release.

All press releases issued by the Company or its subsidiaries will be made
available on the Sihuan Group website.

1% & & A& IR A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



BERA &

3.10

3.11

RERESLERRAE  WARAH
B ARERREREEELIRS
E®RE -

BRBEBFRGREBEELH N
SRR RS -

AREEERNEHRABRERK
ERF MAEFTESELNRDY
iR ETARREE -

EEeRB(LEREERET

BZBEEMIFHBEEREHER
®)CHEENTHREEAERINE
MY EHFERREFAED
BERREM -

P ROEL R A 2 R &R G O IR
B UmSEARTANER &
BRANBERE ERLRE

ST °

18 & 7745 48 8

3.15

RARETEHRMRSETE -
Té?%?xﬁ%/ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂ\a
HEB®EeN A RERE
BN HEGE BRAEERE
BB LWRBI/SHEREER
BE  UREARAFERR KE
BEATZHEMEB

o

MREEEEREBENEKE
E NWE  EHRIEMINRE
BATHEXEXEBYEMUA
BMTRBEREBMER -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders’ Meetings

3.10

3.12

3.13

3.14

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings shall be in
place to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meetings will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen
of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management
executives and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to

answer Shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend Shareholders’ activities organised
by the Company, where information about the Company, including its
latest strategic plan, products and services etc will be communicated.

Investment Market Communications

3.15

3.16

Investor/analyst briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows (both
domestic and international), media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums etc will be available on a regular
basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community.

Sihuan Group's Directors and employees who have contacts or dialogues
with investors, analysts, media or other interested outside parties are
required to comply with the disclosure obligations and requirements.
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Shareholder Privacy

4.1

The Company recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and
will not disclose Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless
required by law to do so.

“Corporate Communication” refers to any document issued or to be
issued by Sihuan for the information or action of holders of any of its
securities, including, but not limited to, the directors’ report and annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report, the interim report,
a notice of meeting, a circular and a proxy form.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from 1 January 2021 to the date of this annual report, there has

not been any change in the Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The following procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-

laws”), the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Act”) and applicable legislation

and regulation. Shareholders who have enquires about the following procedures or

have enquires to put to the Board may write to the joint company secretaries of the

Company (the

“"Company Secretary”) at Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention

Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

A.

Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting (other than a proposal of a person for election as
a Director)

(M

Pursuant to Bye-laws 56 and 57, the Company holds an annual general
meeting ("AGM") every year, and may hold a general meeting known as
a special general meeting whenever necessary.

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, Shareholder(s) holding (i) not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request for notice of any resolution
intended to be moved at an AGM or a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular general
meeting to be given to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
AGM or general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
copy to its principal office in Hong Kong at Room 4309, Office Tower,

Bermuda with a

Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6) weeks before
the AGM in the case of a requisition for notice of a resolution and not
less than one (1) week before the general meeting in the case of any

other requisition.
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Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is in order, the
Company Secretary will request the Board (i) to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM and give notice of the resolution; or (ii)
to circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided that the
Shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably
determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’'s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned have

statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.

failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in
the agenda for the AGM or the statement will not be circulated for the
general meeting.

B. Procedures for a Shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director

(M
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If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a Director at that meeting, he/she must deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
Kong at Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,

Bermuda and its principal office in Hong

Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and accompanied by a notice signed by that person indicating

his/her willingness to be elected.
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The minimum length of the period, during which such written notice(s)
may be given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
(7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

If the notice is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to
that general meeting, the Company will need to consider adjournment
of the general meeting in order to (i) assess the suitability of the
proposed candidate; and (i) publish an announcement or circulate a
supplementary circular in relation to the proposal to the Shareholders at
least fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10) business days

prior to the general meeting.

C. Procedures for Shareholders to convene special general
meeting (“SGM")

)

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s registered office
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
with a copy to its principal office in Hong Kong at Room 4309, Office

Bermuda and

Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the general meeting,
be signed by the requisitionists and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more of those requisitionists.
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If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the requisitionists will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionists at a SGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

i at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended other than
a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent error; and

ii. at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the Act.

In accordance with the provision of section 74(3) of the Act, if the Board
does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from
the said date.
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(7)  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to
the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be
retained by the Company out of any sums due or to become due from
the Company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their
services to such directors as were in default.

D. Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Room 4309, Office Tower,

Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3628 3911

Fax: (852) 3101 0362

Email: ir@sihuanpharm.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 18 March 2019 according
to the requirement of the Code.

1. The Company may declare dividends in any currency through the Shareholders’
meeting, but the dividends declared shall not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may also declare dividends or other
distributions from time to time.

2. Any dividend declared by the Company shall be conducted in accordance
with the Bermuda Companies Act, the bye-laws of the Company and other
applicable laws and regulations, and shall not affect the normal operation of

the Company and its subsidiaries as the principle.
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3.

Subject to the second paragraph above, whether the Company declares
dividends and the declared amounts will depend on the Company’s financial
results, cash flow and financial status and conditions, operating and funding
needs, business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans, the amount of profit that can be
distributed under the applicable accounting standards and other factors that
the Board considers relevant to the Group.

The Board will continuously review this dividend policy and reserves the
absolute autonomy to update, amend, modify and/(or) cancel this dividend
policy at any time. The Company does not guarantee the payment of any
specific amount of dividends for any given period of time and does not have
any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes good corporate

governance practices and procedures. The Audit Committee is authorised by the

Board to perform the corporate governance duties as below:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual to
corporate governance matters (if any) applicable to Directors and employees of
the Company; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other related rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the auditor of the Group provided audit services for the Group. The
service fees for audit and non-audit services in 2021 amounted to RMB5 million and
nil, respectively.

COMPLIANCE OF THE NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui and Dr. Zhang
Jionglong (collectively, the “Covenantors” and each a “Covenantor”) had provided
an annual declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of the deed of
non-competition undertaking (as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 15
October 2010). Pursuant to the deed of non-competition, each of the Covenantors
has, among other things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken with the
Company that at any time during the relevant period, each of the Covenantors shall,

and shall procure that its associates (other than members of the Group):

(i) not, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in, participate in, or attempt to
participate in or render any services to or provide any financial support to or
otherwise be involved in, whether on its own account or with each other or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company, any business which is

the same as, similar to or in competition with the business of the Group; and

(i) not take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may interfere with or
disrupt the business of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by the
Covenantors with the deed of non-competition undertaking.
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(iv)

The Board is pleased to present the Report of Directors together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Key Relationships

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group regards
the personal development of its employees highly important. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group has also adopted
share option scheme and share award scheme to recognise and reward the
contribution of the employees for the benefit of the Group’s operations and

future development.

Suppliers

We have developed long-term relationships with a number of suppliers and
to ensure that they share our commitment to quality and ethics. We carefully
select our suppliers and require them to satisfy certain benchmarks.

Distributors

We sell our products to the end-user customers through distributors. We work
closely with the distributors to ensure that we share the view for enhance our
brand value and customer services.

Hospitals

We are committed to offer quality products to hospitals. We also stay
connected and maintain a close relationship with the hospitals through various

channels such as visits, marketing materials and meetings.
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A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on
pages 16 to 21 of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 22. Also, the financial risk management analysis of the Group
can be found in Note 43 to the Financial Statements. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the Year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Group Financial Summary on page 15 of this annual report. In addition,
discussions on the Group's risk management, internal control, ESG, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group are contained in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Corporate Governance Report and this Report of Directors on pages 16 to 21, pages
64 to 89 and pages 90 to 118, respectively, and in the Group’s corporate website.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company has always abided by the environmental-friendly sustainable
development commitment in the process of production and operation, strictly
complied with the environmental protection laws and regulations in the places
where it operates, established and improved the environmental management system
and monitoring system, promoted an efficient and green pattern for production
and operation, committed to building a resource-saving and environment-friendly
enterprise. For the Year, the Group focused on promoting its subordinated production
units to conduct various lean production transformation projects, so as to promote
an energy-saving and profit-increasing production pattern; proactively responded to
national policies to strengthen the management of hazardous wastes; at the same
time, further standardized the environmental information management, laying an
information foundation for setting the corporate goals of energy conservation and
emission reduction.

The Group is committed to creating a green and comfortable office environment,
carries out a variety of green publicity and energy consumption management
methods, encourages all employees to participate in self-inspection to constantly
strengthen employees' awareness of environmental protection and energy saving.
Meanwhile, the Group further regulates garbage classification management to make
a beautiful environment.

The Group will review its environmental protection work from time to time and
continue to explore the direction of improvement and optimization of environmental
management in its business operations in order to fulfill its commitments to realize
corporate economic and environmental sustainability.
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In order to further improve our information disclosure level in environment,
society and governance and respond to our stakeholders’ concerns, the Group will
continuously disclose the independent Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
For details of the Group’s environmental protection work and performance, please
refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the year ended
31 December 2021 to be published in due course.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, income and segment information for the Year is
set out in note 4 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Group’s results for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 126 to 127 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the declaration and payment of a final cash dividend of
RMB1.3 cents per share (equivalent to HK$1.6 cents per share) and a special cash
dividend of RMB9.5 cents per share (equivalent to HK$11.7 cents per share) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 in thanking Shareholders’ support, subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group’s results and assets and liabilities for the last five financial
years is set out on page 15 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 14 to the Financial Statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture as at
31 December 2021 are set out in notes 19, 20 and 40 to the Financial Statements,
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year together
with the reasons for such movements are set out in note 26 to the Financial
Statements.

SHARES AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the shares and reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and also in notes 26 and 28 to the Financial Statements. As at the end of the
reporting period, the reserves available for distribution to Shareholders amounted to
RMB4,546,223,000 (2020: RMB4,302,088,000). The Company had issued 3,380,000
ordinary shares at a consideration of RMB2,737,000 during the Year, details of which
together with the reasons for such issue are set out in the “Share Option Scheme and

Remaining Life” section of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND REMAINING LIFE

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting (“Share Option Scheme”) held on 24 October 2017
("Share Option Scheme Adoption Date”), which will be valid for ten (10) years
from the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date. As of the date of this Report, it has a
remaining life of approximately 5 years 7 months.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate Eligible Persons (as set out
in paragraph (b) below) (i) to optimise their future contributions to the Group; (ii)
to reward them for their past contributions; and (iii) to attract, retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who are significant to and/or
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth and success
of the Group.

(a) Eligible persons

Our Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group, any executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in, any member of
the Group, any proposed Employee, any full-time or part-time Employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for
any member of the Group, a consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group,
a person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group, or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of any of the foregoing persons (together, “Eligible Persons” and each an
"Eligible Person”).
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(i) The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant to any Eligible
Person (a “Grantee”) an option to subscribe for the Company's shares
(the “Shares”) under the Share Option Scheme.

(i) The basis of eligibility of any Eligible Person to the grant of any option
shall be determined by our Directors from time to time on the basis
of their contributions to the development, growth and success of the
Group.

(i) For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by our Company for
the subscription of Shares to any person who falls within the definition
of Eligible Persons shall not, by itself, unless our Directors otherwise
determine, be construed as a grant of options under the Share Option

Scheme.

(iv)  An Eligible Person or a Grantee shall provide the Board such information
and supporting evidence as the Board may in its absolute discretion
request from time to time (including before the offer of a grant of
option, at the time of acceptance of a grant of option and at the time of
exercise of an option) for the purpose of assessing and/or determining
his eligibility or continuing eligibility as an Eligible Person and/or a
Grantee or that of his close associates or for purposes in connection with
the terms of an option (and the exercise thereof) or the Share Option
Scheme and the administration thereof.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-
IPO share option scheme of our Company) shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date (“Scheme
Mandate Limit"”), provided that the Company may at any time as the Board
may think fit seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit, except that the maximum number of Shares to be issued
upon exercise of all options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of our Company)
shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval by the

Shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.
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Despite the above-mentioned, the maximum number of Shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme
of our Company) shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to

time.

The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Share Option Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme was passed at the special general meeting on 24 October 2017
would be 947,108,220 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to any one Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. Where any further grant of options to such an Eligible
Person would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and which may be granted to such Eligible Person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant would exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue at such time, such further grant shall be separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Person and his associates or
close associates (as the case may be) abstaining from voting.

Grant of options

On and subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time within a period of ten (10) years commencing on the
Share Option Scheme Adoption Date to offer the grant of any option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select, and on acceptance of the
offer, grant such part of the option as accepted to the Eligible Person.
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Subject to the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any condition, restriction or
limitation in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in the Share Option Scheme
as the Board may think fit (to be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant
of the option), including but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing
continuing eligibility criteria, conditions, restrictions or limitations relating to the
achievement of performance, operating or financial targets by our Company and/or
the Grantee, the satisfactory performance or maintenance by the Grantee of certain
conditions or obligations or the time or period when the right to exercise the option
in respect of all or some of the Shares to which the option relates shall vest, provided
that the period within which the Shares that the option relates shall vest on a date
not more than ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the option.

The rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may specify the
Eligible Persons to whom options shall be granted, the number of Shares subject
to each option and the date on which the options shall be granted. The options
may be exercised at any time during the option period subject to certain conditions,
restrictions or limitations imposed pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme.
The basis for determining the subscription price is also specified precisely in the rules
of the Share Option Scheme. There is no performance target specified in the Share
Option Scheme. The Directors consider that allowing the Board discretion to fix,
among other things, the minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised, performance targets and the subscription price, upon the grant of
options will better serve the purpose of the Share Option Scheme as this will allow
the Board to grant options that cater to the specific circumstances of the Grantee,
taking into consideration the Grantee's seniority, experience, past work performance,
field of expertise, etc., and thereby providing appropriate motivation and incentive to
the Grantee.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the Grantee
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company within the period
specified in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once such
acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been granted and to have
taken effect from the offer date.

An option shall be exercised in whole or in part by the Grantee according to the
procedures for the exercise of options established by the Company from time to time.
Every exercise of an option must be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount
of the subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of such option.
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The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price as our
Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of the grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the
option) but the subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(i) the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; and

(iii)  the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the

offer date.

The subscription price shall also be subject to adjustment in accordance with
reorganization of capital restructure.
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ERAREERER Exercise As at Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed As at
Name or Category R A Price {75 1 January during during during during 31 December
of Grantees Date of Grant (HK$)  Exercise Period 2021 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2021
(&S
(a) Directors
ERBiLh ka2 0972 —Z-ZTE 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
NEZFRE NAZ+ARRZE
“ZZEF
NA=t+EA
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
F 35y “Z-TF 0972 —Z-% 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
NAZF<B NAZ+7H
E-TTEE
NA=t+AA
Ms. Chen Yanling 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
FEERE “Z-TF 0972 ZZ-ZF 3,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - 2,000,000
NBZF7<B NAZ+REZE
—2=2F
NA=t+RA
Mr. Patrick Sun 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
BEELE “T-FF 0972 —%=% 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
NEZF<B NAZ+REZE
e 23
NEZ+EH
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
KL “E-%F 0972 —Z-% 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
NEZFREB NAZ+RBE
g 43
NEZ+EH
Dr. Zhu Xun 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
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i
—E--F
fEE RZB=--% rEE rEE rEE rEE +=A
(&) -A-H B XK [BE:d] BAH =t+-A
RRAEERER Exercise As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
Name or Category R A Price {74 1 January during during during during 31 December
of Grantees Date of Grant (HKS)  Exercise Period 2021 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2021
(b) EE “Z-TF 0972 —Z-% 75,656,000 - 2,380,000 - - 73,276,000
NA=t7<H NRZ+/~BZE
ke 5
NEZ+TH
(b) Employees 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
T 2220 —E-—& - 7,500,000 - - - 7,500,000
NA—A NA—AZ
—T=-F
NA=1+-H
1 September 2021 1 September 2021 to
31 August 2031
@it 94,656,000 7,500,000 3,380,000 - - 98,776,000
Total:
B 5 Notes:
! E_ZT-_ZTFN\AF+NBRZZTE=—F (1) The closing prices per Share immediately before 26 August 2020 and 1 September 2021
NWA—B(ERERLEBH)INERETE (the dates on which the options were granted) were HK$1.050 and HK$2.310 respectively.
2 B A1.0507% T % 2.310/ 7T °
2 EBE-_Z--—EF+ARR(ABERETER (2)  The closing price per Share immediately before 5 October 2021 (the date on which the

BRI SR T EA1.6508 T ° options were exercised) was HK$1.650.
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BER G RERBE

BAASEERERERE & FTREM
Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited « 555 F & 4
I ELr) ER _E—TE+A-_+H
BOEBBHDRMN—BEEHTE(EE
Bk 1 2% B 3 # 1) - Plenty Gold Enterprises
Limited + B A B ERDHENELEUERE
ANMERTAMERFADERESR
P £ 2 B 5+ 8 78 B e B A #£33,750,000 %
B& 15 ([Plenty GoldRR3]) - R =T —=F —
AZ=-+HH ' MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. A
18 8 Mz £ 22 fEh =+ &) & B 58 513,750,000 A8 A% 17
(Z[FIPlenty Goldf&p * SifBFEBRMB]) - =
AARRIRNEBEXBESK LN ARGT
A @] » fiPlenty Gold Enterprises LimitedZ & #
BIEEZEAZFEAEZEALD @ BE
BERMEBAEFAEEERG  FHEXE
ABREETNEZESHNERE  REHE
WASEEBABREB(TMRIEES)([&
BADEREARFNEZESKETNERE
ATEBRGOHER (TEB]) -

BERMDERBFTEFEELBAERD - ®A
RBATERBFURPEBHITHRND - AR LR
MARARBREBENAEEEREAR (TR
REF)AVERTARBMEAL  WEEK
MAEFARRTERE - AR EEE
(BREULEERNDRBFE)AXBTTER
ARBBEBETREANI% HFHEESRE
ERERZBNES MR ERMAAH
RA=ZFHEAANBERRL - FERTERER
BE TIRAR RGN (BIEE THB GG AR
BIE(MA)) & - ABRAATRETEIZFEAMZ
FEEBZELN BRI ATALTTEEE AR A
B BERS 1T 68 i ey (£ () 50 0 2208 -

RZE—=FNAZ+tH  XEE234%EE
BRERRE  AEEER3INIBITHITERER
SZHEAAFBEE A 19,750,000/ i 17 - AN&E
HeHEENR T =-F+A-_t+—HERE
By - AJIRITEEER0 7B ILAIXTARAE
B & 2,050,000t o FiEKE T H B &
HRENETEZEBZ(NMAB)E @ ZEZEA
W TER BRAFHETE -

EMPLOYEE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivising the management of the Group
(the “Employee Share Award Scheme”) has been adopted by certain Shareholders
(namely, Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng)
on 25 October 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited, Dr.
Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as settlors (the “Settlors”) of a trust, has
reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000 Shares (the “Plenty Gold Shares”) for
the Employee Share Award Scheme. On 25 January 2013, MSPEA Pharma Holdings
B.V. contributed an additional 3,750,000 Shares (together with the Plenty Gold
Shares, the “Reserve Shares”) to the Employee Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co
(a private trust company established in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned
by Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited) has been appointed as the trustee (the “Scheme
Trustee”) to hold the Reserve Shares under the Employee Share Award Scheme,
and the Scheme Trustee will, upon receiving instructions from the Remuneration
Committee, award to selected management personnel and employees of the
Group (excluding Directors) (a “Grantee”) the rights to acquire the Reserve Shares
("Awards") at a price to be determined by the Remuneration Committee.

The Employee Share Award Scheme involves granting of the existing Shares and
no new Shares will be issued by the Company pursuant to this arrangement. The
Reserve Shares will not be counted towards the public float as Grantees of Awards
will be selected management personnel of the Group (excluding Directors) and the
Settlors are connected persons. All related award schemes (including this Employee
Share Award Scheme) will not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company. The Remuneration Committee shall determine which employee will
be granted the Awards, and Awards may be granted at any time during a period of
three years commencing from the Adoption Date. Subject to satisfying certain terms
and conditions for exercise of the Awards, including certain vesting conditions and
performance targets (if any), a Grantee may exercise any portion of his/her Award
accepted by him/her at any time before the deadline for exercising the Award as
stated in the offer letter from the Scheme Trustee to such employee.

On 27 September 2013, 234 employees of the Group were granted Awards entitling
them to acquire an aggregate of 19,750,000 Shares from the Trustee Co at an
exercise price of HK$3.19 per Share. On 21 October 2013, 6 employees of the Group
were granted Awards entitling them to acquire an aggregate of 2,050,000 Shares
from the Trustee Co at an exercise price of HK$0.70 per share. Subject to certain
vesting conditions and the satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), such
Awards shall be exercisable over a period of five years commencing from the date on
which the Awards were granted.
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On 28 June 2016, 234 employees of the Group (the “Selected Participants”) were
granted new Awards (“New Awards”) entitling them to acquire an aggregate of
31,448,172 Shares at an exercise price of HK$1.57 per Share on the condition that
the Selected Participants will surrender the existing Awards. Subject to certain vesting
conditions and the satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), the New
Awards shall be exerciseable over a period of five years commencing from the date on
which the New Awards are granted.

The summary of the share awards under the Employee Share Award Scheme for the
Year is set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

RAFE ARQA S A XHAEMD During the Year, the Company repurchased 139,063,000 Shares through the Stock
139,063,000/ i) - BB RIMFFBHT ¢ Exchange. Details of repurchase are as follows:
SRR G EE N ER 2 aRE
Repurchasing price for Aggregate
each Share consideration paid
2EE
ROEE HER

Number of ARBEET
BE A5 Shares BSEBT RIEET BE®T Equivalent to
Month of repurchase repurchased Highest HK$ Lowest HK$  HK$ million RMB million
—E-—FMmA 3,900,000 2.09 2.06 8.1 6.9
April 2021
—E-—%HA 10,000,000 2.70 2.63 26.7 22.2
May 2021
—E- %A 3,000,000 2.73 2.68 8.1 6.8
July 2021
—E-—FANA 15,920,000 2.14 1.46 29.3 24.2
September 2021
—E-—%+A 82,952,000 1.79 1.56 140.1 116.6
October 2021
—T_—%+—A 23,291,000 1.52 1.45 34.9 28.6
November 2021
st 139,063,000 247.2 205.3
Total:
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RAFE 2HRBORHERTH ARF
ERTRARNEZEROZEETARD
CEDRBRRMNRIEL  URSSREEF
BR/IEGREF -

BEXHEEEN BE_ZT_—F+-A
=t —BLEFE ARBAKEEFKMERF
MEBE HEXBBEARFNEM LHE
H(EBWRRBEXMAEMESZRSMA) °

FEEFRHER
RZEZ—F  AEEEAE—ZFEAME

BABRFAEEEAFTFENBEHEERLH S
B 52.28%K%7.31% °

RZE-Z—F AEEERE—HERER
FAeEREEEMEEERFEMBRBEEL
%15 Bl /13.07% }235.24% -

BESE FBTTRAR WREZETEHEA
TRERMAREZTAANEELARAEEITRA
5%AEZRR  RAFEARERANEER
AREFPERHERTHAEMERES -

EHRBEMEREAR

RZZE—ZTF+ A AR EBHERE R
N BB LA B 124,605 7T B %41,437,500,000
Pk o B N XTI EE S 0 LB A
ERAHABEMSHRIEFREL6,365.78 88
T(HEERODARES4076BET)DIREAR
ARRZE—ZEF+ATHEENBBRERM
WERARHA -

RZZE-_—F+-A=+—8 AQXFEHE
RRERAHBEENMEEECD2HBHATE -
BB %
EFEWTANEBEEARRBFEARABLEMESR
R R -

During the Year, all repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value thereof. The purchases were made
for the benefit of the Shareholders with an enhancement of the net asset value per
Share and/or its earnings per Share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether on the Stock
Exchange or otherwise) during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2021, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers were 2.28% and 7.31% respectively of the Group’s sales for the
Year.

In 2021, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and five
largest suppliers were 13.07% and 35.24% respectively of the Group's purchases for
the Year.

Neither the Directors or chief executive or any of their close associates or any
Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In October 2010, the Company allotted 1,437,500,000 ordinary shares at a price of
HK$4.60 through international placing and public offer. Save as disclosed below,
the net proceeds raised from such international placing and public offer, being
approximately HK$6,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately RMB5,407.6 million),
are used in accordance with the purposes disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 15 October 2010.

As at 31 December 2021, proceeds from the international placing and public offer of
the Company have been fully utilized.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (CFO)

Ms. Chen Yanling

Non-executive Director
Mr. Kim Jin Ha (resigned on 6 August 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Patrick Sun

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Dr. Zhu Xun

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the Section “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Pursuant to bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng
and Dr. Zhu Xun shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election as Directors at the 2022 AGM.

Since Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong has been an independent non-executive Director for
nine years in 2022, his further appointment will be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by Shareholders at the 2022 AGM pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of
the Code. Mr. Tsang has offered himself for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng being the executive Directors,
renewed their service contracts with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 October 2019, subject to termination before expiry by either
party giving not less than three months' notice in writing to the other. Each of
Dr. Che and Dr. Guo currently receive an annual salary of RMB10,000,000 and
RMB6,000,000 respectively as an executive (such annual salary is subject to annual
review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee) and a discretionary bonus as
may be decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee at their discretion,
having regard to the performance of the relevant executive Director.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong has entered into service contracts with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before expiry
by either party giving not less than three months’' notice in writing to the other. Dr.
Zhang currently receives an annual salary of HK$1,000,000 as an executive.

4 [Z ¥R % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 103



EETWE
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

ERBEEDHEAQRAFIRBELH A=
T —FZA-+TABRHAHZ=ZF AR
EWmAB—ARE—AEEEL=EAER

BAMFUKIE BEABRKWEIEAEREABR

2 % ¥73,600,0007 7T °

BMERLZLTEEARARAFIRBELH A=
T —FMA-+ARFAP=F ARE
MAIH—ARS - AR HEL=—EAEER
MFPALIE -RETHBBIEAEREABZ
£ 71,300,000 7T °

ﬂﬁ%$mﬁ§$ﬁﬁﬁﬁifﬁﬁiﬁ
%%ﬁ TEAL R E A& R RE R NE
&%'WK%&A&EA%W°

BUERTESTFEERE CUEXKER
%Lﬁi“ﬁﬁ$“ﬂﬁﬂ&%M§E&'
ARl ZZE=Z—F+A=Z+NA -ZFT=_—
ihﬂ@ﬁ&f§::¢:H:+Eﬂﬁ%
—F o ¥FFELE EEXEERKIAFL
HE-_Z-_—F+_A=+—BHILEENE
Ei$ 5 5l A412,000/5 7T+ 412,000 7T &
AR #280,0007T °

BAFERAPEEI E-_FT-__FBRBE
FAESNEENESHARNALERTLE
AARRBAAR—FRLIETBEEDLIEE
CEERERIN ZIRBEL -

MIE A nl]

MAFE  ARAUEREREB R ERNE
REBCERSITRIRIXFREME
# e

104 | mmsmmp

Mr. Choi Yiau Chong has entered into service contracts with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 26 March 2021, subject to termination before expiry
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Mr.
Choi currently receives an annual salary of HK$3,600,000 as an executive.

Ms. Chen Yanling has entered into service contracts with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before expiry
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Ms.
Chen currently receives an annual salary of HK$1,300,000 as an executive.

Each of the executive Directors shall abstain from voting, and not be counted in the
quorum, in respect of any resolution of the Board approving the determination of the
salary, bonus and other benefits payable to him/her.

Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun, being the independent
non-executive Directors, renewed their respective letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of one year, commencing from 28 October 2021, 4 September
2021 and 20 February 2022 respectively. The director’s fee for the year end 31
December 2021 for Mr. Patrick Sun, Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun are
HK$412,000, HK$412,000 and RMB280,000 respectively.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors standing for re-election
at the 2022 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than the
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS,
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

During the Year, no Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) are considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Furthermore,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in Note 40 to the Financial Statements. None of these
transactions constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

Save as disclosed below, the Group has not conducted any other connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined under the Listing Rules)
which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 21 January 2021, Euromax Holdings Limited (“Euromax”), Hainan Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BFFIREZZHRRAR]) and Beijing Meiyan Space
Biomedical Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Meiyan Bio”) entered into the subscription
agreement, pursuant to which Euromax has conditionally agreed to subscribe 9.0%
equity interest (on a fully diluted basis) in Beijing Meiyan Bio at the consideration of
RMB13.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$16.2 million) in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement (the “Subscription”).

*  For identification purposes only

* EHMEE
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Dr. Che Fengsheng (“Dr. Che") is an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company. As at 21 January 2021, Dr. Che is deemed to be indirectly interested in
63.5% of the issued share capital of the Company and is therefore a controlling
shareholder of the Company. As Euromax is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Che,
Euromax is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules and therefore
the Subscription constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the Company’s equity interest in Beijing Meiyan Bio
will be diluted as a result of the Subscription, the Subscription will constitute
deemed disposal of the Company under Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules. As the
highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the Subscription exceeds 0.1%
but is less than 5%, the Subscription is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the Subscription and the
disposals of (1) the entire issued share capital of Chonghui Investment Limited* (&
IR E AR AT and the assignment of the shareholder’s loan in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 May 2020
entered into by Sun Moral International (HK) Limited (BEBIFR (%) BRAR]) for
an aggregate consideration of RMB289.2 million; and (2) the 8.0% of the issued
(EMEAEDR

#APR/AR]) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the sale and purchase

share capital of Jilin Huisheng Biological Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*

agreement dated 13 November 2020 between Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (it?@%@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ”‘ and Tianjin Huierjin Biopharmaceutical Technology
FEERREEMBEEREABNE) (the "Previous Disposals”) were
transactions entered into with Dr. Che and/or his associates within a 12-month

Partnership*

period, the Subscription and the Previous Disposals shall be aggregated as a series
of transactions of the Company pursuant to Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules. The
Subscription and the Previous Disposals (in aggregate) did not trigger a higher
classification than a discloseable transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules. For further information on the Previous Disposals, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 3 May 2020 and 13 November 2020 and the
circular of the Company dated 29 May 2020.

The Board considers that the cash inflow of the Consideration arising from the
Subscription can strengthen the research, investment, mergers and acquisitions
capacity as well as expansion of market share of Beijing Meiyan Bio.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to announcement of the Company
dated 21 January 2021.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Year, no contract of significance
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries has been entered into between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries nor the Company’s controlling shareholders or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year.

*  For identification purposes only

* ERBS
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

Directors’ interests in Shares or underlying Shares

BRESOEIE

Approximate

Ex=nR BEMHE 56 B 4E 8 Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
B EAE E@Be s 6,007,936,704/% (4 &) 64.39% (47 &)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 800,0000% (47 &) 5,023,666% (3% &) 0.05% (X&)
Interest of spouse 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)

800,000 Shares (L) 5,023,666 Shares (S) 0.05% (S)

ZFEA
3,379,917,2258% (17 &)
Trustee

3,379,917,225 Shares (L)

— 3178 AL (FFEE1)
2,619,095,813f% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 1)
2,619,095,813 Shares (L)

Hitn iz (M3E2)
8,123,666/ ({F &)
5,023,666[% (4 &)
Other interest (Note 2)
8,123,666 Shares (L)
5,023,666 Shares (S)
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REBNE DL

Approximate

BEHS BEME 56 R0 488 Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
304 5 EREAA 6,007,936,704% (i &) 64.39% (4 &)
Dr. Guo Weicheng 11,350,0000% (47 &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)

o A e B
Dr. Zhang Jionglong

Beneficial owner
11,350,000 Shares (L)

AFEZTANAITEENERENNIEET
B A

1,580,884,399%% (47 &)

Founder of a discretionary trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises his discretion
1,580,884,399 Shares (L)

—HATE AL (M FE3)
4,415,702,305/ ({7 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
4,415,702,305 Shares (L)

B 18 A9 4 2 6,007,936,7040% (47 &)
59,0000% (47 &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L)

Interest of spouse
59,000 Shares (L)

AFEXTARAMTEENEENNIEET
B A

255,582,886/% (4 &)

Founder of a discretionary trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises his discretion
255,582,886 Shares (L)

—H1T8 A L (FF5E4)
5,553,354,818% (4F &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
5,553,354,818 Shares (L)

XA EEw (FFEEs)
198,940,000% (4 &)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 5)
198,940,000 Shares (L)
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RERNE DL

REMEEF7
Nature of Interest/Capacity

EnEE o

Total Number of Shares

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

BRBEE
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong

BRI L
Ms. Chen Yanling

Mr. Patrick Sun

WKL
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

KA+
Dr. Zhu Xun

EmEB A(MIte)
6,000,0005% (47 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)
6,000,000 Shares (L)

EmEAa A(MEe)
4,000,000f% (47 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)
4,000,000 Shares (L)

EmAa A(MEe)
3,000,000/ (5 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

EmEA A(Me)
3,000,0000% ({5 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

EwnEa A(MIEe)
3,000,000/ (47 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

6,000,0000% (4 &)
6,000,000 Shares (L)

4,000,0000% (£¥ &)
4,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,0000% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,0000% (#3728 )
3,000,000 Shares (L)

3,000,0000% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

0.06% (¥ &)
0.06% (L)

0.04% (5 &)
0.04% (L)

0.03% (¥ &)
0.03% (L)

0.03% (¥ &)
0.03% (L)

0.03% (¥ &)
0.03% (L)
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BEZFHFRAEHEMNENTRIISHK &

HHAEEWRE R DRI BB EE
Successmax Global Holdings Limited ~ Smart Top
Overseas Limited - Victory Faith International
Limited * SR AIBEE £ - Keen Mate Limited -
Mingyao Capital Limited R&BZE4AHF
B # 329,736,000 A% - 1,262,498,399 & -
175,012,000 A% - 377,267,528 J% - 59,000 f% -
198,940,000 % ~ 255,582,886 % K 20,000,000 A%
fefp S s -

£ 7 B 5 F+ B8 4 ASihuan Management (PTC)
Limited B EANEENMERTFAZ —
#4748 & 7 Sihuan Management (PTC) Limited
FF B 178,123,666 % 18 15 (47 &) # 25,023,666
AR AR )R AR -

RIEEH R B RAI 55317 231815 - 0 4 5
BAEWR AR D BB EIEFAE A - Network
Victory  Limited  Proper  Process International
Limited * Smart Top Overseas Limited - Victory
Faith International Limited * Keen Mate Limited -
Mingyao Capital Limited * SRMEBERZEE
% £ ¥ A K 8,923,666 Ik - 497,448,000 A%
2,882,469,225 % + 175,012,000 fi% * 377,267,528
fi% ~ 198,940,000 fi% - 255,582,886 i% * 59,000 fix
220,000,000 B% 15 7 & # % ©

BIRFEH R IEBKRHIE317%3181& - RMWEE
BERE AR R BEIFFEE - AWM
% A& -~ Network Victory Limited * Proper Process
International  Limited * Smart  Top  Overseas
Limited ~ Victory Faith International Limited -
Successmax Global Holdings Limited & & &2
% & F5 A #) 8,923,666 A% - 329,736,000 A%
497,448,000% - 2,882,469,225% + 175,012,000
f% ~ 377,267,528 % - 1,262,498,399 fx K&
20,000,000 i 17 o 8 A 2 o

R {0 BE B8 4 AKeen Mate Limited® 302 217 /%
AOBEZEAEA Bt RAEBERE A
#Keen Mate Limited ¥ 75 #) 198,940,000 % f%
MHEAER -

REZZZZFNAZ+TAA  RER=ZZT—+
FHAZTHBRMHARAREREE - 5
B o A M % B AR 4 BB B 6,000,000 A% A% 17

BRARIS 20+ 5 B8 AR A B8 B 4,000,000 A% 15
3 TEHE S A BB IR M S B 3,000,000 A% AR 19 ¢
B3 5 o A IR BB AR 4 B B 3,000,000 A% A% 19

Fo SRS 4% B AR 4R 8 B 3,000,000 % A 17 ©

FRILRREEFNZERONGERE  HFH
[SIAIRKREFRZERDAOKE °

Notes:

(1

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be interested
in the 329,736,000 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528
Shares, 59,000 Shares, 198,940,000 Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares
held by Dr. Guo Weicheng, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Smart Top Overseas
Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Dr. Zhang lJionglong, Keen Mate Limited,
Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan Management
(PTC) Limited is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be interested in the long
position of 8,123,666 Shares and the short position of 5,023,666 Shares held by Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be interested in
the 8,923,666 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares,
377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000 Shares, 255,582,886 Shares, 59,000 Shares and
20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process
International Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited,
Keen Mate Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited, Dr. Zhang Jionglong and Mr. Meng Xianhui,
respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be interested
in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares
held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process
International Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited,
Successmax Global Holdings Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong is the beneficial owner of 100% of the issued share capital of Keen
Mate Limited. As such, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be interested in the 198,940,000
Shares held by Keen Mate Limited.

On 26 August 2020, Mr. Choi Yiau Chong was granted options to purchase 6,000,000
Shares; Ms. Chen Yanling was granted to purchase 4,000,000 Shares; Mr. Patrick Sun was
granted to purchase 3,000,000 Shares; Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong was granted to purchase
3,000,000 Shares and Dr. Zhu Xun was granted to purchase 3,000,000 Shares pursuant to
the Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted on 24 October 2017.

The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”
denotes the Director’s short position in such Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive and their associates
had any interests or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors, chief
executive or their respective spouse or children under 18 to acquire beneficial
interests by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company,
and none of the above persons have exercised the said rights during the Year.
The Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries were not a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's charitable donations during the
year amounted to RMB22,127,000 (2020: RMB2,927,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Employee Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, the Company did
not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Company's bye-laws, every Director or other officers of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the said

persons.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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FERRRARG - HEROAR
BFEPZRERARR
RZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8 AR FERF

HFRHBEGIFEIBGREFEZ S LML
UTBRR(MNEEARBDZEEREETHA
B)NARBEBTRA - BEROHESRT
HHES%HIA LEm (BEXE)

BRREE A8 BEME S FH

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the following Shareholders, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5% or more
(including short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company:

BRESAEIE
Approximate
R B Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding

aESLLE BEBEBA

6,007,936,7040% (47 &) 64.39% (1 &)

Mr. Meng Xianhui 20,000,0000% (47 &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)
Beneficial owner
20,000,000 Shares (L)

RinE R (1)
175,012,000f% (47 &)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1)
175,012,000 Shares (L)

AFESTANATELARBEORERER

BAVIN

377,267,528/ (47 &)
Founder of a discretionary trust who can influence

how the trustee exercises his discretion
377,267,528 Shares (L)

—BITH AT (MEE2)
5,435,657,176[% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 2)
5,435,657,176 Shares (L)

Proper Process International Limited ~ E 5 A A

6,007,936,7040% (47 &) 64.39% (¥ &)

2,882,469,2250% (47 &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)

Beneficial owner

2,882,469,225 Shares (L)

—BITE AL (FF5E3)
3,125,467,479/% ({1 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
3,125,467,479 Shares (L)
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REMABE DL

Approximate

BREEHB EEtE 54 R0 488 Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding

Network Victory Limited BEmlEAA 6,007,936,704 8% (47 &) 64.39% (41 &)
497,448,000 (17 &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)
Beneficial owner
497,448,000 Shares (L)

— BT AL (FFEE4)
5,510,488,704f% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
5,510,488,704 Shares (L)

Successmax Global Holdings Limited Ez5# B A 6,007,936,704f% (17 &) 64.39% (17 &)
1,262,498,399/% (45 &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)
Beneficial owner
1,262,498,399 Shares (L)

— BT H AL (KIEES5)

4,745,438,3050% ({1 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 5)
4,745,438,305 Shares (L)

Victory Faith International Limited BEmBEB A 6,007,936,704F% (1 &) 64.39% (41 &)
377,267,528/ (4F &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)
Beneficial owner
377,267,528 Shares (L)

— W78 A L (Fi3Ee)
5,630,669,176[% (17 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 6)
5,630,669,176 Shares (L)

Smart Top Overseas Limited BERBEAA 6,007,936,704 % (47 &) 64.39% (41 &)
175,012,0000% (45 &) 6,007,936,704 Shares (L) 64.39% (L)
Beneficial owner
175,012,000 Shares (L)

— BT AL (FHFEET7)
5,832,924,704f% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 7)
5,832,924,704 Shares (L)
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RREE A8

Name of Shareholder

BEME 7

Nature of Interest/Capacity

EnEE o

Total Number of Shares

REMABE DL
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

EmEE A
255,582,886/% (41 &)
Beneficial owner
255,582,886 Shares (L)

Mingyao Capital Limited

—BUTE AL (H:E8)
5,752,353,818[& ({F &)
A concert party to an agreement (Note 8)
5,752,353,818 Shares (L)
Keen Mate Limited BEmEAA
198,940,000% (4 &)
Beneficial owner
198,940,000 Shares (L)

— BT H AL (KEE9)

5,808,996,704f% (17 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 9)
5,808,996,704 Shares (L)

UBS Trustee (Cayman) Ltd. ZFEA
6,007,936,704% (17 &)
Trustee
6,007,936,704 Shares (L)

UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. ZEEA
6,007,936,7048% (4 &)
Trustee
6,007,936,704 Shares (L)

B & Notes:

6,007,936,704f% (¥ &)
6,007,936,704 Shares (L)

6,007,936,704f% (17 &)
6,007,936,704 Shares (L)

6,007,936,7040% (47 &)
6,007,936,704 Shares (L)

6,007,936,7040% (47 &)
6,007,936,704 Shares (L)

64.39% (¥ &)
64.39% (L)

64.39% (47 &)
64.39% (L)

64.39% (¥ &)
64.39% (L)

64.39% (¥ &)
64.39% (L)

& B E 5L £ ASmart Top Overseas Limited &
HEBTRANEREGA Bt ZFE
%5 H 45 48 B FASmart Top Overseas Limitedts &
#9175,012,000 8% B 1 B 25

RAEE 5 R B E 505317 231811 F -
ABEBLEERGARERAEE  BRRE
4 - SRAUEEEE & - Proper Process International
Limited ~ Network Victory Limited * Successmax
Global Holdings Limited * Keen Mate Limited}
Mingyao Capital Limited % 51|54 8,923,666 %
329,736,000A% - 59,000 A% - 2,882,469,2250% -
497,448,000 % + 1,262,498,399 )& + 198,940,000
% %2 255,582,886 X A 1) F HE B HE 7 ©

(1

Mr. Meng Xianhui is the beneficial owner of 100% of the issued share capital of Smart
Top Overseas Limited. As such, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested in the
175,012,000 Shares held by Smart Top Overseas Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested
in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
497,448,000 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 198,940,000 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares
held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Proper Process
International Limited, Network Victory Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Keen
Mate Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.
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RIEFF RBEGOE317 R318IKHTE -
Proper Process International Limited #%4% &7
ESARLE FHEBRBE RMESR
Network Victory Limited * Successmax Global
Holdings Limited * Smart Top Overseas Limited -
Victory Faith International Limited - Keen
Mate Limited » Mingyao Capital Limited
N & EEBREE DK A 8923666 K
329,736,000 % + 59,000 A% - 497,448,000 fi% -
1,262,498,399 ix ~ 175,012,000 /% - 377,267,528
[1% ~ 198,940,000/% - 255,582,886 % 52 20,000,000
IRAIRD AR -

RIEFFRBEGOFENTRIBERTE
Network Victory Limited# 1% & # 8 )5 7+ 8§

20 4 U & 4 - 9% A7 BE & 4 - Proper Process
International Limited » Successmax Global
Holdings Limited * Smart Top Overseas Limited
Victory Faith International Limited - Keen Mate
Limited ~ Mingyao Capital Limited & & & 2
£ 9 Bl # & 8,923,666 A% + 329,736,000 A%
59,000/% -+ 2,882,469,225/% * 1,262,498,399/% *
175,012,000 fi% + 377,267,528 % * 198,940,000
A% + 255,582,886/% 12 20,000,000% i& 1  # &

o

e
B

RIFEH R BME GO FE317 R38R E -
Successmax Global Holdings Limited #4% &
REBSAEE BDEXEE RMESR
A~ Network Victory Limited - Proper Process
International Limited » Smart Top Overseas
Limited * Victory Faith International Limited -
Keen Mate Limited * Mingyao Capital Limited
k& EZEED R E 8923666 A% -
329,736,000 A% - 59,000 A% - 497,448,000 % -
2,882,469,225f% ~ 175,012,000 % - 377,267,528
[i% ~ 198,940,000/% - 255,582,886 % 52 20,000,000
MR hEEER -

RIEEH R PEGEMFE317R318ERE -
Victory Faith International Limited #18 &7
ERFELE O BEMELE  RMEEELE
Network Victory Limited * Proper Process
International Limited * Successmax Global Holdings
Limited * Smart Top Overseas Limited *
Keen Mate Limited * Mingyao Capital Limited
k& &EZEEDHFE 8923666 % -
329,736,000 A% + 59,000 % - 497,448,000 % *
2,882,469,225 % + 1,262,498,399 iz * 175,012,000
% ~ 198,940,000% - 255,582,886 % K2 20,000,000
R fn rh R = -

(3)

(5)
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Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Proper Process International Limited is deemed
to be interested in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Successmax Global Holdings
Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Network Victory Limited is deemed to be
interested in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225
Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Proper Process International Limited, Successmax Global
Holdings Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen
Mate Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Successmax Global Holdings Limited is deemed
to be interested in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang lJionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Victory Faith International Limited is deemed
to be interested in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.
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Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Smart Top Overseas Limited is deemed to
be interested in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Keen
Mate Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mingyao Capital Limited is deemed to be
interested in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000
Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares, 198,940,000
Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Smart Top Overseas Limited, Keen Mate
Limited, Victory Faith International Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Keen Mate Limited is deemed to be interested
in 8,923,666 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 59,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,262,498,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares, 175,012,000 Shares,
255,582,886 Shares and 20,000,000 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith International Limited, Smart
Top Overseas Limited, Mingyao Capital Limited and Mr. Meng Xianhui, respectively.

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”
denotes the shareholder’s short position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be kept

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an interest or
a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company recorded under
section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance

practices.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 64 to 89 of this
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital were
held by members of the public as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company intended to spin off the shares of Xuanzhu Biopharm, a subsidiary
of the Company, for listing (the “Proposed Spin-off”) on the STAR Market of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Currently, the Company directly holds approximately
62.39% of the total issued share capital of Xuanzhu Biopharm. As a result of the
Proposed Spin-off, the Company’s interests in Xuanzhu Biopharm will be reduced,
and the Company will remain as the controlling shareholder of Xuanzhu Biopharm
after the completion of the spin-off and listing.

The Company has obtained the approval from the Stock Exchange for the Company'’s
Proposed Spin-off of Xuanzhu Biopharm pursuant to Practice Note 15 of the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this annual report, Xuanzhu Biopharm has not submitted any

formal listing application to any relevant regulatory authorities in mainland China.

As the Company’s equity interest in Xuanzhu Biopharm is expected to decrease upon
completion of the Proposed Spin-off, the Proposed Spin-off constitutes a deemed
disposal of the Company’s equity interest in Xuanzhu Biopharm under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. As the maximum applicable percentage ratio in relation
to the Proposed Spin-off is currently expected to exceed 25% but less than 75%,
the Proposed Spin-off may constitute a major transaction of the Company and is
therefore subject to requirements of announcements, reports and shareholders’
approval under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. This major transaction is expected to
be approved in writing by shareholders holding more than 50% of the Company’s
shares. The Company will comply with the applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules as and when necessary.

For further details of the Proposed Spin-off, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 27 March 2022 and other disclosure documents to be published by

the Company in due course according to applicable Listing Rules.

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no other significant
events after the reporting period up to the date of this annual report.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The audit committee was satisfied with Ernst & Young's work, its independence, and
its objectivity, and therefore recommended the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
(which has indicated its willingness to continue in office) as the Group’s external
auditor for 2022 for Shareholders’ approval at the 2022 AGM.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 were audited by Ernst & Young.
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Ernst & Young will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in the auditor of the
Company in the preceding three years.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors subsequent to the date of the Company’s interim report 2021 are as
follows:

1. Mr. Patrick Sun, an independent non-executive Director, ceased to be the
independent non-executive director of China Railway Construction Corporation
Limited (stock code: SH601186 and HK1186) and CRRC Corporation Limited
(stock code: SH601766 and HK1766) with effect from 21 December 2021
and 22 December 2021, respectively. On 21 December 2021, Mr. Sun was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Ferretti S.p.A. (stock
code: 9638), listed on the Stock Exchange.

2. The Director’s fee of Dr. Zhu Xun, an independent non-executive Director, was
adjusted to HK$412,000 with effect from 1 January 2022.

By Order of the Board
Dr. Che Fengsheng
Chairman of the Board

29 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ernst & Young BB BT Tel Ei: +8522846 9888
27/F, One Takoo Place B #IZFH2IBO79%% Fax {HEL: +8522868 4432
979 King’s Road Koy — REo7 42 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 126 to 304, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs"”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description

of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
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Key audit matter

provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Capitalisation of development costs
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capitalised development
costs in progress amounting to approximately RMB410 million for the
development of new pharmaceutical products. The expenditure on
development activities was capitalised when all the criteria mentioned
in note 2.10(a) “Research and development” were satisfied. Significant
management estimation and judgement were required in determining
whether the Group met the capitalisation criteria.
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Related disclosures are included in note 2.10(a) “Research and
development”, note 3(f) “Capitalisation of development costs” and
note 18 “Intangible assets” to the consolidated financial statements.
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We assessed the compliance of the accounting policy
and methodology for capitalisation of expenditures used
by the Group with International Accounting Standard
38, obtained and examined trial readouts and regulatory
announcements, and evaluated the management
judgement on the satisfaction of criteria through
comparison to industry practice.
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We obtained an understanding of, assessed and tested
the relevant internal controls over the Group’s internal
governance and approval process on capitalisation of
development costs and examined the internal commercial
and technical feasibility reports.

BHMAFET EEEAHRMBEHRRPERAAERLEN
BEREEARS °

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of
capitalisation of development costs in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment
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The Group had significant property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB3,305 million as at 31 December 2021. A series
of major policies related to the in-depth reform of the pharmaceutical
industry imposed by the government of the People’s Republic of China
have created uncertainty in the financial performance of the Group’s
main products in general.
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Accordingly, the management identified impairment indicators and
performed impairment assessment of the cash generating units
("CGUs") that the property, plant and equipment were related to by
estimating the recoverable amount based on the value in use calculation
using discounted cash flow projections. This matter was significant to
our audit because the process of impairment assessment was complex
and involved significant judgements and estimates.
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Related disclosures are included in note 2.7 “Impairment of non-

financial assets”, note 2.8 “Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation”, note 3(d) “Impairment of property, plant and

equipment” and note 14 “Property, plant and equipment” to the

consolidated financial statements.
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We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
the evaluation of the methodologies used in the impairment
analysis.
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We evaluated the key assumptions including the product’s
projected market share, expected selling price and associated
costs applied in the future revenues and operating results
forecasts by comparing the forecasts with the historical
performance of the respective CGUs and the business
development plan.
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We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
concerning impairment of property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of intangible assets
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had deferred development costs
and product development in progress amounting to approximately
RMB164 million and RMB410 million, respectively, and the Group
recognised impairment provision for product development in progress
of RMB131 million during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
management made impairment assessment based on estimated future
cash flows generated by all pharmaceutical patents or licenses in
capitalisation of development costs that the Group possessed, and
projected product lifecycles experienced in the pharmaceutical industry.
This matter involved significant management judgements and estimates,
such as forecasted revenue growth, future beneficial life, profit margin
and discount rate. Changes in these assumptions might lead to a
change in the impairment results.
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Related disclosures are included in note 2.7 “Impairment of non-
financial assets”, note 2.10 “Intangible assets”, note 3(a) “Impairment
of deferred development costs and product development in progress”
to the consolidated financial

and note 18 “Intangible assets”

statements.
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We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluation of the methodologies and discount rate used in
the impairment analysis.
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We checked the key assumptions in the cash flow forecast,
including the product’s projected market share, expected
selling price and associated costs to be incurred against
analyst
of certain therapeutic area and benchmark data for

industrial commentaries, consensus forecasts
comparable companies where available. We assessed the
management’s forecast by comparison of the actual results

and the projections made in prior periods.
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We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of
impairment of intangible assets in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Other information included in the Annual Report
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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HERENEE®
EERMPBREBEBRETENETEZN — As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and

Do HEEZBETRMEBTEHE RRIF maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
FEERELEE KM

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2022

4 [Z ¥R % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 125



relBalEMemiaR

ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
THER COMPREHENSIVE INCOM

BE T - —F+_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

OF IFE’ROFIT OR LOSS AND

—B-—F —T-TF
2021 2020
LiEs2 ARETT AREETF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BEREEL CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Wy = Revenue 5 3,291,270 2,464,226
& P AR Cost of sales (842,754) (549,777)
EF GROSS PROFIT 2,448,516 1,914,449
H b g A Other income 5 192,263 172,560
H e - F5 Other gains — net 5 254,878 249,619
AR ETER M B A R R ek Gain on derecognition of subsidiaries 38 - 72,307
RIELE—KMBRAAH Gain on deemed disposal of a
Y as subsidiary 37 59,228 -
mEEEREBIE Impairment losses on intangible assets 18 (131,297) -
palc 13 Distribution expenses (547,490) (368,792)
TR Administrative expenses (607,488) (489,784)
T 78 & i B B 2 Research and development expenses (868,069) (729,157)
HiAX Other expenses (36,600) (34,077)
&R OPERATING PROFIT 763,941 787,125
WX Finance expenses 7 (119,311) (8,217)
AMhERERETED Share of losses of investments accounted
REESE for using the equity method 20 (158,581) (13,064)
HEKSEEBHN PROFIT BEFORE TAX
BR Bt Al g R FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 6 486,049 765,844
FT1S B 6 2 Income tax expense 10 (253,279) (219,040)
HEREEBN PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
F &R FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 232,770 546,804
ERIEREXK DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
BRI EEBY Loss for the year from discontinued
FEESR operations 11 - (34,917)
F E i F PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 232,770 511,887
AT AT : Attributable to:
ZN/NETEZ Z SN Owners of the Company 416,509 473,382
FEPE IR = Non-controlling interests (183,739) 38,505
232,770 511,887
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF P

R

OFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

—E-_—F ZETF
2021 2020
LiEs2 ARETT AREETF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FERA PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 232,770 511,887
FEHMZEKES OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
0 BR B 18 FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX - -
FE2EKZE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
wm FOR THE YEAR 232,770 511,887
AT AL : Attributable to:
RATHEA A Owners of the Company 416,509 473,382
FEIE AR Non-controlling interests (183,739) 38,505
FE2EKE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mm FOR THE YEAR 232,770 511,887
ARMT AR
RMB RMB
EAFREBA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EEERER TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 13
BRERAEF Basic earnings per share
F 2 5 A For profit for the year 4.42 % cents 5.00 9 cents
SIS E IS8 5 F For profit from continuing operations 4.42 % cents 5.31 ©cents
BREERT Diluted earnings per share
FEEF For profit for the year 4.39 Zcents 5.00 Zcents
2 485 40 A B g S T For profit from continuing operations 4.39 Zcents 5.31 Zcents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE-_—Ff+-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

R+=—A=+—8”
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-TE
2021 2020
B 5 AR¥T T AR T T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
LE & Property, plant and equipment 14 3,304,929 3,053,288
LEYE Investment properties 15 224,269 232,173
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 787,773 787,973
GRS Goodwill 17 28,352 12,312
mVEE Intangible assets 18 595,916 505,621
FRERETEDN Investments accounted for
®& using the equity method 20 705,533 1,070,387
BAFEFAEBEN Financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss 21 266,999 196,153
HEMIERBEE Other non-current assets 22 392,302 367,869
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 32 303,464 269,449
[REEEFER Pledged deposits 25 144,631 144,548
EMEBEELTE Total non-current assets 6,754,168 6,639,773
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 23 715,298 495,889
B 5 K& H b AR K Trade and other receivables 24 1,234,428 971,540
EAFEFAREDN Financial assets at fair value
CREE through profit or loss 21 109,304 332,683
B2 RBELZEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 5,682,425 4,604,041
MBEEBEE Total current assets 7,741,455 6,404,153
HmEE TOTAL ASSETS 14,495,623 13,043,926
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE-_—f+-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —ZT==
2021 2020
B e AR®ET T AREETF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
xR EQUITY
AENBEEBA Equity attributable to owners of
PEfh = the Company
% A% Share capital 26 77,058 78,186
R 17 4 (B Share premium 26 3,882,304 4,084,846
H i & 5 Other reserves 28 (221,437) 725,222
REB AT Retained earnings 28 4,546,223 4,302,088
8,284,148 9,190,342
IR R Non-controlling interests 865,918 758,383
MR Total equity 9,150,066 9,948,725
ERBEF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
EEHREAE Deferred tax liabilities 32 222,390 225,688
FPERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 33 813,216 331,173
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 31,463 2,510
AERAEE Contract liabilities 31 9,969 -
H3Emn®aE Other non-current liabilities 29 1,766,684 92,744
ERBABEETE Total non-current liabilities 2,843,722 652,115
REaE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 & E fth FE R AR Trade and other payables 30 1,971,289 1,830,161
FEERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 33 200,000 387,930
AHBE Contract liabilities 31 206,425 186,629
e ER B R Income tax payable 111,247 22,445
HEAG Lease liabilities 16 5,193 1,441
HERBBE Other current liabilities 29 7,681 14,480
mEBEERE Total current liabilities 2,501,835 2,443,086
weE TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,345,557 3,095,201
ERRABEREHE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 14,495,623 13,043,926
BHEH SR
Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
EFE 2
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RE-F--#+-A=t-BLFE

RNATRIEE AEME
Attributable to owners of the Company
BA  BROVEE  EiREE  REEA @5 FEERER BREn
Non-

Share Share Other  Retained Total  controlling Total

capital premium reserves earnings interests equity

iz AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZZ-TF—F—H At1January 2020 78,186 4,084,846 192,674 5,250,978 9,606,684 335,510 9,942,194

FNER Profit for the year - - - 473,382 473,382 38,505 511,887
BERMEETE - Employee share award scheme:

-BIRKEE - Value of employee services 27 - - 23,176 - 23,176 - 23,176
“T-NERBRE Final 2019 dividend 12 - - - (123,054)  (123,054) - (123,054)
ERESRE Special cash dividends 12 - - - (1,287,332) (1,287,332) - (1,287,332)
—E-ZEGAHKRE Interim 2020 dividend 12 - - - (9,466) (9,466) - (9,466)
BN EERRR Dividends paid to

& S non-controlling shareholders - - - - - (24,500)  (24,500)
BEEPEET Transfer to PRC statutory

FEe reserve fund 28 - - 2,420 (2,420) - - -
¥BamEEL Non-controlling interests

FERER arising on business combination - - - - - 6,993 6,993
HEHBAR Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - - 3,603 3,603
THERGEY Changes in interests in

& 2 A subsidiaries without change of

BREE control 29(iii) - - 506,952 - 506,952 398,272 905,224
R-ZZE_ZF At 31 December

+-A=+—H 2020 78,186 4,084,846 725,222 4,302,088 9,190,342 758,383 9,948,725
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RE-F-—F+-A=+-ALFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

LG 2PN

Attributable to owners of the Company

BA  ROEE HtHE  REEF @i FERER agn
Non-

Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserves earnings Total interests equity

B ARETFr ARETR AR¥Tz AR®Tr AR%Tr ARETr ARETn

Notes RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

R-E--%-F-H At 1 January 2021 78,186 4,084,846 725,222 4,302,088 9,190,342 758,383 9,948,725

EREF Profit for the year - - - 416,509 416,509 (183,739) 232,770
BRI KRS - Employee share award scheme:

- BTR%EE ~ Value of employee services 27 - - 59,350 - 59,350 = 59,350
“ZCTERBRE Final 2020 dividend 12 - - - (123,054)  (123,054) - (123,054)
BRI FEER Dividends paid to

R R P% S, non-controlling shareholders - - - - - (73,500) (73,500)
BREZHELE Transfer to PRC statutory

B reserve fund 28 - - 49320  (49,320) - - S
BEREERA Repurchase and cancellation of shares 26 (1,156)  (205,251) - - (206,407) - (206,407)
EITEERE Share options exercised 26127 28 2,709 - - 2,737 - 2,737
i ENG Recognition of redemption

BE&E liabilities on a subsidiary’s

%2 shares 29(i) - - (1,573,500) - (1,573,500) - (1,573,500)
B e[V Non-controlling interests

EHIEER arising on establishing

B a subsidiary - - - - - 1,000 1,000
el v Partial disposal of equity

LENBARSS interests in subsidiaries

i without change of control 28 - - 51,067 - 51,067 53,163 104,230
R SEI R Acquisition of non-controlling

s interests - - (8,844) - (8,844) (1,656)  (10,500)
B AR Capital contribution by non-

FERBRE controlling shareholders

B of subsidiaries 29iii) = - 475,948 - 475,948 312,267 788,215
R-B=-% At 31 December

+=A=t-8 2021 77,058 3,882,304 (221,437) 4,546,223 8,284,148 865,918 9,150,066
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

BE-_E-_—F+_A=+—HBILtFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

FLOWS

—EZ—F =%
2021 2020
Bt 5 AR¥T T AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BEFEH CASH FLOWS FROM

BEeERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BEELENRS® Cash generated from operations 34 868,825 441,344
2 PTEH Income tax paid (203,532) (214,213)
RETBNESREFHE Net cash flows from operating activities 665,293 227,131
BRETEH CASH FLOWS FROM

REeERE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HBME AT RS NE Additions of/capital contribution to

HEE AR RGEERELSE associates and a joint venture 20 = (105,291)
FE-FERBN Advances of loans to third parties (4,346) (11,025)
&N R EREN Advances of loans to associates (70,371) (71,055)
FE=FHEFERFKE Repayment of loans from third parties 15,058 6,037
B N RMENERFE Repayment of loans from associates 37,412 15,000
WK B AR HKkREE Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash (153,377) 1,508
HEHBAR  MKBE: Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash 38 = 117,571
BEWE BER Purchases of items of property,

B plant and equipment (601,017) (506,639)
BEERLAEAE Purchases of intangible assets 18 (124,565) (73,975)
BN T HEENK Prepaid land lease payments 16 (41,847) -
BERATETAEEZN Purchases of financial assets

SREE at fair value through profit or loss (20,041,950) (18,806,553)
HERATFESABEN Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

CRMEEMBRIE at fair value through profit or loss 20,193,103 18,593,926
EEWE BWER Proceeds from disposal of items

HEFTERIE of property, plant and equipment 34 3,133 5,512
B 7 S Increase in pledged deposits (83) (144,548)
24 8 Dividend received 20 317,637 =
2 WAIE Interest received 133,644 54,755
REEEFTA Net cash flows used in

HeREFH investing activities (337,569) (924,777)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

——F+ZAS+—ALEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

—E-_—F —Z2=F
2021 2020
Bt 5 AR¥T T AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MEED CASH FLOWS FROM
REeRE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BT IRITIERRIE Repayment of bank borrowings 35 (537,970) (376,075)
AT A PTG HIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 35 832,083 1,103,178
B H fib & 3K %’\Iﬁi\ Repayment of other borrowings 35 (4,470) _
HE M ERATSHRIE Proceeds from other borrowings 35 4,000 -
ﬁ%[]liaiiﬁﬂx 7 Repurchase and cancellation of shares 26 (206,407) -
B 1T AR i Share options exercised 26/27 2,737 -
FERBHBEEMNK Principal portion of lease payments 16/35 (3,187) (3,152)
U BE JE 42 PR 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interests 30 (5,250) (10,000)
—MFRIME AR EEN Non-controlling interests arising
eI AR R on establishing a subsidiary 1,000 -
SR o R Partial disposal of equity interests
2 HEME A E D AR E in subsidiaries without change of control 104,230 -
Bt 8 X B B9 FEFE PR AR R Capital contribution by non-controlling
& shareholders of subsidiaries 788,215 915,224
BRAQARE R Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders
IR Z AR E and non-controlling shareholders 35 (196,389) (1,444,352)
EAF B Interest paid 35 (27,932) (279)
MEETBRMEE Net cash flows from financing
ReREFE activities 750,660 184,544
ReRBELEEYEM NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
(R ) =8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,078,384 (513,102)
FORe R Cash and cash equivalents
ReEEBED at beginning of year 4,604,041 5,117,143
ERRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RELEEY AT END OF YEAR 25 5,682,425 4,604,041
REeRBESEEYER ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
by AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BR& RIRITHE Cash and bank balances 3,689,923 2,947,415
EERZEHTR Unpledged time deposits 1,992,502 1,656,626
TaMBARRER R Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
REBReRER the consolidated statement of financial
oz BEE Rk position and the consolidated statement
REeZEEY of cash flows 5,682,425 4,604,041

FE
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BE-_E-_—F+_A=+—HBILtFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are the research
and development (“R&D"), and the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
products and medical aesthetic products in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of the principal place of
business of the Group in Hong Kong is Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the address of the
principal place of business in Beijing is 22/F, Building 4, Zhubang 2000, West
Balizhuang, Chaoyang District, Beijing 100025, the PRC.

The Company had its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all
IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and interpretations,
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
"IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
wealth management products, notes receivable and equity investments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
year as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1

2.2
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Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’'s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

T FBEEN E — F2ER

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Bl B B TS R 5 AR B BB 1 65 OB RT
Amendment to IFRS 16

ZE - FRNAS S AU ER 201978 M K F R
1A B a9 2 5% (PR AT IR A)
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021 (early adopted)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(@)  Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the next
24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy.

The amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:
(continued)

(b)  Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-related rent
concessions and plans to apply the practical expedient when it
becomes applicable within the allowed period of application.
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S 7% % 5 22 A
REEY BN KU B RERRM
PATF BB 6 18 1 R A2 A0 37 8T R
ST EIR B B R A -

B B B 75 R 45 AE BI| SB35k MU FT
Amendments to IFRS 3

BRI EERFE 105 KBRS LR FE 2850 ER]

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

BIFR B 75 s R 1750
IFRS 17

B 5 B 75 S 5 AR R SR 1 7SR 1B R T
Amendments to IFRS 17

B ERE1RMBE]
Amendments to IAS 1

R ERFE IR AR ERELENEBE RS E2RNIERT
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

e R EeR BT
Amendments to IAS 8

B ERFE 125 MBE]
Amendments to IAS 12

R R E 165 AERT
Amendments to IAS 16

R ERIEI7RAEE]
Amendments to IAS 37

BBV BERELEN - NFE_Z-_TFENFEIE
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

B HERZ 52T

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

REZHABENAKE ELEZFHEELE
BF &

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint venture®

R & #7?

Insurance Contracts?

R 2 492

Insurance Contracts**

B (B2 7300 B 2 I B

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

215 5

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

-0

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

18— XX 5 R K E R B (B A 85T B
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?

YE  BERRE - KEHSE AT ESR
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use'

BIEEHN — ETTE MK

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

BIRRE IS S ERIE 157~ BIRR AT IS S 2E R E 95
BB #2521 65 BB
FYIREIBR @5 ERIE 41 5 BTIEET

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 417
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June

2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable

to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3
should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will

not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’'s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by
the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available

for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the year if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 B ME M 1B R A XA B BR 2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)
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Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's

accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that
occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than

leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and
a deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the

earliest comparative period presented.

DY 3R B8 B ik &5 B B BR A B] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



2. FTEETHERBE

(/é%)

2.3

B 78 7 1B 18 K &£ 8 Bl R
B R 5 2B ()
B & 2B B 165 M T2
FREWE  WERRERAFR
MBEEENERER TS
PRk B (I B B 5 1) B2
EEMSHLERS AR B
% 8 45 & A A TR B 0 TS
B R ANET A B o HEIET
e e = Y
R EE IR AN TR
BAEREBEINSBERES
5| ) 5% 5 HARS 5O 44 B o > 14 AT
EROYME BERXBEEER
WM - R HIRERM o X
STHES £kt Lolg & o
ELEAREAYE -

BB & Rt A B B 375k 0 & 5T R
B BIREBER g R ERIFE375
HFHEENETBERIEMSE R
TANNRARREANERR
BARRK AR - S5 4 B R AR MK
RBIERITHAKNILERA(FI
MEESTREME) REETEHN
HEMERNEAMRAD R (G
EETANMAYE BERR
BEANMEMIULAHER
HEERA) - —REITRERSE
BT EEXBE BRIESLHH
BASFTRE DRIKEHR
B ZFEITBE-_FT-__F—
A—BRszKREMFEMAEE
Mo UEARNBERERERARM
EBANFEERESNRMRKER
HABITEEZMEENEGL - A
FFIRER#M - 1T EBETNE
MARBEERNYIGER B HE
RPN AE ABASE
FILL AR - MHZEET T
UAEENPMBBRELEAE

B2 48R
ANEE-

8175 5 < I ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to IFRS
1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details
of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are

as follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.

o IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.4

2.5

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment

and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process

that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5 Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6 Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.
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28 ME -BMERZEURIF 2.8 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
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Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The residual rate and estimated useful lives used
for this purpose are as follows:

et

&£ A & 1

BEX Estimated
Residual rate  useful lives

By

EENEFRE

BAERE

5% 102354
10 to 35 years

Production and electronic equipment 5% 3E10%

3 to 10 years

Office equipment 5% 3E104F

3 to 10 years

Motor vehicles 5% 4F 105

4 to 10 years
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings, production
and electronic equipment, office equipment, motor vehicles under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purpose.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated
using a straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over the estimated useful lives of the properties. The residual values
and useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The effects of any
revision are included in the profit or loss when the changes arise.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(a) R&D

(i)

(ii)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities (relating to the design and testing of new or
improved products) is capitalised under the category of
“product development in progress” if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
the development, the Group has sufficient ability to use
or sell the asset, the asset will generate future economic
benefit, and the cost can be reliably measured. Upon the
commencement of the commercial production of a product,
the expenditure on development activities is transferred to
“deferred development costs” and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of its expected benefit. R&D costs
comprise costs that are directly attributable to R&D activities
or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such

activities.

Deferred development costs that are acquired by the
Group are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated amortisation and any

impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

R&D (continued)

(i)  Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its
acquisition or its completion is recognised as an expense
when it is incurred unless it is probable that this expenditure
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits
in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance
and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the
asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the subsequent
expenditure is added to the cost of the intangible asset.

(iv)  Amortisation of deferred development costs is charged
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products which is not
exceeding 5 to 15 years.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are initially recorded at historical

cost. Trademarks acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks

over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Computer systems

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) continued)
(d) Customer relationships

The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of 5 years.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The effects of any revision are recognised

in profit or loss when the changes arise.

2.11 Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

255504
25 to 50 years

2E5EF
2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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2. TEETHRME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(&) (continued)
21 BE %) 2.11 Leases (continued)
KEFIEBAFAN (&) Group as a lessee (continued)
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(c)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other

comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(a)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2. FEESTHEHME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) (continued)
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(b) B#E

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(b) Subsequent measurement
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The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

(debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss when

the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit
or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in

other comprehensive income is recycled to the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the consolidated profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

164 | PH3B%S s R% % M AR 2 5 SHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



8175 5 < I ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. FEESTHEHME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) (continued)
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2.13 Derecognition of financial assets
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,

removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:
° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from

the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2. FEESTHEHME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(%) (continued)
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting
date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments are considered
to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments.
In addition, the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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2. TEETHRME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(%) (continued)
Q14 REERE ) 2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

2.15 Financial liabilities

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2. FEESTHEHME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) (continued)

215 mEEE) 2.15 Financial liabilities (continued)
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(b) Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated profit
or loss.

2.16 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability

is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises R&D costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.
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(&) (continued)
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

2.19 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the year
in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(&) (continued)

219 BN AR IERERL (42)
(b) EAFH

2.19 Current and deferred tax (continued)
(b) Deferred tax
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Inside basis differences

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the year
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for the associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.
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(&) (continued)
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2.19 Current and deferred tax (continued)
(b) Deferred tax (continued)
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Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and an
associate only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable

profit available against which the temporary difference can be

E 2= EE AIBR AN © utilised.

(c) #H# (c) Offsetting
fi7B B EWMTITHEF LA BDEARL Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
HEERERBEREEE - enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
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liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where

there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the

Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with

the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are

included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are

credited to the consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

expected lives of the related assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in the retirement insurance and medical
insurance scheme organised by the local social security bureau
pursuant to the relevant provisions. The Group is required to make
monthly contributions in respect of the above insurance scheme
to the local social security bureau based on the monthly salaries of
its employees. The Group has no further liabilities other than the
above defined contributions. The Group’s contributions under the
scheme are charged to the consolidated profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at
the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope
of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the year are discounted to their

present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.
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2. FEETHRBE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(&) (continued)
221 EERA (&) 2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(d) ESKE (d) Employee leave entitlements
EBERKAEEENZEE Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
R -EREEEEFREH accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
RREEL FRIGTBER for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
# o to the end of the year.
BENTFEREEBENESR Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
FB R EREERERR o recognised until the time of leave.
2.2 R AER TR 2.22 Share-based payments
(a) URELZENWEKGE (a) Equity-settled share-based payment transaction
X5
REBETETURESE The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
ARy BER R EETE compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
REFE - (ERAEEER from employees as consideration for equity instruments (awards)
TEA(EBE)MNRE: B8 of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received in
EBREERE - FRRHE exchange for the grant of the awards is recognised as an expense.
B MR BSHEESRBED The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
NEEERELH - BFX the fair value of the awards granted:
THEY B S RE T2 P R
WAFEMmMETE :
i BIEER TS RIE R . including any market performance conditions (for example,
N(NEEHRE) an entity’s share price);
. TEBEEARS &IE . excluding the impact of any service and non-market
mH KRG B KT performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
(mBEFEEH - HE sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
MEAELAETEH entity over a specified time period); and

MEEERER
¥e: R

e  DREEMIIHEGKMH . including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
(MEkEEBRE K example, the requirement for employees to save or hold
REETHEFBER shares for a specified period of time).

MINFE -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transaction
(continued)

At the end of each year, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of awards that are expected to vest based on the
non-market performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

In addition, in some circumstances, employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date
fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between the service commencement period and
the grant date.

2.23 Revenue recognition

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects

to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical
aesthetic products is recognised at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products.
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2. FEESTHEHME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(&) (continued)

2.23 =R (&) 2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) At IR
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(c) A A

MBI LB EEAER
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(b) Revenue from other sources

(c)

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

W RRPTNER & TR discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
STl A R (SR e B F‘Eﬁ of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
(iEE)) NEREEE to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

A EREEFEN X 7‘"

IATERR ©

B R IR B 2 R A R

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to

- BERSEE KB receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
mAEARERANER - MR economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
SLMBEER SEHET 2R - I’ Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
SWAERAR -

TR LA 3 AR 7 B0 M AR &
MR MS 2R - £
BAERGERFERER
TEMBENEE  BARAE
EMRBAERREFEF A
EHNEE(BEXEER
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Income from the provision of R&D services is recognised over time,
using an input method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The input method recognises income
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services.

Sale of distribution rights is recognised over the scheduled period

BETER - VAR EFRE on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
WG FERAAREEFTIEHRS receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
s o
22454 ’éfa 2.24 Contract liabilities
EHEERASEEZHBE R A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a

EXHE%%ZH\ WEEPNREE
REEBMOAREE R E) B E
R-ANBEBERAKERTELN
(BEE 2 AR RE & o 3k AR 7% O 428 ) 4
TEP)BHERSUKE

payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group

transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised

as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers

control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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2. FESTHERME 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(&) (continued)
2.25 & # KA 2.25 Contract costs
BREXRLAEEFE W - JP?;Z}?‘% )Si Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
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and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria

are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are

expensed as incurred.

2.26 Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividend and
special dividend are disclosed in the note 12 to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are

proposed and declared.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.27 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company’'s functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying

net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the

consolidated profit or loss within “other gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2. TESHHEBE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(%) (continued)
227 INEERE () 2.27 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) ZEEALF (c) Group companies
AN EBEZY EE R The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
H ZEBERBMOERER which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
REE2E) 22BN a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
BHRRBEBUTENE translated into the presentation currency as follows:
e
() ZEERNEELB (i) assets and liabilities of these entities are translated at the
BERFRZBMER closing rate at the end of year;
(iy ZEBREEBEzRZZKEA (i) income and expenses in the profit or loss of these entities
LT IRTFHE KR are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
B BRIFEFBTHIAL average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
R GHHEBA—MRELE effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
ZEATE LR which case income and expenses are translated at the rates
PE MAERER on the dates of the transactions);

T MARBEER
SEBMLLERE ;

(i) SHEMFABEEKRE (i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
EZHEREMEE Y in other comprehensive income.

WEERINEREELE Y HER Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

NFEEAEREBEIINEE a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

ZEEREBE  RRHMER entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation

H MEANEBHEZES differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

P E At 2 T W 2 AR
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.28 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity

(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.28 Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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TT) e

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of deferred development costs and
product development in progress

The Group's management determines the estimated future cash flows
generated by all pharmaceutical patents or licences in capitalisation of
development costs and all product development in progress that the
Group possessed. These estimates are based on projected product life
cycles in the pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the capitalised development costs when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of
related development costs.

The carrying amount of deferred development costs as at 31 December
2021 was RMB 164,299,000 (31 December 2020: RMB194,701,000). The
carrying amount of product development in progress as at 31 December
2021 was RMB410,405,000 (31 December 2020: RMB302,092,000).
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Goodwill impairment

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
indication that the goodwill may be impaired in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.5 to the Financial Statements. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB28,352,000 (31 December 2020: RMB12,312,000). Details of the
estimates used to calculate the recoverable amounts are disclosed in

note 17 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment was made by management with reference to the established
industry practices, technical assessments made on the durability of
the assets, as well as the historical magnitude and trend of repair
and maintenance expenses incurred by the Group. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions
in responses to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are less than
those previously estimated or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash flows
of each cash-generating unit that the property, plant and equipment
are assigned to. These estimates are based on product life cycles in the

pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the property, plant and equipment when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of

related property, plant and equipment.
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3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

()

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax and deferred taxation. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary

course of business.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different. Details of the deferred taxation are
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for R&D costs in note 2.10 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of
benefits. At 31 December 2021, the management estimated the carrying
amount of capitalised development costs in progress was approximately
RMB410,405,000 (2020: RMB302,092,000). More details are given in

note 18 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on their products and services and has three reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@)  the medical aesthetic products segment including the filling, shaping,
supporting, supplementing, optoelectronic device, body sculpturing, skin
care and others to provide non- or minimally invasive medical aesthetics

comprehensive solutions;
(b)  the innovative medicine and other medicine segment; and
(¢)  the generic medicine segment.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the board of the Company who review the Group’s internal reports
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has

determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors of the board of the Company consider the business from
the product perspective. Prior to 1 January 2021, the Group was engaged in
one business segment. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has successfully transformed itself into a medical aesthetic and pharmaceutical
company. The revenue from medical aesthetic products increased significantly
to RMB398,954,000 (2020: RMB26,867,000). The Group has changed the
structure of its internal organisation in a manner which resulted in the change in
reportable segments into three business segments, being the medical aesthetic
products, innovative medicine and other medicine and generic medicine.
Accordingly, the corresponding information for the year ended 31 December
2020 has been restated.

Information relating to segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as such
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker who
assesses the performance of the operating segments based on their revenue

and operating profit rather than their assets and liabilities.
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4, DEFER @)

BE-_Z-_—H+-A=+—HLEFE

4., SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

BXER ANMERHMER GEE: Fohy
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AR¥T AR% T AR¥T AR% T
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
2 BB ER (B EE5) Segment Revenue (note 5)
IERE P HE Sales to external customers 398,954 294,175 2,598,141 3,291,270
DEBEE Intersegment sales - 63,814 - 63,814
398,954 357,989 2,598,141 3,355,084
HE Reconciliation:
o b 84 5 4 8 Elimination of intersegment sales (63,814)
FELE A Revenue from continuing operations 3,291,270
DEEE Segment results 248,472 (889,574) 1,307,001 665,899
R - Reconciliation:
A #EHEMEA Unallocated other income 22,778
R LY e Unallocated other gains
- %H - net 59,235
TAnEHER Unallocated expenses (101,930)
R Lk Unallocated finance expenses (1,352)
DEE AR Share of losses of investments
HEHERE accounted for using the
&8 equity method (158,581)
RERBLEEBZ Profit before tax from
W 15 A1 A continuing operations 486,049
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4. TEHER =) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2020
BXEm Ak HAZER h8d%E st
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARBF T ARBF T ARBEF T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2 B UL 5 (B 5E5) Segment Revenue (note 5)
IBEFHE Sales to external customers 26,867 239,165 2,198,194 2,464,226
DEBEE Intersegment sales - 213,440 - 213,440
26,867 452,605 2,198,194 2,677,666
IR - Reconciliation:
2 EB B 51 & ¥ 8 Elimination of intersegment sales (213,440)
SE B IS Revenue from continuing operations 2,464,226
D EBELE Segment results 23,191 (472,240) 1,374,647 925,598
HER - Reconciliation:
TR D e E A A Unallocated other income 20,085
A H#HEMERE Unallocated other losses
ik - net (72,718)
AHENER Unallocated expenses (94,057)
DR AERE Share of losses of investments
FFEMERA accounted for using the
i agi! equity method (13,064)
REFELEEK 2 Profit before tax from
Fr B4 A1 8 A continuing operations 765,844

HRAEEETHMENERDEEY
R EARE ABE_T-—FK_
Z_EFE+_A=+—-HLFE  X&
BAEATFRANRALRS P BEKED
%% REERP B RELEREIRE
EARHRTE  WAR2ZBHBE D HBE

B o

o

BHE_ZT-_—4F+_-_A=+—81It#F
E - FEHEHURESHEAREEH
B EEAEERZE10%H U E(ZF
ZTEE)NDEE

Since nearly all of the Group’s non-current assets were located in Mainland
China and almost all of the revenue of the Group is derived from operations
in the Mainland China for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. No
geographical segment information is presented in accordance with IFRS 8
Operating Segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all sales were from distributors and
there were no distributors of the Group from which the revenue amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue (2020: Nil).
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5. #E - Hl A R Wz 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WD OT : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—E-—&F —T-THF
2021 2020
AR® TR ARBEF T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
EEA M Revenue from contracts with customers 3,291,270 2,464,226
A 3 .
EFEHNWE Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) #HhwmEH (a) Disaggregated revenue information
2021 2020
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EmER Type of goods
HEBZEEMR Sale of pharmaceutical products and
BEXE® medical aesthetic products 3,291,270 2,464,226
BEAHREET Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,291,270 2,464,226
i & ™ 5 Geographical markets
A A Mainland China 3,291,270 2,464,226
BEAHREET Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,291,270 2,464,226
W EREE Timing of revenue recognition
EXE - KHMERNE® Goods transferred at a point in time 3,291,270 2,464,226
BEEAHWRZRE Total revenue from contracts with customers 3,291,270 2,464,226
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5. Wz -Hk ARUWE= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

EEEHWE 2 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) BHERAEH 4)
TREFNEF NSRS HE

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with

R ENSEOEE customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

BE-®--f+-A=+-8

Year ended 31 December 2021

LFEE
RIFEER
EBXEm HithZm el s #at
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AR%T AR¥T T ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
pal: & Segment Revenue
SNERE P 3 & Sales to external customers 398,954 294,175 2,598,141 3,291,270
HEEEE Intersegment sales - 63,814 - 63,814
398,954 357,989 2,598,141 3,355,084
HER Recondiliation:
7 EB [ 8 5 B Elimination of intersegment sales (63,814)
FREg Revenue from continuing
Uz operations 3,291,270
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. WzE  -Hk ARUWZE= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

EEEHWE 2 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) DEKRAEFR &) (a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
TREBVNEBPAYHWFED LE Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts
B ENSEEE (&) with customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information:
(continued)
HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H Year ended 31 December 2020
EFE
BlIFTEE K
BxEm H At 22 {7 442 #Et
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
pal: & Segment Revenue
IR HE Sales to external customers 26,867 239,165 2,198,194 2,464,226
DEEEE Intersegment sales - 213,440 - 213,440
26,867 452,605 2,198,194 2,677,666
HER - Reconciliation:
53 5 [ 35 6 H 8E Elimination of intersegment sales (213,440)
S E Revenue from continuing
gz operations 2,464,226
TEZ2HINAEEBALREL The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised for the
HAAYBBERR E—EERBT year that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
HWEAOEETER WSS year and recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous
years:
R+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
ZEZ—F —E_ZF
2021 2020
AR® TR ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AAFUAEHABERRN Revenue recognised that was included in contract
Wz liabilities at the beginning of the year:
g 9 y
HEBHEERD K Sale of pharmaceutical products and medical
BXEM aesthetic products 186,354 316,995
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations

Sale of pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of the
pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products and payment
is generally due within 90 to 180 days from delivery, except for new

customers, where payment in advance is normally required.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable

BRE - consideration which is constrained.
Hhug A Other income

—EZ—F T HF
2021 2020
AR® T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Interest income 163,948 135,728
& o S AEx) Sale of distribution rights (i) 3,526 9,300
ik g ON(D) R&D income (ii) 6,183 13,386

REMEKEHREZ Gross rental income from investment property
T & WA 48 5 i) operating leases (iii) 7.116 7,433
E A Others 11,490 6,713
192,263 172,560
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5. WkxHE - HMWARWKE®E 5.

Hib W A )

(i) ARHEEIHELFERERAE
SENEEER - B AR
IRA - BED HENIME TS
BRPEAM - BHEBERM
RGRERERET  LELFS
ST EREHRBS AT RN RIE -
HEDHENENHARR=2H
F-R+T_A=+—B HE=
BTIENZTB(RETHHOKE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Other income (continued)

(i) Sale of distribution rights is included in other income as it is not derived
from the Group’s principal activities. The geographical market of all the
sale of distribution rights is Mainland China. The performance obligation
is satisfied over time as services are rendered and advances are normally
required before rendering the services. Sale of distribution rights
contracts is for periods of three to five years. The amounts of transaction
prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

TINXSERET

R+=—A=+—~

As at 31 December
—E=-—F —T_TF
2021 2020
AR TR ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEEKERRSHEMBKANEE - Amounts expected to be recognised as other income:

—F A Within one year 5,383 275
—Fi& After one year 9,969 -
15,352 275

TR 2570 F AR IR F YA

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised for the

AEHNBBEZWEETE year that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
year:
—E-—F —EEF
2021 2020
AR®T T AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AAFUEHAERRO K ¢ Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year:
& o i Sale of distribution rights 275 9,300
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5. Wz -Hk ARUWE= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

HibU A 42) Other income (continued)

(i) HBHARBRALIFRERAEER (i) R&D income is included in other income as it is not derived from the
MEBEK  FEaT AEU Group's principal activities. The geographical market of all the R&D
A e WA ETHYE &S income is Mainland China. The performance obligation is satisfied over
Wi - BAEGEIREREE time as services are rendered and payment is generally due within 30
BERFEI BT - —MRZENFRE B E days from the date of billing.

#3008 A o

iy BARREVEKLEHREZHESIW (i) Gross rental income from investment property operating leases is
ARBUWIERENAEENETE included in other income as it is not derived from the Group’s principal
2 RN WET AEMUY A - T activities. An analysis of rental income is as follows:
SWANDHAT -
—EZ—F —ETF
2021 2020
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
&% Geographical markets
5 Hong Kong 5,219 6,597
B A 4 Mainland China 1,897 836
7,116 7,433
Hith gz - F58 Other gains - net
—EZ—F —ETF
2021 2020
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 48 BACG) Government grants (i) 250,805 156,228
RIEHEBE AR 2N Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate
Y& (B #E20) (note 20) 7,136 80,488
[E 5 (E8),/ g8 Exchange (losses)/gains, net (4,571) 7,272
EBEATFEAABRNEREEN Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
2T E W through profit or loss 1,304 2,683
e BE BT /BB A &) A U 2 Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary = 2,830
H Al Others 204 118
254,878 249,619
() BT BY 4B #E b 75 BUR Y ER B3R (i) The total government grants represented the subsidies received from the
B DY 7 1 IR A O R B local government and no specific conditions were attached to them.
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6. BRBEATE R

AEBERBFEELEB 2B

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at after

kR charging:
—E=—F =
2021 2020
B eE ARBTT ARKETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EERAMXE Employee benefit expenses (including
(BREEFkE&R directors’ and chief executive’s
T B B (BT 7E8)) remuneration (note 8))
ITERF® Wages and salaries 540,373 501,370
RAK & 5 &N FRG3) Pension scheme contributions (i) 96,796 49,428
& F Welfares 19,997 17,509
LARE 17 B LB 9 5 3R Share-based payments 27 59,350 23,176
716,516 591,483
a2 Research expenses 571,771 538,498
O & 17 5 5 AN Cost of inventories sold (ii) 613,840 436,299
WM HEN Depreciation of property, plant and
0 485 37 EE (i) equipment (i) 14 246,095 215,580
{5 FB 4 & B 4T (i) Depreciation of right-of-use assets (iii) 16 23,472 21,465
4 0 B B 8 Amortisation of intangible assets (iii) 18 31,896 28,180
HEYYE HER Loss on disposal of property, plant and
e equipment 2,411 1,936
A EREER Impairment losses on intangible assets 18 131,297 -
WRGESZ=aan Write-down of inventories to net realisable
F1E value 9,047 10,014
KA EEBBEHED Lease payments not included in the
HMENE measurement of lease liabilities 8,113 5,336
B4 Auditor’s remuneration 5,000 5,000
BITTFEE Bank charges 2,109 1,267
(i) VEAEE » ANEBERKEZR (i) There are no forfeited contributions at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil)

EAAREEREHRIOKTEHZ
E-—F+ZA=+—HBHHEX
KWHK(ZE=_TF : &) -

(i) BEEFEERAEEEHRAZEM (i
HEA  TEEEEAIRAR

HEEM -

that may be used by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions in the future years.

Cost of inventories sold represent the cost of raw materials used in
the inventories, which did not include direct labours, manufacturing
overheads.
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6. BRI ATE R 2) 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)
(iii) SERSEBENYME BELERE (iii) Depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
EREEENEREENTE & and intangible assets from continuing operations:
i
—E-—F —T-TF
2021 2020
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTA Included in:
& A Cost of sales 132,057 122,829
WREAERX Research and development expenses 77,338 58,789
bok =12 Distribution expenses 74 303
THRRAX Administrative expenses 91,994 83,304
7. MBEAX 7. FINANCE EXPENSES
HECEEBNVBRI>TOT - An analysis of finance expenses from continuing operations is as follows:
:g: - q—: —_=_ 7
2021 2020
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
NTEBENFERX Interest expenses on:
AT 2R AT M E b fE 3 (BT 5£33) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 33) 44,739 10,929
MEARBRMOHEREAE Redemption liabilities on a subsidiary’s shares
(Pf5E29) (note 29) 89,283 -
HEBEME6) Lease liabilities (note 16) 815 279
EEAFEFTAEBZSMEMERE  Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at
g fair value through profit or loss 134,837 11,208
B BRI T E Less: Interest capitalised (15,526) (2,991)
119,311 8,217
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8. EERERITHAENF 8.
[
1B E AR AL - BB 2 A B 5 383(1)

@ (b)) OROEARLFR(REES
Ma B ROE2RI RBEEERER

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE's REMUNERATION

Directors’ and executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

TBRAEFRAEHFMOT : Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

—E_—F —ECTF

2021 2020

ARETT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e Fees 966 1,016
HEHiE - Other emoluments:

e Salaries 21,220 21,265

BAIK S F IR Pension scheme contributions 45 51

Eh ot R EYH = Other allowances and benefits in kind 73 455

ARG R4 E e BE AR A B Equity-settled share option expense 4,591 1,366

26,895 24,153

FA-CBRARBARBDBRE SRS
TEERHBRE AXRFTEHEAEE
BIRTS - HBER MMM 27 - %
LRERE(CREBHNEBEANER) W
ATEERREAREE  XFEHH
BEMBSEHRI N LA EERRSTT
BABMFHBEES -

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 27 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE's REMUNERATION

B ) (continued)
() BUFHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FALINFEIERNITEENHE The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year
W were as follows:

DREFEEN

BRERX

Equity-settled
wue share option #act
Fees expense Total
AR T AR® TR AR® T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—ET-—F 2021

FEELA Mr. Patrick Sun 343 725 1,068
et Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 343 725 1,068
RAAIE + Dr. Zhu Xun 280 725 1,005
966 2,175 3,141

LA P 4 45 & #Y

5 A% 1 A 2

Equity-settled
e share option #Et
Fees expense Total
ARET T AR T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—E-TF 2020

FEEERLE Mr. Patrick Sun 368 216 584
SR S A Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 368 216 584
KE L Dr. Zhu Xun 280 216 496
1,016 648 1,664

FABMEBEAEMNBIIFNTEEX
NEMME(ZZE_2F : &) o

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).
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8. EERESMITHAEME 8. DIRECTORS' AND EXECUTIVE's REMUNERATION
B ) (continued)
(b) HITEE - FHITESER (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
BEefTHRAE chief executive
Hihm@Ri R
B BYRE UREZEDN
sTEIfAtR Other BB AR RE A X2
Pension allowances Equity-settled
e scheme and benefits share option et
Salaries contributions in kind expense Total
AR¥T R AR TR AR TR AR TR AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
T —& 2021
WITES Executive directors:
B E Dr. Che Fengsheng
(X5%) (chairman) 10,000 - - - 10,000
204 B A Dr. Guo Weicheng 6,000 - = = 6,000
RAWBE BE Dr. Zhang Jionglong 831 15 - - 846
BERASE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 2,987 15 - 1,450 4,452
PR 3% 22 & Ms. Chen Yanling 1,402 15 73 966 2,456
21,220 45 73 2,416 23,754
EHITES - Non-executive director:
B A Mr. Kim Jin Ha* = - - _ .
21,220 45 73 2,416 23,754
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8. EERBRITHAENH

B )

(b) MITES  FHUTESK

ReTHRAE#)

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE's REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and the
chief executive officer (continued)

HAb AL &
RIkE EMFE ARELEER
FTEIft Other AR A 2
Pension allowances  Equity-settled
e scheme and benefits share option #Et
Salaries contributions in kind expense Total
ARETT AR T T AR T T AR T T AR T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
—E-TF 2020
HITES Executive directors:
B Dr. Che Fengsheng
() (chairman) 10,000 - - - 10,000
20 4 5 A& Dr. Guo Weicheng 6,000 - - - 6,000
RAMER Dr. Zhang Jionglong 893 16 - - 909
BB A Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 3,211 16 - 431 3,658
PR IS 22 £ Ms. Chen Yanling 1,161 19 455 287 1,922
21,265 51 455 718 22,489
EHITES - Non-executive director:
CHRE L Mr. Kim Jin Ha* - - - - -
21,265 51 455 718 22,489

SHBRAR-B-—%E)\fA
NEBERARAMERTES
W -

Mr. Kim Jin Ha was resigned as a non-executive director of the Company on

6 August 2021.

FAMBEERRSTRAERERF
EREEMHFM LB -

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive officer
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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9.

LEBESHEER

N EAREFREBRECRES
(ZZ-ZT4F: MBEF)  AHHHE
WA EXH S ERNBTRE(ZF
SEE R UHARANEERRT
BN B B % 5 18 B 15 B 7
mE

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2020: four directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2020:
one) highest paid employees who are not a director nor chief executive of the

Company are as follows:

—EZ—F —ETF
2021 2020
AR¥T T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR  EEMI - E#L & Basic salaries, housing allowances, other allowances and
B & benefits in kind 5,126 1,246
VARR 0 /3 EE 8 B9 15 3K Share-based payments 2,563 425
7,689 1,671

FHMNFUATHENRSHEECGFE
ERERBITHRAB)ABMNAT ¢

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

—E-—F —E-FF
2021 2020

e E Emolument bands
1,500,001 % 7T 22,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 - 1
3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,000 7T HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 1 -
5,500,001 7T £6,000,000/%8 7T HK$5,500,001-HK$6,000,000 1 -
2 1

FARRBEFE BREERT -
AERBHFEECGFEERIRSITHA
B) UWREZBEUAKENRYE  #F1
HRMBRMERME27TORES - ZFH
E#E(ENREBURBANER)HAF
EERFHBEMET  AFEHMBHRE
EeHEHEIN LS HRERECGEFE
ERERBITRABNHFHEES -

BHE-_T-_—FEK-_ZT=-_FTF+=A
=+—BLFE AEBTEREZERN
SE A TSI E AR E L
B ARE  THEESI ST M
ATHERDEIFAEEHS -

During the year and in prior years, share options were granted to a non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of his
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in
note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no payments had been
made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid individuals in respect of
an inducement to join or compensation for loss of office, and no directors or
the highest paid individuals waived any of the emoluments.
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10. FREH B X 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
REBHE-_ZE-_—FR_ZT_ZTF The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021
T A=+ —HBIEFEMNEREAS S and 2020 is analysed as follows:

T :
—EB-—F —TTF
2021 2020
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

B ER R 18 Current tax 290,592 147,200

R SE A5 28 (P 5E32) Deferred tax (note 32) (37,313) 71,840

RERBREXEBNFARIE Total tax charge for the year from

R continuing operations 253,279 219,040

KEERIECEEBENFARNRIE  Total tax charge for the year from

7 4258 discontinued operations = -
253,279 219,040
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10. FRGHLBE X ) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
NEBBRADEFR (BB EEK The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical
RERAREHEERNNEERRTHE amount that would arise from using the statutory tax rate applicable to profits
MIEmEBBAR - FHy T of the consolidated entities as follows:
—E-—& —TTF
2021 2020
AR¥T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEADR A (B R) Profit/(loss) before tax 486,049 730,927
RERFBEEEEE From continuing operations 486,049 765,844
READKRIEREER From discontinued operations = (34,917)
2 E Eiﬁ #25% Tax calculated at the PRC applicable statutory tax rate
(ZZE-ZTF : 25%):TEMHE of 25% (2020: 25%) 121,512 182,732
THEENRBEE Tax effects of:
- AL ABROHEER — Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (59,119) (24,858)
-REEERRENTE — Effect of tax concessions and exemption (344,811) (197,422)
LR 53 — Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,073 1,372
-REAERR BT BB IE — Adjustments recognised in the period for current tax
) 2 of prior periods 30,685 14,657
-BEBBMEARNMEELENRF — Profits attributable to associates and joint ventures 37,868 4,131
-RERESHBNETEHENTE — Effect on opening deferred tax of increase in rates 3,666 -
- AT — Income not subject to tax (4,733) (7,750)
- AERELEHRIEEEMNBIEEX — Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset
was recognised 467,138 246,178
FTERIMAE Income tax expense 253,279 219,040
BRENESH Bermuda profits tax
REBFNEZREERBRMMNEMR The Group was not subject to any taxation in this jurisdiction during the year
BE(ZZE-TF : £\) - (2020: Nil).
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BH)
PECEMEGRERSAKRAEENR
ARFPEEENERBRA (ERED
Ak B %S BLRB R AT NG B
CEMBHMER)HRRME

REEN T BN ERRREDHEEMR
SRR IRIE25%EE R BREEMF
i e

AEBETHERARFE S EME
EMERE AL §¥W% AB=Z
T FRITITFNREMETIRS
E15%5H R B 18

AEEHN-—KMNBRARIEEREZX15%
WERABHEREETE  UE=F

T FHMARERAENERNESRM
KRB (ZZEZFF 1 9%) °
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10.

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax

prevailing in the countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

PRC CIT is provided on the assessable income of the companies now
comprising the Group derived from the PRC, adjusted for those items which are

not assessable or deductible for the PRC CIT purposes.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have determined and paid the corporate
income tax in accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at the
tax rate of 25%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as high-tech enterprises.
Accordingly, those subsidiaries’ corporate income tax for 2021 and 2020 was
provided at the rate of 15%.

A subsidiary of the Group was qualified to enjoy a national western
development tax preference at the rate of 15%, and the local tax bureau
provided more tax preference at the rate of 12% in 2021 (2020: 9%).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1M1. ERLEREEK 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
RZZEZZEFNA+THHE  ARAEE On 15 June 2020, the Company's resolution on disposals of Chonghui
EBEREABERAR(IERE]) kEAKRE Investment Limited (“Chonghui”) and Tengwei Investment Limited (“Tengwei")
BRAB(TEADRRZETLAB - was duly passed. In 2020, Chonghui and Tengwei were disposed of, and
“E-ETF o EBEhkEAWEES WK excluded from the annual financial statements of the Group.
REEFETBRRPHERR -
BT _TF—A— B ERHHA The results of the discontinued operations for the period from 1 January 2020
ERIEEEEBOEEZ2NAT ¢ to the disposal date are presented below:
—A—BEHERHERE
For the period from
1 January to the
disposal date
ARBTFT
RMB’'000
Wy = Revenue 8,868
5 & AR AR Cost of sales (3,354)
X Expenses (36,971)
AR LS RS Share of losses of investments accounted
iR EEE for using the equity method (3,460)
B B A & 18 Loss before tax (34,917)
FREH Income tax:
A BB B A A Related to pre-tax profit -
BHANEE Loss for the period (34,917)
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M. CRIEEEEK @)

ERIEGEEEBEEANR S REFEN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continuea)

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operations are as follows:

B

—A—BZHERAHEHE

For the period from

1 January to the

disposal date

ARETTT

RMB’'000

KETEE Operating activities 9,390
BEEE Investing activities (22,639)
BEEE Financing activities 145,800
BERANFE Net cash inflow 132,551

REBRIEEEEBNERRE Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued

HEEREE(BERARE D) operations (RMB cents per share) (0.31)

ERIEZ2EBNEARBEEERER

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued

B R EER operations are based on:
—A—HBZEHERHEHE
For the period from
1 January to the
disposal date
RARHEAANEIEERE Loss attributable to owners
(AR®EFT) of the Company (RMB'000) (29,187)
AESRERARBEEEMA Weighted average number of ordinary shares
BHABBITERR in issue during the period for basic and
DA 19 % # (FAR) diluted loss per share calculation (Share’000) 9,465,682
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BE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HBLFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS
RZIEZ—FR T _TFERMNHK The dividends paid in 2021 and 2020 were RMB123,054,000 and
B Rl A A KRB 123,054,000 & AR RMB1,419,852,000, respectively. A final cash dividend and special cash
#:1,419,852,0007T - EEE@E%E  HZE dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB121,290,000 and
TE - —F+-_A=+—BHUEFEEXRH RMB886,350,000, respectively were recommended by the Board and will
ReBREERFNREBRESNAEAR be subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
#121,290,0007T & A R # 886,350,000 Company.

TTMARARREERRBESF ARG L
ESHAE -

REFERNRETERABHEE ANKRE : Dividends paid to owners of the Company during the year:
—BC-—fF —ToTHF
2021 2020
AR¥TR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

T TFRAREEREBR Final 2020 dividend of RMB1.3 cents

ARBE13D(ZZE_FF - (2020: Final 2019 dividend of RMB 1.3 cents) per

:%—hiﬂi%@ﬂx%/\ﬁﬁm 3%)  ordinary share 123,054 123,054
5 51 fﬁ%% 8 /\Eﬁzﬁ“ Special cash dividend of Nil

(ZZ=-ZTF gRETBR (2020: RMB10.6 cents per

AR#106%) ordinary share) - 1,003,362
RHIRE B A REET S Interim dividend of Nil

(—E-—TE . FRLER (2020: RMBO.1 cents per

AR¥019) ordinary share) = 9,466
H Hﬂ'ﬂt-ir?z'l ReMBEARETH Interim special cash dividend of Nil

(ZZ-ZTF gRETBR (2020: RMB3.0 cents per

AR®3.09) ordinary share) - 283,970

123,054 1,419,852
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE-F--—#+-A=t-BLFE

12. DIVIDENDS (continued)

FREHZZAQNKE : Dividends proposed by the Company for the year:
—EZ—F —E-THE
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BEEABHRRETRET AR Proposed final cash dividend of RMB1.3 cents
AREI13ID(ZE-_TF ¢ (2020: RMB1.3 cents)
AR®E1.39) per ordinary share 121,290 123,054
BEREBAReRESREAR Proposed special cash dividend of RMB9.5 cents
ARBISH(ZBE_THF : (2020: RMB10.6 cents)
AER#10.69) () per ordinary share (i) 886,350 1,003,362
1,007,640 1,126,416
() —ZE_EZFRMANEFIIREEE () The special cash dividend of RMB1,003,362,000 (RMB10.6 cents per

A R #1,003,362,000 7T (5 % &
BIRARBI06D)VA_ZE-F

FRAZBARE IRARF =
ZoEFRATRBRTHOKRRE

FRIRE DEHE -

FE

ordinary share) paid in 2020 was proposed on 3 May 2020 and approved
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 15 June 2020.
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BE-_E-_—F+_A=+—HBILtFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13.

BERER

BREABFNSBEDIRBEFALRRQ A
WA AL R AR 416,509,000
T(ZZZTF : AR ¥473,382,000
T)RFRNDBETEBKRME TS
#7 9,431,297,000 & (= T = =T #F
9,465,682,000% ) 5t & -

FREIRNSBENRAETRERR
MEFEARRRRER ARMERFETHE -
SHEE A B BB AN 19 BUS A ART
HEEREABNMHNFAD HTERERE
B UERRMEEEEELBRBEE
TR AT B A EES BT
ERBNEF I

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of RMB416,509,000 (2020:
RMB473,382,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
9,431,297,000 (2020: 9,465,682,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

ERLESERA IR T Y 8iEt The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:
—B=-—-F 225
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EF Earnings
REAEBRERRF KR Profit attributable to owners
BERANNERF of the Company, used in the basic and
B A AL R A diluted earnings per share calculation
KEBESLER From continuing operations 416,509 502,569
REDKRIEEEER From discontinued operations - (29.187)
RKRARERA Profit attributable to owners
FE A6 5% FI of the Company 416,509 473,382
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BE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HBLFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13. BRE N2 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueq)
—E-—F —T-TF
2021 2020
TR Fix
Shares’000 Shares’000
B 3 Shares
REBREREANHF B ET Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TSR RS 0 RE S 15 & in issue for basic earnings per share 9,431,297 9,465,682
e - LmRinE Effect of dilution — weighted average number
FHE of ordinary shares:
5 AR (i) Share options (i) 52,086 -
9,483,383 9,465,682
() HBHAWMKRTENERESRZ7 () No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
NERERBMNEEEREEY presented for the year ended 31 December 2020 in respect of a dilution
Z o RUERBEEHEE_ZT= as the impact of share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on
TFT_A=T—RHILEFEME the basic earnings per share amounts presented.
FMBRERBN S BIELEM
—B--F —
2021 2020
AR¥T AR
RMB RMB
BRERAEF Basic earnings per share
F R For profit for the year 4.42 Hcents 5.00 S cents
REFELSEER 2 BT For profit for the continuing operations 4.42 D cents 5.31 Zcents
EBREERT Diluted earnings per share
F R A For profit for the year 4.39 7 cents 5.00 Hcents
REABECEEK 2 ET For profit from the continuing operations 4.39 D cents 5.31 %cents
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RE-T-—FT-A=+ ALFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

14. YE BERRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

£ER
BF EFRE WRRE AE EEIR st
Production
and
electronic Office Motor Construction
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETRT AR¥Tr AR®TR AR%¥Tx AR®TR AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZE-ZF At 31 December
+ZA=+—H8k 2020and
—EZ—F at 1 January
—H—8: 2021:
B AR Cost 2,763,000 1,059,338 47,609 40,236 680,284 4,590,467
REHER Accumulated depreciation and
A impairment (894,377)  (571,169) (41,940) (29,693) - (1,537,179)
EREFE Net carrying amount 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
RZE-——F At 1 January 2021, net of
—A—A8 Mk accumulated depreciation and
ZEtERAE impairment 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
NE Additions 7,695 49,600 2,346 2,165 548,229 610,035
AGCEAHAE Additions due to business
(MI7E36) combinations (note 36) - 2,995 534 - - 3,529
ERERAEETIR Transfer from construction in progress 186,418 111,892 217 7 (298,534) -
e Disposals (469) (4,242) (5) (828) = (5,544)
BIERE—KME  Deemed disposal of a subsidiary
N a (M 3E37) (note 37) (89) (23) (31) (86) (110,055) (110,284)
RERX Depreciation charge (116,989)  (123,877) (2,791) (2,438) - (246,095)
WZZE=-—%+=H At31December 2021, net of
=+—8 Nk accumulated depreciation and
Rt ERRE impairment 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
RZZE-—F+=F At31 December
=+—8: 2021:
XA Cost 2,956,393 1,199,930 49,773 38,428 819,924 5,064,448
ZEMER Accumulated depreciation and
A AE impairment (1,011,204)  (675,416) (43,834) (29,065) - (1,759,519)
FBREFE Net carrying amount 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
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14. ¥ BEREZHE2 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

HER
BF BFR VN "E FrIR s
Production
and
electronic Office Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZT—NF At 31 December
+=ZA=+—H 2019and
T -FF at 1 January
—H—H 2020:
B AR Cost 2,581,501 840,105 47,343 38,826 559,090 4,066,865
ZHITER Accumulated depreciation and
B impairment (786,831) (482,964) (39,641) (26,419) - (1,335,855)
BRMEFE Net carrying amount 1,794,670 357,141 7,702 12,407 559,090 2,731,010
R -TF At 1 January 2020,
—HA—H -1k netof
2HFER accumulated depreciation and
1A impairment 1,794,670 357,141 7,702 12,407 559,090 2,731,010
NE Additions 8,157 66,534 2,192 1,033 477,125 555,041
U B BT /8~ A Acquisitions of subsidiaries 9,762 11,351 317 63 18,032 39,525
ERAEEIR Transfer from construction in progress 180,841 167,129 491 - (348,461) -
EERERIKENE Transfer to investment properties
(FF3E15) (note 15) (6,752) - - - - (6,752)
& Disposals - (6,826) (506) (116) - (7,448)
HEWB AR Disposals of subsidiaries (1,730) (12,198) (584) (46) (25,502) (40,060)
#rE B 2 Depreciation charge (116,325) (94,962) (3,943) (2,798) - (218,028)
R-ZE_ZTF At 31 December 2020, net of
+=A=+—H "+ accumulated depreciation
MK RFTHER  and impairment
A 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
R-ZTEZZF At 31 December
tTZA=+—H: 2020
B AR Cost 2,763,000 1,059,338 47,609 40,236 680,284 4,590,467
ZHITER Accumulated depreciation
A and impairment (894,377) (571,169) (41,940) (29,693) - (1,537,179)
BRMEFE Net carrying amount 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
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S E+ZA=+—ALERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

14. % - BMERRE® 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
R-E-_—F+_A=+—HBHHEET Construction in progress as at 31 December 2021 mainly comprised buildings
BErXrZeREaTERNLEINET - being constructed in Mainland China.

WZE2-_—-—%+Z-ZA=+—H K As at 31 December 2021, the ownership certificates of certain buildings
SENANGEAEAENARE (“Building Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with an aggregate
209,011,000 t(Z E - ZEF + - A carrying value of approximately RMB209,011,000 (31 December 2020:
=—+—H : AR¥425,809,00070) & RMB425,809,000) had not been obtained by the Group. The directors of the
¥$§$E’]ﬁﬁﬁ$fé (TEEmE#EE] - Company consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for
RAESERE  FAEERFARESR and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and it should not lead to any
ﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ WHEEAERS - BT® significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.
HARENEBEEEEEMERTT
e -
15. REY = 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E-—F T F
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BF BF
Buildings Buildings

R—A—BXMEEE Carrying amount at 1 January 232,173 232,802

HEEYE BB NHRE (M FE14) Transfers from property, plant and equipment (note 14) = 6,752

WEMX Depreciation charge (7,904) (7,381)

R+ A=+—B80KREE Carrying amount at 31 December 224,269 232,173

AEENKENEBRBREEHEELHET
FEANBNAEAREYELETSNOME
RIERME - RECANEAT & R E R
BIIR

REMERBELEHELETE =D
HiE — S B i B B R M 5216 -

AEEBR T -_—F+-_A=+—H
ZIEYEDH AR 364,448,000 7T
F+-A=+—A: AR¥
471,194,00070) Z A FETIBA R AE
ER2EREMECHEFTEEE B
RE2BRAFEFEER -

(Z2=%

The Group's investment properties consist of five commercial properties in
Mainland China and two commercial properties in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements and are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 16 to the financial
statements.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of approximately
RMB364,448,000 as at 31 December 2021 (31 2020:
RMB471,194,000) has been determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the estimated market values of similar properties, which is in level

December

2 fair value measurement hierarchy.
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B 15 i ok Y
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE-F--F+-A=+-ALFE

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with
lease periods of 25 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. Further details are as
follows:

(a) BHEEE (a) Right-of-use assets
FRNAEEFRAREELEENREA The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
KEEHMT - movements during the year are as follows:
HE L gF Bt
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
AR®ET T AR®T T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE-_ETF—H—H As at 1 January 2020 884,216 9,339 893,555
NE Additions - 2,523 2,523
W EEM B A A Acquisitions of subsidiaries 20,835 - 20,835
& M B A A Disposals of subsidiaries (99,643) (5,167) (104,810)
MERAX Depreciation charge (21,325) (2,805) (24,130)
RZZT_ZTF+_A=+—HK Asat 31 December 2020
—E-_—%—HF—H and 1 January 2021 784,083 3,890 787,973
NE Addition 41,847 35,077 76,924
RIEH S B A R (K sE37) Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) (53,652) = (53,652)
WERX Depreciation charge (19,275) (4,197) (23,472)
R-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2021 753,003 34,770 787,773
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

16. HE ») 16. LEASES (continued)
AEBIERAEB A The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) HEERE (b) Lease liabilities
ERNAEaENERERESHM The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the
T - year are as follows:
—E=-—-F —TTE
2021 2020
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R—A—BNEmE Carrying amount at 1 January 3,951 9,950
wHEE New leases 35,077 2,523
FREERAF SIEE Accretion of interest recognised during the year 815 279
&M B A A Disposals of subsidiaries - (5,370)
(NE:N Payments (3,187) (3,431)
Rt+tZA=+—HEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 36,656 3,951
DR Analysed into:
mEE D Current portion 5,193 1,441
SEmEE Non-current portion 31,463 2,510
—E-—F —EBE-TE
2021 2020
BRAIE BERR A=
(%) ZE AR®TR (%) FH AR¥ETT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
RE Current
HEBRE Lease liabilities 4.75 2022 5,193 4.75-4.9 2021 1,441
ERE Non-current
HEAE Lease liabilities 4.75 2023-2027 31,463 475 2022-2026 2,510
ME R E BB 57K 758 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 43.1(c) to the
KW A3 NQBE - financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

16. HE ») 16. LEASES (continued)
REBEREBAE) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) REZTPEIANESHERAED (c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as
T follows:
—E-—F —E_TF
2021 2020
AR®ETT ARBTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HEBERNE Interest on lease liabilities 815 279
ETRAEEENERX Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 23,472 24,130
HGHAERHTHER Expenses relating to short-term leases and other leases
+TZ A=+ AL ZAERN with remaining lease terms ended on or before
EmAERENAY 31 December (included in distribution and
(FF AP RATHHRR) administrative expenses) 8,113 2,434
BRPERARNBAE Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 32,400 26,843
(d) HEMNBESRBLEREBRE (d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 35(c) to the financial
B 3E35(0)# & - statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

16. HE ») 16. LEASES (continued)
AEBEAEEA The Group as a lessor
AEERBELKEHEZHLHEERSE The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of five
W (MzE15) - BFEPE A E B ER commercial properties in Mainland China and two commercial properties
EMERBEBOMEEEDNE - ZFH in Hong Kong under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
ENKF—REKKBPLPIMERES generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
TRIEEERTMAETECEHHESHA rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
B FRNAEENCEIZESWAEA income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB7,116,000 (2020:
R¥7,116,000L (ZE-ZF : ARK RMB7,433,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the financial
7,433,0007T)  FF 15 HN B WK M R statements.
5o
RZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H HEX At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
SEREBEEEBEFZTAIRBELCERE Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
B FEUCRANIR A ERIBAOT ¢ are as follows:
—E--F —RTF
2021 2020
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FR Within one year 5,141 5,476
—FLEFERFURN After one year but within two years 4,331 873
MENAEB=FURK After two years but within three years 518 518
=FAEBMNFUAR After three years but within four years 486 510
WEREBRFUR After four years but within five years 470 470
HEU After five years 823 1,294
11,769 9,141
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. B8 17. GOODWILL
(SRS
Goodwill
AR®T T
RMB’'000
R-_E-—ZTF—H—H : At 1 January 2020:
B Cost 2,879,020
25 RE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
BREHE Net carrying amount -
RZZE-_TF—-A—BMRA  MNBRZEFEME Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated impairment -
W BE P B A R Acquisitions of subsidiaries 12,312
RZZE_ZF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 12,312
RZEZTF+=-A=+—8": At 31 December 2020:
B AR Cost 2,891,332
ZEHRE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
REFE Net carrying amount 12,312
RZZT-—F—F—BWHKA MK LK:HEE Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated impairment 12,312
EBEMRE (W E36) Additions due to business combinations (note 36) 16,040
R—BE-_—F+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2021 28,352
R-EBE-_—F+=-A=+—8: At 31 December 2021:
B 7 Cost 2,907,372
ZFHRAE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
REFE Net carrying amount 28,352

FEH
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17. %%(@) 17. GOODWILL (continued)

2R E R
BAXEBAMHESNBERIER
wEBEN LR R ELEEN
(Tcaul) - BUETTRERR - REEE
BummkoeRCREERABEENE
BE ZAECREREEEHENT
FHPBRENRSRERN - BB H
FHOHReMREERA T A G R EH
Wi o IBEREABBRCELEMMESR
BETENRBTHEREE

BBCEAHRSHNEERIEENT
ReEABMETRENR  2EER
ReELBUNBEREEENT ¢

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the acquired
subsidiaries, which are cash-generating units (“CGUs"), for impairment testing.
The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by management. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
pharmaceutical industry in which the CGU operates.

The goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units for impairment testing and the carrying
amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs are as follows:

—E=-—-F —TEF

2021 2020

AR®T T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Genesis Biosystems Inc. (“Genesis”) Genesis Biosystems Inc. (“Genesis”) 16,040 -
HEMBREAETARAA Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd.

(IE M) ("Jilin Aotong”) 8,761 8,761

TMEBETER R A ([ & MEE ] lilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Jiahui”) 3,551 3,551

28,352 12,312

FTRRRAE S —F+-_A=1+—
Ak-_FE-_TF+-_A=+—HRGE
EBMMEREE UWTHATEER
ERERSTERAETHEBRENH
WEEERER

EFE . EEEREBERARK
U BRENEREEHE
HEF % -

MEE:  RATHEERRGER
ok TR — R

BhIR X BT A %5 A B 3R 33

HABBEVEENEE
& o R AR IR &K
B AEBEZ2ERHRIT
ErmAnkERAT @R
2  -ENAEEERM
B FRANBREES
BEHER o

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs for 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Gross profit margins:  Management determined budgeted gross profit

margins based on past performance and their

expectations of market development.

Growth rates: The average growth rates used are consistent with

the forecasts included in industry reports.

Discount rates: The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units. When
determining the estimated discount rate, the Group
used the key parameters by reference to certain listed
companies of the same industry. Given the nature of
the Group s business, the discount rate adopted falls

within the reasonable range.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17. B8 @) 17. GOODWILL (continued)
EERERNRE) Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
T E - FM_E-_EFEFERHEMAE: For each of the CGUs, gross profit margin, net profit margin, terminal growth
BEREReELBMNEMNE FFH rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations in 2021 and 2020
BRI RE MBI ENT ¢ are as follows:
HREE EHMEE
Jilin Aotong Jilin Jiahui Genesis

R=-ZZ-—%F+=-H=+—H Asat31December 2021

RIS Gross profit margin 25% 26% 70%
4 1 R R Terminal growth rate 3% 3% 3%
A 3R & Discount rate 18% 19% 15%

R-ZE-FF+-HF=+—H Asat 31 December 2020

EFE Gross profit margin 25% 25% -

BRIH I R R Terminal growth rate 3% 3% -

A 3R & Discount rate 18% 19% -
HEETHERERE  AEFRERS When determining the estimated discounted rate, the Group used the key
AT LITARBERTHEARBRE - & parameters by reference to certain listed companies of the same industry. Given
AAREB LR S - FTEAMELR XA the nature of the Group’s business, the discount rate adopted falls within a
SEHERA o reasonable range.
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8. B &E 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ETH EE BER
EmBaE B B R A B4 EFBAR #wat
Product Deferred Trademark
development development and Customer
in progress costs software relationships Total
ARETT AR®TR AR¥®TR AR%®TR AR%®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZ-_FF—-—H—R: At 1 January 2020:
B%N Cost 385,362 1,478,831 54,964 433,932 2,353,089
RitEH Accumulated amortisation - (525,956) (27,916) (433,932) (987,804)
VAL Impairment (123,630) (758,098) (3,549) - (885,277)
REFE Net carrying amount 261,732 194,777 23,499 - 480,008
RZZEZZF-A—HK Cost at 1 January 2020
R - KRB EHER net of accumulated
B amortisation and impairment 261,732 194,777 23,499 - 480,008
NE Additions 40,360 25,740 7,834 - 73,934
WA A Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 90 - - 90
BHMAY Amortisation charge - (25,906) (2,836) - (28,742)
& Disposal - - (13,141) - (13,141)
HEWB AR Disposals of subsidiaries - - (6,528) - (6,528)
RZZEZZTF+ZA Net carrying amount at
“t+-HNREFE 31 December 2020 302,092 194,701 8,828 - 505,621
RZZEZTF+=A At 31 December 2020
—+—BRZZ=—F and
—A—B: at 1 January 2021:
3% Cost 425,722 1,504,661 40,523 433,932 2,404,838
Ri#EH Accumulated amortisation - (551,862) (28,146) (433,932)  (1,013,940)
VAL Impairment (123,630) (758,098) (3,549) - (885,277)
REFE Net carrying amount 302,092 194,701 8,828 - 505,621
RZZEZ—F—A—HK Cost at 1 January 2021,
A - R BT EHER net of accumulated
B amortisation and impairment 302,092 194,701 8,828 - 505,621
NE Additions 117,537 - 7,028 - 124,565
HAEBEHARE Additions due to business combinations
(KizE36) (Note 36) 122,073 - 6,850 - 128,923
o Eﬁ 53 Amortisation charge = (30,402) (1,494) = (31,896)
VR Impairment (i) (131,297) - - = (131,297)
RZEZ—F+=A Net carrying amount at
=+—BMKREFE 31 December 2021 410,405 164,299 21,212 - 595,916
RZZE=Z—F+=A At 31 December
=+—8: 2021:
B A Cost 665,332 1,504,661 54,401 433,932 2,658,326
EXag: 35 Accumulated amortisation - (582,264) (29,640) (433,932)  (1,045,836)
RE Impairment (254,927) (758,098) (3,549) - (1,016,574)
REFE Net carrying amount 410,405 164,299 21,212 - 595,916
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

@)

Due to the fierce competition within the pharmaceutical industry and
the limitation of the Group’s resource, the management of the Group
considered the future return rate of certain projects was low and
decided to discontinue further development of the aforementioned
projects. Accordingly, the Group recognised full impairment loss for
the carrying values of certain product development in progress and
an impairment loss amounting to RMB131,297,000 in relation to the
innovative medicine and other medicine segment was recorded during
the year ended 31 December 2021. This amount of impairment loss was
assessed based on the individual-asset level, and was not included in the

impairment testing based on CGUs.

4 [Z R % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 | 221



BA 5 R < M =t
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_E-_—F+_A=+—HBILtFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2021, all of which are

19. RMIB AR KRE 19.
ARRR—ZBE-_—F+=-_A=+—808H
HEBARSEHINMT - 2HAEL

unlisted companies.

AT
KL ARAR i ER
ARER TEFHREXME aEff it 2 EAlIE-% 4l (%)
BE#E i
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered  the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
BEER (BE) BRAF RAZR & 10,0007 7T 100 -
Sun Moral International (HK) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$10,000
BEER (BE) BRAF BREEAHERRE B 1,000,000/ 7T 100 -
Yaojin International (HK) Limited Medical beauty sales and investment Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
BREMNREEER AR AR B A m FEIA AR¥ - 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 200,000,0007C
in Mainland China RMB200,000,000
I REREERR AR P B st B R B FEIRH ARE - 100
Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 125,000,0007T
in Mainland China RMB 125,000,000
BRRBEESBRAR peeh Bl AR A5 S S IR RE At AR#1,000,0007T - 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Information Provision of information support services Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
EEIR O T YRR~ A Bl AR (AR 3 AR i HEIAH, AR #6,000,0007C - 100
Hainan Sihuan Cardiocerebral Vascular Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB6,000,000
Drugs Research Institute Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
RYNRBERR AR PR Bl SR B E o HE At ARH50,000,0007T - 100
Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB50,000,000
in Mainland China
RSB LR BR AR KBRS B EER FEIRH ARE - 62.39
Xuanzhu Pharma Technology Co., Ltd. R&D of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 100,000,0007C
in Mainland China RMB100,000,000
BhRERAREERRE) > FA R B 2 410 365 B8 BE PR A Y HEIRH ARE - 100
Langfang Gaobo Jingband Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical materials Mainland China 30,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China RMB30,000,000
ERRA BRI BRA R R Bl AR L 3 BR 75 RE At AR#3,600,0007T - 100
Beijing Ao He Research Institute Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB3,600,000
in Mainland China
EMPRAEEERR QA R B E R EEm FEI A AEH62,500,0007T - 100

Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Manufacture of pharmaceutical
in Mainland China

Mainland China

RMB62,500,000
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19. RMB R R HNKRE #)

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

AL AP ER
NRER TEEPREE B i B HMER LBl (%)
BEE %
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered  the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
REMREXARAA R BN EE B EER FEIAL AEH16,880,0007T - 80
Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB 16,880,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
BIOBEREERDF R B E HE R E R FE A AR7,620,0007C - 88
Tonghua Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB7,620,000
in Mainland China
ASEAFREAERAR R B R 015 AR HRELHS (B - 100
Smart Baskets Investment Limited Investment holding in Mainland China British Virgin Islands usD1
BT E AR A REBENETREREERNEREE  TER AR®19,500,0007T - 100
Hainan Litzman Pharmaceutical, Co., Ltd. Project preparation for the manufacture Mainland China RMB19,500,000
of pharmaceutical products
in Mainland China
KEERUEFR AR JA R B 2 3t B4 R B E R A AR #26,875,0007C - 79
Benxi Hengkang Pharmaceutical, Co., Ltd. ~ Manufacture of pharmaceutical products  Mainland China RMB26,875,000
in Mainland China
BREREEE (R) BRAF Te B bt $ R BT IR AR#60,000,0007 - 51
e-HMO (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Promotion of technology Mainland China RMB60,000,000
in Mainland China
AMIRRESEZ AR AR ** R BRI B EIER HEAL ARE - 90
Jilin Sihuan Aokang Pharmaceutical Construction for medical project Mainland China 334,440,0007C
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China RMB334,440,000
EMRMEREAR AT AT B A HE R AT FEIA AR = 51
Jilin Sihuan Technology Co., Ltd. Promotion of technology Mainland China 10,300,0007T
in Mainland China RMB10,300,000
ERR N BRRARA A B A B R AEKH18,870,0007T = 53
Jilin Sihuan Haisikaier Technology Co., Ltd. ~ Promotion of technology Mainland China RMB18,870,000
in Mainland China
EMRRBEER DR * R BRI R ER FE A ARH58,500,0007T = 100
Jilin Zhen'ao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products ~ Mainland China RMB58,500,000
in Mainland China
EMRFREERAR R EIit BUE B HE FERAM AE#19,500,0007T - 100

Jilin Jinsheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products
in Mainland China

Mainland China

RMB 19,500,000
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19. RMB R R HNKRE #)

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

AL AP ER
NRER TEEPREE B i B HMER b6 (%)
BEE 3
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered  the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
DREERERE (M) BEAA* R B A E HE EEm REI A AR #10,000,0007C - 100
Shengke Aesthetic Medicine Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB10,000,000
PharmaSciences (Jilin) Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
B ER B ERAR AR ** R B R SR FEIRH ARE - 100
Longyu Hongda Investment Management Investment holding in Mainland China Mainland China 100,000,0007C
Co., Ltd. RMB100,000,000
ARERERERAF R Bl it & B B E B AR#50,000,0007 - 100
Xizang Kangxin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB50,000,000
in Mainland China
EMERLGEER AT R BN SE R B E S FEIAH AR#30,000,0007T - 100
Jilin Huikang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products ~ Mainland China RMB30,000,000
in Mainland China
EHFBETARAT e B REEEES G N . 100
Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products ~ Mainland China 100,000,0007T
in Mainland China RMB 100,000,000
B AIERBRRIS AR A A)** PR B A ER R 3 AR 7S FEIRH AR #43,000,0007T - 100
Tonghua Chuangyou Testing Service Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB43,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
SARSEEBR AR eeh B s AR (LA 2 AR 7S FEIA AR#50,000,0007 - 100
Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB50,000,000
in Mainland China
BETARRRERERAR R B AR — R ER R & FEA ARE - 57
Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Management B RS Mainland China 240,000,0007C
Co., Ltd. Provision of general hospital services RMB240,000,000
and hospital management services
in Mainland China
EMAOREEGR DA AR B bt B 4 I B s B E FEIA AE#28,300,0007C - 51
Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd Manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical Mainland China RMB28,300,000
products in Mainland China
BEEMRERRERAR PR B AR it — A% 28 B AR 75 FEIAH ARE - 57

Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Co., Ltd.

Provision of general hospital services
in Mainland China

Mainland China

240,000,0007T
RMB240,000,000
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19. RBRABTIMNERE ») 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AL AP ER
NRER TEEPREE B i B HMER LBl (%)
BEE %
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered  the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
Radiant (Hong Kong) Investment Limited MERE RERTES 50,0003 7T - 100
Property investment BVI USD50,000
EMERIESEMERBRAR R B ER G2 B X 5 RS FEIRH AK#1,000,0007T - 100
Jilin Weichuang Henghe Information Provision of information support services Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
ENEAREHERBRAR A B A S R EEm RE At AK#1,000,0007T - 100
Jilin Jinsheng Yingkai Marketing Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
HFABRENEERAF NS BB RIWE RS Hes 700,000,000% 7T - 100
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Ltd. Provision of R&D services Cayman Islands USD700,000,000
in the Cayman Islands
BT (BB) BEMBRAERLA REBREIE RS B 10,0007 7T - 100
Xuanzhu (HK) Biopharmaceutical Limited Provision of R&D services in Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000
EITEMBBRHERAT) R B AR AL 3 AR 7S FEIRH AR¥% - 62.39
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Technology Provision of R&D services Mainland China 450,614,2907T
Co., Ltd in Mainland China RMB450,614,290
EREFEYRERR AR+ PR B s B3 B B FEIAH ARE - 87.5
Jilin Huisheng Biological Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China 300,000,0007T
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China RMB300,000,000
XBD COMPANY LIMITED REBRGIHE RS E3E (E - 100
Provision of R&D services United States usD1
in the United States
ERERERENBEEER AR R BN B EER FEIAL ARH61,728,4307T S 87.59
Beijing Meiyan Space Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB61,728,430
Biomedical Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
A (b)) BERRBRAR PR B 1t FR A A 55 AR 7S BRI ARE = 62.39
Xuanzhu (Beijing) Pharm Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services Mainland China 560,000,0007T
in Mainland China RMB560,000,000
REEEDMBRAERRF > PR B A R LA B AR s IR AR#10,000,0007T = 87.5
Changchun Huisheng Biological Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB 10,000,000

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

in Mainland China
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19. RBRABTIMNERE ») 19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AL AP ER
NRER TEEPREE B i B HMER LBl (%)
BEE %
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered  the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
ERBZEEMRBBR DR > Teeh B s SR (LA 8 AR 7S FEIAL AKH10,000,0007T - 87.5
Beijing Huizhiheng Biological Technology Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
EREFEDMRAERRF > PR B A R LA 2 AR A IR AR#10,000,0007T - 87.5
Beijing Huisheng Biological Technology Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
wk (bR) EFEBERRA RPERE HEEER FE AR#10,000,0007T - 100
Nectarine (Beijing) e-commerce Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB10,000,000
in Mainland China
B AR ERERAF > RRER S HEREER FREIA AR#1,000,0007T - 100
Beijing Lianben Technology Development Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
LR AR BRI R AR~ R B A AR S 8 BR 7 RE A AR #3,000,0007T - 100
Beijing Lianben Pharmaceutical Chemical Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB3,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
EMEBE TERAR* R BN RSB EE R FEIAL AEKH28,000,0007T - 100
Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB28,000,000
in Mainland China
EMEBCTERDR > RPERSE R R ER IR AR#10,000,0007T - 75
Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
in Mainland China
BIOBBRENREEER AR RPERE HEEER FEIAM AR#4,380,0007T = 100
Tonghua Hongji Health Technology Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMBA4,380,000
Management Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
ERRED RN EEHAAERAT PO B A AR At A W el 4 R AR 7 FEIRH AK#3,000,0007T - 100
Jilin Sihuan Biotechnology Provision of Biotechnology promotion Mainland China RMB3,000,000
service in Mainland China
BREEHERERBEERA R PR B A FR A 3 AR 7S FEIRH AR #38,000,0007C = 62.39
HaiNan HuiXuan Pharma Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB8,000,000
in Mainland China
IR EEERERHR AR AR ** A Bl A iR (AR 2 AR i FEA AR130,000,0007T = 87.59

Beijing MeiYan KongJian Technology
Co., Ltd.

Provision of R&D services
in Mainland China

Mainland China

RMB30,000,000
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19. RMB R R HNKRE #)

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

AL AP ER
NRER TEEPREE B i B HMER b6 (%)
BEE 3
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered  the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
ERZEANMR (EH) BRAR* R BN SIE R R A FEIAL AKH10,000,0007T - 100
Meiyan Kongjian Biological Technology Manufacture of medical instruments Mainland China RMB10,000,000
(Jilin) Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
REER (RF) —ABRAH RRFIBER RS R P JRPI25,0007T - 100
Sun Moral International (Macau) Limited Manufacture of medical instruments Macau Macau Pataca
in Macau ("MOP") 25,000
AEREKEENRERRF > PR B A SR LT B AR S FE AR#10,000,0007 - 711
Benxi Jiangcheng Pharma Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB10,000,000
in Mainland China
I REFFREFRAF > RPER R EER FEIA ARH50,000,0007T - 100
Beijing Xuansheng Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
ERTREEBRAR KREER MEHE 50,000% 7T - 100
Beauty Space Group Limited Investment holding Cayman Islands UsD50,000
EREERENRRAR AR RArR B st AR (LA 2 PR TS IR AEH30,000,0007T - 62.39
Beijing Xuanzhu Kangming Biological Provision of R&D services Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
Meiyen Laboratory Inc. REBUR IR =6 1,000% 7T - 74.45
Provision of R&D services United States Usb1,000
in the United States
BEXBENEZE (FE) ARQA REB AT RS & 5,000,000%T - 87.59
Precision Aesthetics Biomedicine Provision of R&D services Hong Kong UsD5,000,000
(Hong Kong) Limited in Hong Kong
T (BH) £ORRERAF REBREHE RS 5 AR® = 62.39
Xuanzhu (HK) Biotechnology Limited Provision of R&D services Hong Kong 200,000,0007T
in Hong Kong RMB200,000,000
XZENITH BIOTECHNOLOGY INC IS B FR (A B AR 7S e 100,000 7T = 62.39
Provision of R&D services United States UsD 100,000
in the United States
Genesis Biosystems Inc. R EBIR IR xH 20,0005 7T - 100
Provision of R&D services United States UsD20,000

in the United States
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19. RMB R R HNKRE #)

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

AL AP ER
NRER TEEPREE B i B HEMER LBl (%)
BEE %
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered  the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
EEARR A YRR AR A A+ FA B A 3t B2 41t B2 SR A B AR 7 FEIRH AR #50,000,0007T - 87.59
Meiyan International Biological Provision of medical aesthetic Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd. R&D services in Mainland China
EEZER (7)) EWRHEBR R peeh B it R B S T AR 7 FE A AR#50,000,0007T - 87.59
Meiyan Space (Hebei) Biological Provision of medical aesthetic Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd. R&D services in Mainland China
&b 2 BRI AR AR ** Bee B b e 1t B S i 2 PR FE AR#10,000,0007T - 87.59

Jiangsu Yuezhiyan Technology Co., Ltd.

Provision of medical aesthetic
R&D services in Mainland China

Mainland China

RMB10,000,000

* #ZF QA IR E TR R M RN *
BEMRE - law.
> ZREARDNREPEERIMAER o

BEERA -

These subsidiaries were registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises under PRC

These subsidiaries were registered as limited liability companies under PRC law.

ook ZRRNBREBRBEIEESMAINGR ***  This subsidiary was registered as a foreign-invested enterprise under PRC law.
B -

RZTEZ—F+ZA=+—8 " "3k The total non-controlling interests in non-wholly-owned subsidiaries at

EEAWMBARINBIETERERZHAR 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB865,918,000 (2020:

865918000 L(Z B -FF : AR
#758,383,0007t) * Bt AR = I &
j( °

RMB758,383,000), which are individually not material.
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20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

R+=B=+—H

As at 31 December
—EZ—F —ECTF
2021 2020
ARET T AREF T
RMB'000 RMB’000
EHEEFRE Share of net assets 234,641 583,326
WEE R Ry 2 Goodwill on acquisition 470,892 487,061
705,533 1,070,387
—E--F —TEF
2021 2020
ARET T AREF T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
R—RA—BNEY&eH Opening balance at 1 January 1,070,387 1,083,858
AN & A A Addition of associates - 98,426
B AR FTE IR E Dividends declared by associates (317,637) -
2 4 Eh #ESE() Addition resulting from deemed dilution (i) 104,228 -
M—RREAELELE Capital contribution to an existing joint venture - 6,865
E TR E R A Derecognition of associates - (72,937)
HIETREEDRE Derecognition of joint ventures - (109,789)
BIELEBE N F 2 XIS Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate 7.136 80,488
JEREtZE N BIMA S EREER  Share of post-tax losses of associates and joint ventures (158,581) (16,524)
R+tZA=+—HHNFEREH Closing balance at 31 December 705,533 1,070,387

AEBERENTRAELCEFHENE
SERWBEREIERBEEL G D BN
R RME24 R 22 E -

(@)

BE-F-_—F+ZA=+—
HIFEE RE=ZFRELIE
% AEEREMRERRRIRE
BRAR(TENER]  —KAE
EMRTEEN B ARSI
H A EMEBRKRAAEE
REE QT WERBEMEE A
T2 AR %104,228,0007T A &
R 1E H & Y A R # 59,228,000

JT °

The Group's trade receivable and non-current asset balances related to
associates and joint ventures are respectively disclosed in notes 24 and 22 to
the Financial Statements.

(i) The Group's equity interest in Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection
Engineering Co., Ltd. ("Jilin Zesheng”), a former wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, was diluted during the year ended 31 December
2021 following the capital injection from a third party investor. As a
result, Jilin Zesheng became an associate of the Group and an addition
of associates amounting to RMB104,228,000 and a gain on deemed
disposal amounting to RMB59,228,000 were recorded.
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20. ERAER EHEWHRE )  20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

UTEHAEBR-_E-_—F+_A8 Listed below is an associate of the Group as at 31 December 2021, which, in
ZST—HH—XBEQR MEZFRAA the opinion of the directors, is material to the Group. The associate has share
HUREEMS HEEKR - BEE QR capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held indirectly by the
BRAEBREAAESERZFEN TR Group.
B o
EEERE LA AR 3L 4t B IEBER R L FEEH
Place of Proportion of
Name of entity incorporation ownership interest Principal activities
CHBEERER R ( [1ZHBEE] ) RERLAES 38.14% R —MREERIRTS &
Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd. BVI BB R RS
("Renfang Medical”) Provision of general hospital

services and hospital
management services

ZEBENAREECERMARTR The associates and joint ventures are private companies and there are no
HRHOIWEMmSHRE UEFHELAEE quoted market prices available for these shares. There are no contingent
RBERRRAELCEEZNRAE liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the associates and joint ventures.
f& o
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20. ERAER EHEWHRE )  20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

TXHIBMERNRRAEDENMEE Set out below are the summarised financial information for the associates and
BHEE - joint ventures.
BB ERBE Summarised statements of financial position
—HEBE HttE A AR GEE
Other associates and
Renfang Medical joint ventures
R+=—H=+—H Rn+=HA=+—8
As at 31 December As at 31 December
—E--F ZZE=EF —EZ—F —E-FE
2021 2020 2021 2020
AR¥T T AREET T AR Tt AR®ETIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
wE Current
BE Assets 1,556,530 682,041 430,787 917,015
BE Liabilities (1,061,413) (190,058) (742,812) (856,773)
WIREEE/(BE) Total net current assets/(liabilities) 495,117 491,983 (312,025) 60,242
JEMED Non-current
BE Assets 413,994 645,736 1,082,976 572,368
BE& Liabilities (909,111) (28,896) (348,739) (273,446)
WIERE(BE),EE Total net non-current
FE (liabilities)/assets (495,117) 616,840 734,237 298,922
EEFE Net assets = 1,108,823 422,212 359,164
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20. EARERETENRE®

BEREE

20.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

Summarised statements of profit or loss

ChERE

Renfang Medical

HitBE AR R &b
Other associates and
joint ventures

—E-—F CZEZZTH —EZ—F —T-TF

2021 2020 2021 2020

AR®T ARBT T AR®T T ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Wz Revenue 197,691 493,477 313,376 402,043

BRETE B AT (EE),/ (Loss)/profit before

il income tax (276,002) 7,796 (129,581) (50,687)
i3 i f &2 Income tax expense - (4,650) (15,213) (13,869)
FEE(FB),/ % (Loss)/profit for the year (276,002) 3,146 (144,794) (64,556)
2 (E18), W45 Total comprehensive (loss)/income (276,002) 3,146 (144,794) (64,556)
A EER RSN F RE SR ENET The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
FERMFT2Y AN E B EEE LN T & statements of the associates and joint ventures adjusted for differences in

ERELENEARREZEMBARN S

58 o

accounting policies among the Group and the associates and joint ventures.
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20. ERAER EHEWHRE )  20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

B # & Bl EE R Reconciliation of summarised financial information
23 BERMERREE A ARIRE Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the
EOERIEMENYE - carrying amount of its interests in associates and joint ventures.
—HEBE HttE A AR GEE
Other associates and
Renfang Medical joint ventures
—E-—F ZEZTF CZBZ-F CZT-T
2021 2020 2021 2020
AR®ET T ARET T AR®T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R—HA—HAH Opening net assets at
FHYEEFE 1 January 1,108,823 1,105,677 359,164 581,806
REEE Capital injection by shareholders - - 60,725 195,816
REEZ AR A Z R Increase in net assets of associates
B EFEEN and joint ventures = - 147,117 230,072
FE(BE)&F (Loss)/profit for the year (276,002) 3,146 (144,794) (64,556)
% & Dividends (832,821) - - -
R E TR R A Derecognition of associates - - = (583,974)
R+-—A=+—HHK Closing net assets at
FREEFE 31 December - 1,108,823 422,212 359,164
REERFRASDER Interests in associates and
= joint ventures - 422,905 234,641 160,421
[EES Goodwill - - 470,892 487,061
BREE Carrying value - 422,905 705,533 647,482
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21. A FEF AEBZHSH  21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

'E PROFIT OR LOSS
TXF#SARAEERERMEENSR Set out below is an overview of financial assets, other than cash and cash
BEELESEBYWAREIREM equivalents and trade and other receivables, held by the Group as at the end of
JEW AR KR IN B E - the year:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E=—F —EEF
2021 2020
Fi s AR®TT AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HK B Non-current
BRRATFEFABRRN Financial assets at fair value through

EREE profit or loss:

BAFEAENIELTRERE Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 266,999 196,153
HmEAEEE Total non-current (i) 266,999 196,153
nE Current
RATFEF AR Financial assets at fair value through

EREE profit or loss:

BEE M Wealth management products 109,304 332,683
TEAE B Total current (ii) 109,304 332,683
Attt EEAE Total other financial assets 376,303 528,836
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REBEBRNRAIBRRFBEZSE
@&t - B I N 0] el i 4
BESEREATEFAEMSR
W -
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

@)

(ii)

The above equity investments at 31 December 2021 were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group
has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other
comprehensive income. The amount represents equity investments
in the unquoted equity shares of KBP Biosciences Holdings Limited,
Lindeman Asia No.12 Investment Fund, DJS Antibodies Limited, PsiOxus
Therapeutics Limited, Ascendum Healthcare Fund, Shenzhen MileBot
Robotics Co.,Ltd., Beijing Gretson Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd and
Beijing Gerui Biomedical Technology Co.,Ltd. The Group intends to hold
these equity shares for the foreseeable future and has not irrevocably
elected to classify them at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The amount represents wealth management products issued by certain
reputable banks in Mainland China with no fixed interest rate. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest.
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22. HkERBEE

22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

R+=HB=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-—-F —R-TF
2021 2020
Bt 5k ARET T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
A B 2 N R E Loans to associates (iy(iii)/40 263,521 243,770
ME=FEX Loans to third parties (/i) 103,846 100,000
H Ath & AR R Other receivables (iii) 10,033 10,000

BERHAEED Prepayments for purchase of

TET BB long-term assets 14,902 14,099
392,302 367,869

ﬁ B E ARt R EREE

BEARI([EREEDERTI
it?ﬁ%ﬁ‘o@ﬂib?ﬁ%%@
ERMAZEREEAFNI%
S EEMIT A E10% R EE
B HEARUFREMARKE
175,000,0007¢ © ¥ £ & F5%
-

RAFEER  AEBEESTHER
HIRR (0 15 E - BEE MR
AEXAEBREE QA - r‘éuﬁzi
MEBRNEERIBERZ

Z=FME - BEZR zﬁ@AEﬁ%
83,521,0007T © Fl B 1L & F 6%t

st
H o
It

EEli] AN TR
BRAA(THLERTDERA
R #5,000,0007T * BT EHE - &
AR RARMENEE -

The loan to an associate, Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Ruiye"”), was secured by the 15% equity interest in and pledged
with the 10% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye's parent company, Beijing
Ruiye Economic Technology Development Co., Ltd, among which
RMB175,000,000 was payable in four years. Interest is charged at 5%
annually.

The Group's share on Jilin Zesheng was passively diluted during this
year, resulting in Jilin Zesheng becoming an associate of the Group.
The receivable from lJilin Zesheng, representing a loan principal of
RMB83,521,000, was unsecured and payable in 2023. Interest is charged
at 6% annually.

The loan to an associate, Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (“Pharmadax
(Foshan)”), amounting to RMB5,000,000 was non-interest-bearing,
unsecured and payable in two years.

236 | mIBEEEAREBE AR LA SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



22. HkEREBEE

(if)

(iii)

MEFEZARTHERAEER
o R EZRETFEI00%E3.85%5
H o RARMERNEE -

RNEB N KEFHERERER
FIEZEEES  pERBER
BER MEZHFEREHEME
WER  UEEREEERR -
REOEREN A REERET
HtRE - RilpREP RIENEM
FEW R R ET HE R RE R
M ENERERER - K=
T —FRZTZFTFTA
=+—8 BEEGIHARZEK
RE -

8175 5 < I ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HBLFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

(i) The loans to certain third parties were unsecured with interest charged
at 3.00% to 3.85% annually, and repayable in two years.

(i)  The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables including loans to associates, loans to third parties and other
receivables to minimise credit risk. Long ageing balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Other receivables included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

23. & 23. INVENTORIES
R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-—F —ETF
2021 2020
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 311,751 197,995
M Work in progress 153,721 155,820
2K B Finished goods 269,325 152,526
734,797 506,341
FEEE Provision for inventories (19,499) (10,452)
715,298 495,889
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24. EZ REMEBEWERR 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+t=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
:g: - q—: = 7

2021 2020
B aE AR®T T ARBT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
EHRWER—F=H Trade receivables — third parties (i) 651,490 272,514
e = i Notes receivable (ii) 171,215 128,427
T8 1+ 44 8 o 7R 18 Prepayments to suppliers 140,091 150,618
EEAWNCIN-EN Loans to associates (iii)/40 208,111 113,445
R —ReaEEEZRIEA Amount due from a joint venture 40 2,911 675
JE W HC fth B8 Bk 5 5018 Amounts due from other related parties 40 9,600 16,300
H fth i UK BR 3R Other receivables (iv) 114,481 316,523
1,292,899 998,502

E 5 rEWETORERE Provision for impairment
of trade receivables (i) (43,640) (11,123)

H i FE URR FORE B B Provision for impairment
of other receivables (iv) (19,831) (15,839)
1,234,428 971,540
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

)y EBFEWER-F2=H (i) Trade receivables — third parties
R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —Z2=F
2021 2020
ARET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
5 EWEER Trade receivables 651,490 272,514
VERERZE Provision for impairment (43,640) (11,123)
607,850 261,391
AEBEEEFZRX5KERT The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
FTEUEEFRET  ETEF except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
—RBERBNZBRI - EEH— required. The credit period is generally from three to six months,
BE=ZZXER HRETEXF extending up to one year for major customers. Each customer has a

ARZAERE—F -ZFFPH
BERAEELR - AEBEHRHE
Fi 1 HOR (8 8 R UUR 2 B AR
B WRAFEEZEH P AR
EREFERR - BBMERESH
SREEEEMRTRER - &
MNEXFrd R AEENHE SRR
FRSRREZRERP ITEE
REREREF o A5 E I &5
B 5 YR G 7 A TR

mA HMERER - EZEER
RBRE -

maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed and monitored regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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2. ES REMEWRRIR 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

() EBZEYRER =7 (&) (i) Trade receivables — third parties (continued)
ﬁ@iiﬁ E%Tgﬂﬂlﬂﬁ KIL B EH An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the year
HREH A BR IR D T a0 T (AR 0B based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:
&)
At+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E=-—-F —TEF
2021 2020
AR®ET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
3@ AR Within 3 months 426,782 225,443
3ZE61E A 3 to 6 months 35,746 22,101
6ffl A =14 6 months to 1 year 137,682 8,602
—F A E More than 1 year 7,640 5,245
607,850 261,391
BoREWESRENBIERES The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
B are as follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—-F —TTHF
2021 2020
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
F 1 At beginning of year 11,123 3,606
T E E IR F R Impairment losses, net 32,517 7,517
FR At end of year 43,640 11,123

REREDPRRBEEEREE
ITREDN  AFTEEBEEES
B-BEENEREZEEERRX

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on ageing of trade receivables. The calculation reflects the

RRERET - ZiTERB A X probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
MEER EERERRFER and supportable information that is available at the reporting date

G ARBETE - EAR
RERAAEE GHEEANAER
AEAR -

about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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BE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HBLFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i) Trade receivables — third parties (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

B 5 PR BR R
Ageing of trade receivables
DR1E 1225 2E35F HBiB3F
Less than

1year 1to2years 2to3years Over 3 years
FEHEEBEX Expected credit loss rate 2.97% 37.27% 83.48% 100.00%
DR—F 1224 2E3F HB3F Bt

Less than
1year 1to2years 2to3years Over 3 years Total
ARBTRE AR¥TRT AR®BTR ARBTT AR¥T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEREE Gross carrying amount 618,590 10,285 7,191 15,424 651,490
FEHEEERE Expected credit losses 18,380 3,833 6,003 15,424 43,640

R -—ZTHF+—-H=4+—H As at 31 December 2020
2 5 R B AR iR
Ageing of trade receivables
DRE 1224 2E3F R iA3F
Less than

1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years  Over 3 years
BHEEBEE Expected credit loss rate 2.26% 17.47% 81.55% 100.00%
PR—F 18226 2%35F HBiA3F #@Et

Less than
1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years  Over 3 years Total
ARETT ARETRT ARETE ARETT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RIRHE A Gross carrying amount 262,073 5,805 2,463 2,173 272,514
HHEEBR Expected credit losses 5,927 1,014 2,009 2,173 11,123
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(if)

H{th e W BR X ()

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—H
HFE BREEREERAE
WEELIRREKHNESRE R
EMEBEAAEE  BRAE
B R E B HR A R AT L R
EREEEE ZSUEATE
SPAHEMEE RSN ER T AE
ToE WAEBKEEZ5) - &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, notes receivable are held
with a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling as the Group sometimes endorses
notes receivable to suppliers prior to their expiry date. These are
classified as debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and presented as notes receivable. The fair value changes of
these notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income

were insignificant during the year ended 31 December 2021.

E-E-—F+-RA=+—HIt
FE ZERAVEAAEME
AW ENEER IR R EZS
VN

REB KRG HERBEERK

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding notes

ERZBREES - EWEEIER receivable. As the notes receivable represent the irrevocable bank bills
FE RS AR RR S RITH issued by the banks in Mainland China with high credit rating, the Group
HH T HERITEE  ~5E estimated that the expected credit loss rate for other receivables was
HEEMERRENTEREES minimal.
BEREN -
iy MEEARERNAMOT : (ili)  The breakdown of loans to associates is as follows:
At+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E=-—-F T T
2021 2020
Bt 5k ARET T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
85 | 42 5y AT Pharmadax (Foshan) (a) 120,000 -
BIEREREFRAG Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (b) 75,970 78,033
HEMERRRIE Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection
BRA A Engineering Co., Ltd. () 5,224 -
jt?%ﬁ%%%-?"ﬁﬁﬁ“ Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd. 6,917 33,000
CHBEERERA Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd = 2,412
208,111 113,445
(a) W—F'EJH g NRMEEILERA] (@)  The loan to an associate, Pharmadax (Foshan), was non-interest-
TEHE - EBEAREARE bearing, unsecured, repayable in one year.
— ¢ NEE -
(b) MmM—EBEARBLLRESR (b)  The loan to an associate, Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co.,Ltd.
BERAR(BIELXRE] (“Tonghua Tianshi”), including a loan principal of RMB60,000,000
EX(BREEZREAE AR and interest amounting to RMB15,970,000, was unsecured

60,000,0007T & 7 & A R#&
15,970,0007T) Jb £ K 4 &
BIREREHEE - FBIZ
FELTS%ETE o

and repayable in full on demand. Interest is charged at 4.75%
annually.

242 | mIBEEEAREBE AR LA SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



(iii)

(iv)

H{th e W BR X ()

MEZE AR EROBPALT :
(%)

(0 AEEREFWERREIRE
ERABBRGONEARNR
TEWENEE - S EMREK
EAEEBENT - BERE
MERZIRE (BEEMER
K4 AR #83,520,8807T &
A B AR#ES,224,0007T)
H AR¥S5,224,0007T B
E—FARNEE  -FEREF
6%t &

REBIFGEFHEREE

Bz BRARIES] - AR
SRR - BEXEHEHSR
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ 'EH\J:AL
EEREVES & R B B BUS MR
%@I#ﬁiL%’]&ﬁ,ﬁHpEﬁiE’]E

R oMRZTEZ—FRZTZ
TE+-_A=+—H  BHE
BEETRD -

Hibh Wi FEHERKS - 78
HEEBERNE2EREEBE
BlEREREREABEREAR
o BEXBENEERRELA
A IR IR 1 A e TR R R A
BB e

WZZE=Z—F+=ZA=+—H"
NEBRBEBMERELELS
95 5T 1 I 7 57 E b JIE UL BR SRR
EBE AR 19,831,000 (=&
—EFE+-_A=+—"H: AR¥
15,839,0007T) °

H i Uk BR SRR E B B 18 e
R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The breakdown of loans to associates is as follows: (continued)

(@)

The Group’s share on Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection
Engineering Co., Ltd. was passively diluted during this year,
resulting in Jilin Zesheng becoming an associate of the Group.
The receivable from lJilin Zesheng, representing a unsecured
loan principal of RMB83,520,880 and interest amounting to
RMB5,224,000, among which RMB5,224,000 is repayable in one
year. Interest is charged at 6% annually.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans to minimise credit risk. Material balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Loans to an associates included
in the above balances relate to loans for which there was
no recent history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

Other receivables mainly represent deposits with suppliers. Expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate
is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group assessed and recognised a provision for impairment of
other receivables amounting to RMB19,831,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB15,839,000) in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2021.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other receivables
are as follows:

R+=—A=+-—8

As at 31 December
—E-—F —T-TF
2021 2020
ARETT ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
F 4 At beginning of year 15,839 =
A FE Impairment losses, net 3,992 15,839
F R At end of year 19,831 15,839
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25. HERESZEBEYWREE  25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

1 17 =K DEPOSITS
R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
g —TEHF
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
e RIRITHES Cash and bank balances 3,689,923 2,947,415
FHEFER Time deposits 2,137,133 1,801,174
5,827,056 4,748,589
o BERER Less: Pledged deposits
- BT RER(MFE33) — pledged for interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 33) 140,000 144,548
-EiTERIRER — pledged for construction in progress 4,631 -
Be MBS EED Cash and cash equivalents 5,682,425 4,604,041
RITRSRABRBITHERFEAED Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
FEBENE - RFEAEFHBBRSE Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
kiE - REEBFERARN T —RE= three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
BAMTREEIEL  WiKABEASTE and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
HAfF R RBEEA B - RITEBRE S balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
AERFRNOCRAERZNELBEER recent history of default.
FEVERAT o
REBRZREHHNRERIREEE The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are denominated
MAT 5 EHEEHE - in the following currencies:
R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E=—F g
2021 2020
ARETT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR RMB 5,586,372 4,400,045
E usb 43,089 16,546
B 7T EUR 1,572 21,838
BT HK$ 50,534 165,600
R P MOP 858 12
5,682,425 4,604,041
ARBTEBRALBLAEMER R The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
i - ARAR A BN B IR AR E DA R A E Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
EERNEEEMAT AEEREER Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
BRUETIHIEER ZBRITHBRARKE permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
REMEE - conduct foreign exchange business.
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26. REAR KRG &EE 26. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
BETR
EE  RAREZER
ZEREAE 2HE [N R =E et
Number of

Number of issued and
authorised fully paid

ordinary ordinary Share Share
shares shares capital premium Total
TR TR AR®BTRT AR®TR AR® T
Share’000 Share'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZ_FTF— H—H As at 1 January 2020 and
NZZTZZFHF+H 31 December 2020
=+—A
(ZFRRMEMEO0.018 L) (HK$0.01 per share) 100,000,000 9,465,682 78,186 4,084,846 4,163,032
FE2EE Movements for the year
B [0 & sE S IR 19 () Repurchase and cancellation
of shares (i) - (139,063) (1,156) (205,251) (206,407)
B 17 {5 #Y B8 PR A2 Share options exercised - 3,380 28 2,709 2,737
RZZE-——F+=F Asat 31 December 2021
=+—H
(R ®EE0.01E L)  (HK$0.01 per share) 100,000,000 9,329,999 77,058 3,882,304 3,959,362
() RZZTZ—FR AQALBER ()  During the year of 2021, the Company repurchased 139,063,000
{B243,084,0007% 7t (B & & TEH shares of its own shares on the Stock Exchange at a total
52) (18 & 1 A K % 206,407,000 consideration, including expenses, of HK$243,084,000 (equivalent to
JT) 7 B 52 P 88 B H 139,063,000 RMB206,407,000). As at 31 December 2021, all repurchased shares
BlHm - R =—F+=A were cancelled.
=+—H FEEERHNHEZH
s
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27. UGB RER NN

1.

Ut

BEEREEAERR

B IR 10 B B 5t &l

(a)

R 172 B at 2
RARNERERREIRH
HE-ArAETFTRR
(BlPlenty Gold Enterprises
Limited ([Plenty Gold]) -
BB B ERBEME
FYEB-_E—ZF+A
Zt+HBRM—IEEET
2[R ER M ZENFT &1 ] =k
[ZetEl)) - R=ZT—=%F
—BZ+AB ARAFAW
% — AR5 (BIMSPEA Pharma
Holdings B.V.) 7N & £ [ §
MR EEGE - XA A
(REBEXBEESR IO
LA 15 5T 22 7 - mAPlenty
Goldz ¥ #B)EEBZ T
AXFEAN BREEER®
HEAEFERERG -
Plenty Gold + B )% 7+ &
REPMEWEE(EREH
MERTFTA)EDHERRE
i & #£ 33,750,000 f& & 2
A& 5 : MMSPEA Pharma
Holdings B.V.78 B & & H
%8 413,750,000 J& A< A 7 A%
7 TAZERMHBXTEA
N AR IEE B IR =EE &
NEAANENEE - &EB
&1 SR &S R H B R
RARBIRENRERS
WA iREES R K R
BlETEHRG -

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

1.

Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd.
(a) Share award scheme

An award scheme for the purpose of

management of the Group (the “Employee Share Award Scheme”
or the “Scheme”) has been adopted by certain shareholders of
the Company (namely, Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty
Gold”), Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng) since 25
October 2010. On 25 January 2013, another shareholder of the
Company (namely, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.) also participated
in the Employee Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co. (a private
trust company established in the British Virgin Islands and wholly
owned by Plenty Gold) has been appointed as the trustee to hold
the reserved shares under the Employee Share Award Scheme.
Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as settlors
of a trust, have reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000
shares; and MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. has reserved and set
aside an additional 3,750,000 shares, all of which are being held
by Trustee Co. as trustee for the Employee Share Award Scheme.
The Employee Share Award Scheme involves granting existing
shares held by Trustee Co., and no new shares will be issued

pursuant to the Employee Share Award Scheme.
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1. MEBBEZREESRA
=B 49 8 ) T B ()

(a)

B 17 5E B =t & (%)

AR RIAREE A R A B
EORHI R BORTE -
SrEHERREORE @
AR IR RS RR A
KEZERROAER - K2
AT & 1R R 1B B AR 1D 22
FHEIBETTRG - AETE
BB B A1) SR E B T &
R ES S 3

B 488
wE o

RiBEE KD ZEE - R
BAOERTARARIAERE
8 ATTREEEERANE
8 8 R F 2 (PR 5 B AR
HEECKRHMEEERRER
B H L HRE) i E MR FE
ARBFEOARR BB B
FEHHE -
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)

(a)

Share award scheme (continued)

The Company measures the services received from its employees
in accordance with the requirements applicable to equity-
settled share-based payment transactions, with a corresponding
increase recognised in equity as a contribution from the major
shareholders. No new shares will be issued by the Company under
the Employee Share Award Scheme and there is no dilution impact
on the earnings per share calculation as a result of the Employee

Share Award Scheme.

Under the Employee Share Award Scheme, awards were granted
to the eligible employees of the Company and are exercisable
and will be converted into shares of the Company of a specific
amount, held by Trustee Co., designated in each financial year
during the period from the grant date up to the expiry date of the
relevant awards granted.
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27. UBR B AEBNS R 27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. REBEEZEZREEBRL 1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
ARG B E () Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)
(a) IR 2 (%) (a) Share award scheme (continued)
ERTAEEETEENR The summary of the share awards granted to certain employees of
HEBEBENT the Group is as follows:

B0 K6 ERHER
HBMTEEET #E(T6)

Exercise price Number of
in HK$ per awards granted
B H Grant date share award 000
—E-—#=H=+H 20 March 2012 3.19 14,150
—E-=FAA-+tH 27 September 2013 3.19 19,750
—E-—=%t+A=-+—H 21 October 2013 0.70 2,050
35,950
RZB-RERNAZTAN On 28 June 2016, the Group modified the Employee Share Award
B ARERETRERD Scheme. The remaining 31,448,172 share awards, which were
BEETE o B 8RO REF granted to but not yet exercised by 234 employees under the
SIETERT234%EER Employee Share Award Scheme, were replaced by new share
RIETTEHIER 31,448,172 awards with an exercise price of HK$1.57 per share award.

DD ERE B RHE
B (1TEE AT R D BE
1.5787m) B -
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(a) R17ERTE (%)
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)
(a) Share award scheme (continued)

The following share awards were outstanding under the Scheme

AREITRE : during the year:
—EZ—fF ZETF
2021 2020
SR MEFS
TEEET REEB HENEH
Weighted (F12) (F13)
average Number of Number of
exercise price awards awards
HK$ per share ‘000 ‘000
®n—HA—H At 1 January 1.57 964 964
RERNITE Exercised during the year 1.57 (964) -
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December . = 964
AT ABERERITEHRSD The exercise prices and expiry dates of the share awards
HEN 2 TEERIIEALE outstanding as at the end of the year are as follows:
SRKRGEB
TEESBT
Exercise price
HKS$ per REYETH
2 H B Expiry date share award Number of awards ‘000
—E- - CZTTF
2021 2020
—T-—®XA-+NH 28 June 2021 1.57 - 964,000

RN-_TE-——&E+=-_RA=+—
B AARIRZTETH
BAEBTENERHZZ
—EF+ZA=+—H8:
964,00017 ) °

FRN - RAEEELENBRD
BEIMA RGBS S HERH
S AR¥67,000t(=Z 2 =
T4F : AR¥E294,000 7T) -
I A RE R N FE R E &

The Company had no outstanding awards as at 31 December
2021 under this scheme (31 December 2020: 964,000).

During the year, total expenses amounting to RMB67,000 (2020:
RMB294,000) were charged to the consolidated profit or loss for

share awards granted to employees with a corresponding change

in equity.
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27. LR AR e 27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)
1. REZEEZEREERERA 1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
AR BB E ) Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)
(a) RGZEREEZ (%) (a) Share award scheme (continued)
RABIEEFGNITEFCRE The executive directors of the board of the Company have used
A-EARAETERNFB the binomial model to determine the fair value of the awards
HAZHENEREEBNA granted, which is to be expensed over the vesting period.
FE AR EELHITE Significant judgement on parameters, such as the risk-free rate,
ErEEA_EXNENFENK dividend yield and expected volatility, is required to be made by
HmmERRE  REER the executive directors of the board of the Company in applying
FEHRIESE2E8EHEZ H the binomial model, of which the inputs are summarised below.
B ZE2HOE ABUEN
BEamT o
E/\\\—;T /\ ﬂf
NAZTNR
15 &)
& 17 5 )
Share awards
modified on
28 June 2016
&R B B R T (B Closing price at the modification date 1.60/8 7T
HK$1.60
17 [ B A1) 3 Risk-free rate 0.64%
& 8 % Dividend yield 2.14%
T8 HR R & (i) Expected volatility (i) 41.38%
() ZREHRELHRN (i) The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation
RAER =5 F A of expected share price returns, is determined based on the
g - TIIRIE AR A A average daily trading price volatility of the shares of the
B FHEEEEE Company.

)R B E ©
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27. UR G AEBRNS R e 27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. REZEZREEEBRA 1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
AR BB E ) Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)
(b) FERETE (b) Share option scheme

K2R E BB E
([MER T8 §HA
AREERNEEEHER
MEERSEERIHBR
RE) - A BMABK2HE
EERARAER(BESE
UHERTEE)  AEEHE
fiER - AEEERARY
HiEn - AEBEEP - AR
AR R AR A Y B 2 B
I IR AR R » SZAT B =
E-tF+A-tTEBE
B BRBITBURREET - B
AEHZBRTFRDEAE

o

>§g|:

E/t\:yfiii/\ﬂ + X
CARBEMRBEARABRZ
ft¢+ﬂ—+maﬁéiﬂq

MR E S MEAEER

/,\%Hﬁm/&%seooo

REERIE - & HAIRBEAR

AR AR SR EEC.01E T

994,656,000 % I @ A%1) °

IBEERER B T2MEE

B TR BN IR B #ik

VEREHAE=F -

RZZTEZ—FhLA—8 "
AABBREBEARBRZE
—tFE+AZTHARAHN
BIRETE MESERE
Eﬂ%&ﬂjm,JSOOOOOHX
B AHRUREBAR
HxZKEPHxEﬁo.OL%EE’U
7,500,000 f% & i@ B 15 - 1R
BEREFTERTL2EEDN
FrBEBRENRL BEHED
REHA=F -

BREY NETRBEANES
BEHERRAE LIRED
R o

The Company operates a share option scheme (the *“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, the
Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling shareholder in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 24
October 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

On 26 August 2020, the Company granted a total of 94,656,000
share options to the eligible participants of the Company to
subscribe for a total of 94,656,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 October 2017. All
share options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the
participants have a vesting period of three years after the grant
date.

On 1 September 2021, the Company granted a total of 7,500,000
share options to the eligible participants of the Company to
subscribe for a total of 7,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 October 2017. All
share options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the
participants have a vesting period of three years after the grant
date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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27. LR RBERNN R 27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
1. REBHZEREEERA 1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
ARM BB (2) Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)
(b) BEREE (&) (b) Share option scheme (continued)
ERTAEESETEENE The summary of the share options granted to certain employees of
RESZMT : the Group is as follows:

24 K50 BRI RE
TRERT A (T6)

Number of
Exercise price in options granted
& B H Grant date HKS$ per share ‘000
—ZE2-Z2FEN\A-+KH 26 August 2020 0.97 94,656
—E-—FhA—H 1 September 2021 2.22 7,500
102,156
LA B AR R AR 1R R A R 5 2 The following share options were outstanding under the Share
RERNRETE Option Scheme during the year:
—E-—fF R TRE
2021 2020
SRMMEFRY BREHE BRRINETE fERiEg =
THEEET (F1) 1TEEETT (F)
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
HK$ per share options HK$ per share options
‘000 ‘000
®n—HA—H At 1 January 0.97 94,656 - -
RERT D Granted during the year 2.22 7,500 0.97 94,656
RERNITE Exercised during the year 0.97 (3.380) - =
WR+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 1.07 98,776 0.97 94,656
RERITEOERETE R The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
Eﬁju%?i’ﬂﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁf\ options exercised during the year was HK$1.65 per share (2020:
165 (ZE_FF : K No share options were exercised).
TIEERE) -
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. REBEEREBEBRA 1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
AR BB E ) Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)
(b) EREE E) (b) Share option scheme (continued)
AR B R ARITER B The exercise prices and expiry dates of the share options
AT ERIBAEE outstanding as at the end of the year are as follows:
EREREARITEN
BREYE (T6)
SRR G5 Number of
TREEET BREHRE (T45) outstanding vested and
Exercise price Number of options exercisable options
2|5 B Expiry date HKS$ per share ‘000 ‘000
—B-—fF —TEF —B-—fF —TEF
2021 2020 2021 2020
—ZE=FTHFNA-+FHHB 25 August 2030 0.97 91,276 94,656 40,924 -
—T=—FNA—H 1 September 2031 2.22 7,500 - - -
98,776 94,656 40,924 -

RZFZ—F+=ZA=+—
B - 598,776,000 (= &
— T4 94,656,000 ) K
1T{E B - 40,924,0001%
(ZZZZF : #)BHD
BATE -

RZEZTFNAZ+/H
BEMBERENATFEL
=T {5 A 35,489,000 7T (18
N AR 431,631,000
T) R-ZE-_—FHNA—
BREMBERENRFEL
1% 58,412,000 7T (A%
AR ¥ 496,996,0007T) °

FR BREESRLHE
AR B R 4R A B X
®F X AR ¥21,090,000
T(ZEZZF : AR
5,753,0007T) + W A= A
EREELE -

Out of the 98,776,000 (2020: 94,656,000) outstanding awards,
40,924,000 (2020: Nil) awards were exercisable at 31 December
2021.

The fair value of the share options granted on 26 August 2020
was assessed to be HK$35,489,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB31,631,000). The fair value of the share options granted on 1
September 2021 was assessed to be HK$8,412,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB6,996,000).

During the year, total expenses amounting to RMB21,090,000
(2020: RMB5,753,000) were charged to the consolidated profit or
loss for share options granted to employees with a corresponding
change in equity.
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27. ARG AERN N R

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

1. REZEEZEREERERA 1. Share Incentive Scheme of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

AR BB E ) Holdings Group Ltd. (continued)

(b) EREE E) (b) Share option scheme (continued)
ARAREFENTEFEMRE The executive directors of the board of the Company have used
A-EAEXEBEETER=F the binomial model to determine the fair value of the options
BEEBEHAZENEREER granted, which is to be expensed over the vesting period of three
BEHATE ARRIEEE years. Significant judgement on parameters, such as the risk-
WITESHERER —BERAER free rate, dividend yield and expected volatility, is required to be
EBEREmERRTIE IR made by the executive directors of the board of the Company in

SRNFEHEBEBZLXHEDR applying the binomial model, of which the inputs are summarised
BEHAE  ZE2EHEA below.
BEOBEDT -

R=B=—F RZTTF
hA—H NAZ+7RH
BRENRGED HEARDEE
Share awards Share awards
granted on granted on
1 September 26 August
2021 2020
RIR B BT E Closing price at the grant date 2,228 7T 0.90787T
HK$2.22 HK$0.90
J Bex ) = Risk-free rate 1.33% 0.44%
f& 8 &% Dividend yield 0.72% 1.71%
T8 58 1R (i) Expected volatility (i) 58.42% 44.81%
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(i)  REBIRHIRED R
BREREFTENAY
BE - TIRBE AR A
B FOEBREERE
& H) R I8 B -

F A 17 fF /9 3,380,000 17
BREBER ARG BT
3,380,000 M & 8 B Kz T 18
B% 734,000 7T (M & K A
R # 28,000 70) (% 17 f &
AT) - FEIB R B R R
5126

FRADEEERE
2] 18 T # A 98,776,000 15
M ARITE AR AR - IRIR
KNABIERIMERNERH -
2 EITE M R AITE A BB AR
ERE BB DR EINET
98,776,000 /% & i A% K # g
B 74X 988,000 3 7T (18 & 7
A R #876,0007T) (3 17 B
AT ©

(i) The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation
of expected share price returns, is determined based on the
average daily trading price volatility of the shares of the

Company.

The 3,380,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 3,380,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new
share capital of HK$34,000(equivalent to RMB28,000) (before issue
expenses), as further detailed in note 26 to the financial statements.

At the end of the year, the Company had 98,776,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 98,776,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$988,000 (equivalent to RMB876,000) (before issue

expenses).
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H’r’ri#@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁﬂﬁ
7 B =t 8l
RZEZEFANAZ=Z+X8"
HMEMBRRMDBER A A ([E
ﬁJﬁxﬁl—%WE”mé
FEEZARBHERER UK
MiEBERDEBHE((HITZZ
:?i%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁvﬂﬂﬁ
HEAEBREEUSREN A
157 T ) B 1% R B 79,695, 000
R B I M AR 1) o 5% S BRI M AR 19
WEHNBMATE=F -

RZEZ—FNLA+H HITE
EEERBBAE  UKWEES
hﬁﬁ@?ﬂﬂﬁﬁ_gi T
&7 BT &) -

1) EHMHESEREBUNER
B D AR#E1.2343 TRIE K
7 g%49 642,300 /% R il 14 A%
D AEHNBA=F

2) WBEHEMZZE_ZFRMH)
Ehat &l - H’rﬂi%ﬁfi/\a
729,900,000 % A% 1% FA ¥ &
HNHAB=FRITEEAER
PR Il 1% B ) A R #50.263 7T
B A% (9 B

3 WESHNZZ=ZFERMH)
DREIR H’rﬂttfﬁi%éé
& 12 8 844,045,000 B% R
MERGOERBITEERT
B A 19 A R #50.263 7T 09 A%
%

4)  EHMHESBERESUEH
BB AR E0.263 7T B B %
246,888,350 A% BRI 14 A%
D BHEE=F -
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

2,

Share Incentive Scheme of Xuanzhu
Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.

On 26 June 2020, the board meeting of Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu”) (a subsidiary of the Group) passed
a resolution to adopt an employee share award plan (“Xuanzhu 2020
Share Incentive Scheme”) and 79,695,000 restricted shares of Xuanzhu
were approved for eligible employees to subscribe at the price of
RMB1.57 per share. These restricted shares have a contractual term of nil
to three years.

On 10 September 2021,
resolutions to adopt an employee share award plan (“Xuanzhu 2021

the board meeting of Xuanzhu passed

Share Incentive Scheme”) including:

1) 49,642,300 restricted shares of Xuanzhu were approved for
eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.2343 per
share with a contractual term of three years;

2) The 29,900,000 shares of Xuanzhu, which were granted to
executives under Xuanzhu 2020 Share Incentive Scheme, were
replaced by a new contractual term of three years and an exercise
price of RMBO0.263 per restricted share;

3) The 44,045,000 restricted shares of Xuanzhu, which were
approved to eligible employees under Xuanzhu 2020 Share
Incentive Scheme, were modified with an exercise price of

RMBO0.263 per share;

4) 46,888,350 restricted shares of Xuanzhu were approved for
eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB0.263 per share
with a contractual term of three years.
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27. UBR B AEBNS R 27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

2. HMEYNREBERQIAR 2.

m BB & m)
UTROEMREFH - -
ERHEBHBREN T —
ERG BB ERNERZD

Share Incentive Scheme of Xuanzhu
Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (continued)

The following share units were granted under Xuanzhu 2020 Share
Incentive Scheme and Xuanzhu 2021 Share Incentive Scheme during the

year:

—EB=—F —E-TF
2021 2020

SR & A% n
Fi9R B E ROBE FHAEE i 5 21 B
AR T TR AR T T B

Weighted Weighted

average average

subscription subscription
price Number price Number
RMB per of shares RMB per of shares
share ‘000 share ‘000
wn—H—H At 1 January 1.570 78,927 - -
RERK D Granted during the year 0.644 144,848 1.570 78,927
RERNER Replacement during the year 1.311 (29,900) - -
R E AR I Forfeited during the year 1.311 (23,988) - -
R+—A=+—8H At 31 December 0.938 169,887 1.570 78,927

RESFT T —FRHEBERE
WRGIMERDEBORTFTERARE
173,288,000 (B R A R¥®2.197T) -

ZEZ-FAANERERMEE
AFEEAREE4,177,0007C (F K A
R¥17278) - HE-_T-—%+_A
=+—HLFE AEEHEHSFIZ
T FRGHEEREN T = —
FROBEBBEORNDFTHFASL A
AR ¥23,492,000(ZEZFF : A
R #15,452,0007T) °

The fair value of the restricted shares awards granted under the Xuanzhu
2021 Share Incentive Scheme was RMB173,288,000 (RMB2.19 each
share), and the incremental fair value resulting from the modification
in September 2021 was RMB64,177,000 (RMB1.72 each share). For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has recorded share-based
compensation expenses of RMB23,492,000 (2020: RMB15,452,000)
in relation to the Xuanzhu 2020 Share Incentive Scheme and Xuanzhu
2021 Share Incentive Scheme.
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TERTISEERAETE o HA
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BE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HBLFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

2. Share Incentive Scheme of Xuanzhu
Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (continued)
The fair value as at the grant date or the date of modification was
determined using the market-value model. The following table lists the

FREBNE ASIENT - inputs to the model used:

H=2=—-% ®NZZZEHF
B4 B =t & BR A7 B =t &
Xuanzhu Xuanzhu
2021 Share 2020 Share
Incentive Incentive
Scheme Scheme

BHBE ok AR EER Grant date/modification date share price
(ANR¥T) (RMB) 2.19 1.72
REBARET) Subscription price (RMB) 1.23 0.263
B | g A R Risk-free rate 2.55% 2.93%
] Volatility 56.49% 49.93%
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27. ARG AERN N R

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

3. EMEALEYHEBRL 3. Share Incentive Scheme of Jilin Huisheng Biological
7] % 10 %4 B 51 & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
RZZE_ZEF+—A+=0"F On 13 November 2020, the shareholders’ meeting of lJilin Huisheng
MEFEYEZEAR AR ([FHH Biological Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Huisheng”) (an indirect
B BAEE-—ZREES2EA wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group) passed a resolution to adopt an
MiEAR)RRKS @B —IER employee share award plan (“Jilin Huisheng Share Incentive Scheme”)
R URMNEERD EE A and 27,950,000 restricted shares of Jilin Huisheng were approved for
(IEMEARDSEBTEI]) - eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.33 per share. These
BEEMEALAECEREBNE restricted shares have a contractual term of four years.
Rt AR B1.33THERRE
= M F 27,950,000 A% BR 1 14 AR
0o ZERHERMNENER
MO o
RZTEZ—FttA=+N\H" On 28 July 2021, the shareholders' meeting of Jilin Huisheng passed the
M%%Hxﬁjigﬂ‘ﬁ;@ﬁﬁﬁi\ﬁf modification of the original contractual term of the Jilin Huisheng Share
AEREENTHEAKRMDE Incentive Scheme to all eligible employees, from four years to three
EIRG NN EN - Hﬂ@iﬂﬁ( years.
B=F -
FERBESHREARS BB The following shares were granted under the Jilin Huisheng Share
EIETLATERMD Incentive Scheme during the year:
B —F —E-F
2021 2020
=gk 5 M e
FHREE RHOBE FHREE & e R
(AR%T) (FBR) (AR%T) (F&%)
Weighted Weighted
average average
subscription subscription
price Number price Number
RMB per of shares RMB per of shares
share ‘000 share ‘000
®n—H—H At 1 January 1.33 27,950 - -
RERFD Granted during the year - - 1.33 27,950
RERIE K Forfeited during the year 1.33 (3,555) - =
Bn+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 1.33 24,395 1.33 27,950
BzEz-_Z2-_—4F+=-A=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2021, 3,555,000 (2020: nil) Shares

IEEE 3,555,000 (ZE =&
F:T)RHEREABPERESR
U o

have been forfeited since the grant date.
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

3. EMEALEYREBRA 3. Share Incentive Scheme of Jilin Huisheng Biological
AR B E B (2) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (continued)
BIE S MREA RO BB E R The fair value of the restricted shares awards granted under the Jilin
HHREHMERDHAFEEAEA Huisheng Share Incentive Scheme was RMB13,661,000 (RMB1.89
[ # 13,661,000 T (& ik A R & each share). For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
1897L) e HE-_ZT - —F+= recorded share-based compensation expenses of RMB14,701,000 (2020:
A=+—HIEFE  KAEBEDH RMB1,677,000) in relation to the Jilin Huisheng Share Incentive Scheme.
BN EMREARD BB &K
NI AERBEEARARY
14,701,000 (ZE =T F : AR
#1,677,0007T) °
RELEBEOAFEDEATS The fair value as at the grant date was determined using the market-
EBERAET - TR RAER value model. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:
0L N S 6
HEMEFH
IR A7 B =t &
Jilin Huisheng
Share Incentive
Scheme
BREHBBHREER(ARET) Grant date share price (RMB) 1.89
REE(ARET) Subscription price (RMB) 1.33
1 3 B ) 3 Risk-free rate 3.04%
B 8 Volatility 38.12%
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RE-F--#+-A=t-BLFE

28. HttRERRE BRI

28. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

H
EEMES Hitb ke et REBR
PRC statutory Other Retained
reserve fund reserve Total earnings
ARBTR AR®BTR AR¥TRT AR%TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-AHF At 31 December 2019
+=—A=+—8k and at 1 January 2020
R-ZZE-ZTEF—HA—H 323,976 (131,302) 192,674 5,250,978
FEm F Profit for the year - - - 473,382
B B (PR EE12) Dividends (note 12) - - - (1,419,852)
1%?-\%1% REE & Employee share award scheme
& E AR5 EE — Value of employee services - 23,176 23,176 -
TEAI B4 2 BT Changes in interests in subsidiaries
2 () without change of control (i) - 506,952 506,952 -
B 3 % fp B A F 5 8 2 (ii) Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund (i) 2,420 - 2,420 (2,420)
RZEZEF At 31 December 2020
+ZA=+— and at 1 January 2021
ﬁé:%:*i*ﬂ —H 326,396 398,826 725,222 4,302,088
FERHM Profit for the year - - - 416,509
B B (PR EE12) Dividend (note 12) - - - (123,054)
EERMEREE Employee share award scheme
-BERBER - value of employee services
(PfF7E27) (note 27) - 59,350 59,350 -
BB A RIAR 1) 2 FE [a] Recognition of redemption liabilities on
& & # R (K 7E29(i) a subsidiary shares (note 29iii)) = (1,573,500)  (1,573,500) =
Wi FE 15 iR fE 2w Acquisition of non-controlling interests = (8,844) (8,844) —
MiE AR B IEIEA AR E  Capital contribution by non-controlling
& (BT 5E29(ii)) shareholders of subsidiaries (note 29(ii)) = 475,948 475,948 =
TR TEZ ﬁ &= Partial disposal of equity interests in
GIENGIE subsidiaries without change of control (i) - 51,067 51,067 -
2 48 2 o B K JE 1+ #5 (i) Transfer to PRC statutory reserve fund (ii) 49,320 - 49,320 (49,320)
RZTEZ—F At 31 December 2021
+-A=+— 375,716 (597,153) (221,437) 4,546,223
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

28. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(continued)

@

Partial disposal of equity interests in subsidiaries without change of
control mainly represents the difference between the consideration
received by the Group and the decreased share of net assets has been
adjusted to increase other reserve when the Group transfer certain of
subsidiaries equity to non-controlling shareholders without change in

control.

The Company'’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are required to follow
the laws and regulations of the Mainland China and their respective
articles of association. These subsidiaries are required to allocate at least
10% of their net profits for each financial year to the reserve fund until
the balance of such fund has reached 50% of their respective registered
capital. The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the
shareholders’ meeting or similar authorities, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital. The reserve fund is not available for distribution to

shareholders except in the case of liquidation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

29. HE &

29. OTHER LIABILITIES

R+=HB=+—H
As at 31 December

:g:_q—: = 7
2021 2020
AR%TT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
i AE AT 47 B () Deferred government grants (i) 80,052 75,224
E b 18 3 (i) Other borrowings (ii) 31,530 32,000
B A R Bk 2 BE B & f& (i) Redemption liabilities on a subsidiary’s share (iii) 1,662,783 -
1,774,365 107,224

B B A Y Less: current portion

i FE BUAT 18 BA () Deferred government grants (i) 7,681 10,480
E b 18 3R Other borrowings (ii) - 4,000
7,681 14,480
I B A Non-current portion 1,766,684 92,744

(if)

HIEEMERYE  BEEEREM
WE BRE BB K - B
RBEEEREF FHARERE
B AGABERE

Etﬁﬁ“ka%)&@zrkﬁl EX)
13E¢ ?E’ME TA/\EM
27, 53000073(_;_7¢+ A
=+—H: AR28,000,0007T
(LEFRABFTE - EERRERN
FREE)  RREAEERBER
AR R IEERARE
4,000,000 7T (U f& 51 4 & 3 8 &
BERTERNER) -

(ii)

It represents the deferred revenue of government grants received for the
construction of property, plant and equipment. It will be credited to the
consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets.

Other borrowings consist of a borrowing amounting to RMB27,530,000
(31 December 2020: RMB28,000,000) from non-controlling shareholders
of a Group’s subsidiary, which is interest-bearing, unsecured and
repayable in eight vyears,
RMB4,000,000 from non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s
subsidiary, which is unsecured and repayable in ten years.

and a new borrowing amounting to
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(iii)

FR AEEBRIKEHER
AETHERBRELEARK
773,500,000 L(ZZE =T F : A
R #800,000,0007T) ° 18 & R &
E-T-_—F+ZA=+—HL
FEMMAZSIEERBRRT L
Z2hE EBREREEEEE
METHARAEMHR  AEEHE
Bl & RERMEERN - ER
EBELcAE  HIZERS
BAFRAEE ©

30. E5 R HAEMN R
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

29. OTHER LIABILITIES (continued)

(i) During the year, capital contribution amounting to RMB773,500,000
(2020: RMB800,000,000) was received from certain non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary. Pursuant to the agreement with these non-
controlling shareholders entered during the year ended 31 December
2021, capital contribution and related shares being transferred shall be
redeemable by the Group upon the occurrence of certain contingent
events which cannot be controlled by the Group. The redemption
obligations give rise to financial liabilities, which are measured at the net
present value of the redemption amount.

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

R+=—A=+—8H

As at 31 December
—E-—F —TTE
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 T ERRRG) Trade payables (i) 118,906 106,201
BEREMER R R ERBERE Payables for construction and purchase of equipment 104,838 105,544
U B BB~ B A BR 3R Payables for acquisitions of subsidiaries 342,750 346,500
Bt B8 X B BB SN 2R B S BR X Payable for additional interest of a subsidiary 5,250 -
ERRE Deposit payables 189,597 187,169
eI o SH P B FE ST f (B Accrued reimbursement to distributors 968,498 914,490
& % Salaries payable 80,750 64,142
FERT R E Interest payables 8,735 7,454
FER R E Dividends payables 324 159
H i & 5 BR 3K Other payables 151,641 98,502
1,971,289 1,830,161

EZRNERRTFE  FE
BEHR40K -

(i) The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
40 days.
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30. EZ RHEHMEBEMNERR@® 30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
RER BHENERENEEZHAAR An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year, based on the
RO invoice date, is as follows:
R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EBE-—F —E2-F
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
61& A K Within 6 months 86,623 83,808
618 A =14 6 months to 1 year 7,896 6,805
—F M E More than 1 year 24,387 15,588
118,906 106,201
B 5 N B AT BR A A (B B A AR The fair values of trade and other payables approximate to their carrying
BHREE - amounts.
31. AR 31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
R=B=—F AT T4 RIZ_FF
+=A=+—-8B +=A=+—8H —A—H
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
AR¥T T ARBFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
EES=F A &L e Short-term advances received from customers
PeEEEmED R Sale of pharmaceutical products and
BEEpE O medical aesthetic products 201,042 186,354 316,995
=¥t 250 Deferred revenue for sales of distribution
S FE50) rights (i) 15,352 275 9,575
216,394 186,629 326,570
B mENEE D Less: current portion
BE PR )R BB Short-term advances received from customers
HEEHEERR Sale of pharmaceutical products and
BXE® medical aesthetic products 201,042 186,354 316,995
HE D HER Deferred revenue for sales of distribution
iR 3E UK 25(i) rights (i) 5,383 275 9,300
IEmENEL Non-current portion 9,969 = 275
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BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continueq)

Contract liabilities include advances received for sales of pharmaceutical
products and medical aesthetic products, and deferred revenue for sales of
distribution rights. The increase in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to
the increase in short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
provision of sales of pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products
and long-term advances in relation to sales of distribution rights at the end
of the year. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the
decrease in short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
provision of sales of pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products at
the end of the year.

(i) It represents the cash advances received for sales of distribution rights
of certain pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products to

HEDKNIBESRHR - WFB R distributors for periods of three to five years. The revenue is recognised
Eiﬁgﬁﬁf\\,ﬂ?g\}a |9q TR o in the consolidated profit or loss on the straight-line basis.
32. EEHIE 32. DEFERRED TAX
FRNREEHREBEEERNBBEESHOT The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
follows:
EEMIBEE Deferred tax assets
BATETA
SERAR BameR
BUES  FEEN HEAHE  EEAE EEOATE HERR/
BE AEREN  EHER OABREN AENARD REEEHE HE RAREE  RUEER &5t
Fair value
Government adjustment of
Unrealised Unrealised subsidies financial assets Lease
profit of profitof sales ~ associated  Impairment at fair value liabilities/
Impairment ~ intra-group Accrued o distribution with  of long-term ~ through profit  Right-of-use
of receivables sales expenses right fixed assets assets orloss assets Tax losses Total
ARETT  ARBTRL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETL  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETn  AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZZFE-F-8  At1January 2020 541 17,986 253,101 1,507 7486 46,699 4,750 152 - 332,222
EnnGalEs Deferred tax credited/
AE/(Z8) (charged) to the
EEHE(M0) consolidated
profit or loss during
the year (note 10) 1128 (12,604) (54,49) (1,466) (607) (23179 (4,750) (137) 33338 (62,773)
RZZTZTE At 31 December 2020
+-A=1-A 1,669 5382 198,605 4 6,879 23,520 - 15 33338 269,449
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32. IRERIE &)
EIERIEEE (&)

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

FEALF
BUERR  EEEN
AE  REREA

Unrealised

profit of

Impairment  intra-group
of receivables sales
AEETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000

Deferred tax assets (continued)

RAFETA
BENEH
LEAHE  EE4E BENATE HERE/
BT ER HOAEREN REDARY RESENE #2  GRAREE  RERR EH
Fair value
Government adjustment of
Unrealised subsidies financial assets Lease
profit of sales ~ associated  Impairment  at fair value liabilities/
Accrued  of distribution with  of long-term  through profit  Right-of-use
expenses right fixed assets assets or loss assets  Taxlosses Total

ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARRTZ  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARWTR
RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB000

RZF--F-f-A At 1 January 2021 1,669 5,382 198,605 ] 6,879 23520 - 15 33338 269,449
EMREEBER Deferred tax credited/
AE/(Z8)H (charged) to the
EEHA(KH10) consolidated
profit or loss during
the year (note 10) 6,979 2,525 7159 (@) 1,826 (2,889) - 438 18,018 34,015
WoB--% At 31 December 2021
t-A=t+-8 8,648 1,907 205,764 - 8,705 20,631 - 453 51,356 303,464

BRI RBOR R IE AT A R AR

BEE

AL IR B 1R 4

BHERELER

BEE BARBETARBEREER
REAEFBHEEBETEERD AL
BER—ZT=-—F+_RA=+—RHIE
R BRI &5 B A R %5 3,160,218,000
T(ZZTZZTF © AR¥1,726,520,000
TBBENEEREEE - ZS BB
AEE KRR ERBEF o BEA
R % 46,723,000 7T + A K #79,670,000
7T~ A R ¥ 467,670,000 7T+ A B #
813,038,000 T & A & #1,753,117,000
TEAFR_TE=_—_F  ZF=_=F -
“ENFE - —CE_RFER T -RF
EIHf -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future taxable
profits is probable. Due to the fact that losses arising in certain subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised, the
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses amounting
to RMB3,160,218,000 (2020: RMB1,726,520,000) as at 31 December
2021 that can be carried forward to offset against future taxable profits.
Losses amounting to RMB46,723,000, RMB79,670,000, RMB467,670,000,
RMB813,038,000 and RMB1,753,117,000, will expire in 2022, 2023, 2024,
2025 and 2026, respectively.
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32. IR E () 32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
ROYE i
s ABEN SEbE
WEBEEN REW FRELEM
AVERE APEAER A TVERE S st
Fair value
adjustment Fair value
of adjustment
Fair value investments arising from
gain at fair value  recognition
arising from through of joint Withholding
acquisitions profit or loss venture tax Total
ARBTT AR¥BTT AR®BTR AR¥TR AR¥TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZEZTF— H A At 1 January 2020 92,087 79 45,455 145,000 282,621
FANGARIER Deferred tax (credited)/charged
(AR)/ = # E’J to consolidated profit
EERTE (P E10) or loss during the year (note 10) (3,594) 588 12,073 - 9,067
XA RN Payment of withholding tax - - - (66,000) (66,000)
i - At 31 December 2020
+ZA=+—H 88,493 667 57,528 79,000 225,688
RZZE-Z—F—A—H At 1 January 2021 88,493 667 57,528 79,000 225,688
FARGABEN Deferred tax (credited)/charged
(AR)/ZH#m to consolidated profit
EERITE (P E10) or loss during the year (note 10) (3,673) (664) 1,039 = (3,298)
RZE_—F At 31 December 2021
+t-HA=+—H 84,820 3 58,567 79,000 222,390

BREPEEEMRETE  RABEAMBAK
TSN EREREIMNEEE T IR R
BEMI0%TEHHR - WREB —FTTN
F-A-—HBEY YEAR-_ZTTL
F+-A=+—R%RZEF  -RENE
M RN E ARG E A
EREIARBEOZBERATER - 3t
AEEMmME ﬂ%ﬁiﬁ%ﬂﬁ%g
BR bt 78 3t 7 A B P 3 B S B BT B
Ffzzﬂi A— Eéﬁﬂzﬁﬂ%
7R BB B TR ©

@i:gz—¢+:ﬂ5+—5¢¢

PR EI EAE BT EA MK
iZW% AABMBIHNKREL R

%IJﬁﬁfEHZ%E%DWEWJﬁLmIE o
Fl/b ’ EZEFMTE TEéﬂifkmﬂ:ﬁEf
’a&a},}feﬁzamu R=ZZT=—F+=A
=+—8  @hERHEQRRER
BHABRECHEHEENEREZE8
A4 A ANRE59,006,000T(Z T =&
F . AR%49,644,0007T) °

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB59,006,000 at 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB49,644,000).
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33. A ERITIERK 33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
R=-ZB=—%+=-A=+—H R—ZZT-_TF+_-_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
BRA = B IR A =
(%) EHAE AR%®TR (%) FHBE AR®TT
Effective Effective
interest interest

rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000

B M Current

BHEBRITER Secured bank borrowings 3.45-4.65 2022 170,000  4.00-6.85 2021 108,640

AR IR IR 1T M X Unsecured bank borrowings 3.85 2022 30,000 2.05-4.30 2021 279,290
200,000 387,930

FEREN M Non-current

BHEFIRITER Secured bank borrowings 4.00 2023 199,940 4.00 2023 199,980

BEMBITER Secured bank borrowings 4.75 2026 127,384 - - -

BEMRITER Secured bank borrowings 4.90 2035 485,892 4.90 2035 131,193
813,216 331,173
1,013,216 719,103
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BE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HBLFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

R+=H=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E=—F —EZTF
2021 2020
AR TR AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
paR I Analysed into:
AT Bank borrowings:
F—FR Within the first year 200,000 387,930
—EZRF Within the second to fifth years 327,324 199,980
BRAF Beyond the fifth years 485,892 131,193
1,013,216 719,103
B 5E Notes
(@) AEBETRITERHUATSEER (@) Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by:
o
(i) ERAEBEFEEREASA (i) Mortgages over the Group’s leasehold land and property, plant and
R #802,340,000 (=& = & equipment with an aggregate carrying value of RMB802,340,000 (31
FH+ZA=+—H: AR® December 2020: RMB397,382,000);
397,382,0007T) &) 7 & £ 3 A
MmE BERZE
(ih HERAEFEEFTEHEFERA (i) The pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
R # 140,000,000 (= =& RMB140,000,000 (31 December 2020: RMB144,548,000); and
F+A=+—H: AR®
144,548,0007T) i Al
(i) —FRWBARMBOEZ - (iii) A Portion of equity interests in a subsidiary.
(b) FRAEZAARKSE - (b)  All borrowings are denominated in RMB.
(© R-T—-—FE+ - A=+—BHET (0) The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 range

BREEMENFF3.45%ZE4.90%
(ZE=ZFHF+-_A=1+—H :2.05%
£6.85%) °

from 3.45% to 4.90% (31 December 2020: 2.05% to 6.85%) per annum.
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4. BREELXNERE 34. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

—E-—F ZETF
2021 2020
AR®ETF T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
5 ¢ A& A Profit before tax 486,049 730,927
- REFEKE — From continuing operations 486,049 765,844
- RERIEEE — From discontinued operations = (34,917)
KLATIER AE - Adjustments for:
-ME BERREINE — Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 246,095 218,028
-EWENE — Depreciation of investment properties 7,904 7,381
- B A E — Amortisation of intangible assets 31,896 28,742
-BREAEREEBE — Impairment losses on intangible assets 131,297 -
- FRBEERE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23,472 24,130
-MRFEEE 2R FE — Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 9,047 -
-EEERAESEARMNIREEIE - Share of losses of investments accounted for
using the equity method 158,581 16,524
-HEYE  WmENMEENEEG - Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (i) 2,411 1,936
-RAFEFAEBZENESBEER - Gain on changes in fair value of financial assets
NS ENEa at fair value through profit or loss (1,304) (2,683)
-BREHEBE QAT ZEZFHIE - Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate (7,136) (80,488)
-BEHEMB AT ZEZEHIUE - Gain on deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary (59,228) -
- HEMERQ A MK E — Gain on disposals of subsidiaries - (72,307)
-REMKEANERBZEBIER - Gain on bargain purchase recognised in
Uz other gains = (2,830)
-HEEREENEE — Loss on disposal of intangible assets = 13,141
- UMD ABERNNAR — Share-based payments 59,350 23,176
- MERX ~ Interest expense 119,311 1,700
- F g A — Interest income (128,897) (56,016)
EEEeE BEBRETE Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,078,848 851,361
EBEEERABEEH Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
-FE - Inventories (226,805) (65,323)
-B 5 REMEWKERER — Trade and other receivables (208,734) (269,516)
- E 5 REMEMERER — Trade and other payables 195,751 64,763
-GHBE — Contract liabilities 29,765 (139,941)
KEEENES Cash generated from operations 868,825 441,344
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34. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(i) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

1 -
—EB-—F —TTF
2021 2020
AR®ET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREFE Net book amount 5,544 7,448
HEVE BELRENERE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2,411) (1,936)
HEME BERREBOMESHRIE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,133 5,512

35. RERETMERME

(a) EXRFBERS

FAN - ASEBBAREEXE
HEXHENERABEERTEE
BEMNIBRESREDINAAR
# 35,077,000 (=T = F F -
A B # 23,358,000 7L) & A R
35,077,000t (ZE-ZF : AR
#2,523,0007T) ©

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of RMB35,077,000 (2020: RMB23,358,000) and
RMB35,077,000 (2020: RMB2,523,000), respectively, in respect of lease

arrangements for plant and equipment.
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35. mEEERERM T 2 35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) REETBFEENERS (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
o)

—EgE-—F 2021

—
ARARHZ  RITERK
P RIS HESE EARE BE&E Hittd &

Redemption
liabilities on Bank
Interest Lease Dividend a subsidiary’s and other
payables liabilities payables shares  borrowings
AR®T T ARMT T ARMT T AR®TT ARMT T
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZE=-——F—HA—H At 1 January 2021 7,454 3,951 159 - 751,103
MEREREELENE Changes from financing cash flows (27,932) (3,187) (196,389) = 293,643
MHE New leases - 35,077 - = =
—T_TFERERE Final 2020 dividend - - 123,054 - -
RENES0 ¢ & Dividends paid to non-controlling
% & shareholders - - 73,500 - -
—FNBARRGZ Recognition of redemption liabilities
B EER on a subsidiary’s shares - - - 1,573,500 -
FEHAX Interest expense 29,213 815 = 89,283 =
R-ZBE-_—%
+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2021 8,735 36,656 324 1,662,783 1,044,746
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)y MEZTBFELENEES (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
) (continued)
—E-TF 2020
RITER K
HEAE RS HibfgE
Bank
Lease Dividend and other
liabilities payables borrowings
ARETT AREFT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
R-ZZE-_TF—H—H At 1 January 2020 9,950 159 9,000
BRERESREELENE Changes from financing cash flows (3,431) (1,444,352) 727,103
wHaE New leases 2,523 - _
FERZ Interest expense 279 - _
ZE-NFRERKRE Final 2019 dividend - 123,054 -
ﬁ%'] RekE Special cash dividends - 1,287,332 -
—E_TFFHERKRE Interim 2020 dividend - 9,466 -
B IE AR AR AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders - 24,500 -
HENE R A Disposals of subsidiaries (5,370) - -
B — KM B AR AN Increase arising from acquisition of a subsidiary - - 15,000
RIZ_TF
+=-—A=+—8H At 31 December 2020 3,951 159 751,103
(0 HERERHESE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FFAGREReRERNEERS The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement
MmN T of cash flows is as follows:
—EZ—F —E-TF
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KETEEA Within operating activities 8,113 2,434
BEEEA Within financing activities 3,187 3,431
11,300 5,865
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36. £ &6t

(a) WHBIL R B R &

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a) Acquisition of Beijing Combio Pharmaceutical Inc.

BHRA A
RZZEZ—F"AZH F5E
LA {8 A R #131,000,0007T Y B
R ERE B EGRAA
((EHBER] PEABH—F
FETRA B—FRBARZY
BEMBEENMMENANEHE £
MRARDZEE - B BIER
REKER - W iE R/ ND T8l
FTEAT AR & R AR A ) T B B
TMEREBOBR - BKER
8 AR #131,000,000tERZE
Z—FUBREHAXIN -

FERBRRKBRAEMMNEER
BENQFE:

On 2 June 2021, the Group acquired a set of assets, liabilities, employee
resources and contract rights from Beijing Combio Pharmaceutical Inc.
(“Combio Pharmaceutical”), an unlisted company based in Mainland
China which is an innovation-driven biological company dedicated
to the research and development of multifunctional antibody drugs,
at a consideration of RMB131,000,000. The acquisition is to bring a
good R&D capability and product pipeline to complement the small
molecules innovative drug R&D platform. The total consideration of
RMB131,000,000 was settled in cash as in 2021.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Combio

Pharmaceutical as at the date of acquisition were:

R RRERN
AFE
Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

ARET T

RMB’000

ME - BEREZHE Property, plant and equipment 2,995
mEEE Intangible assets 128,923
B REMBEMNERRK Trade and other payables (918)
BATEABNEESFEASE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 131,000
gieis= ol Goodwill on acquisition =
AR & (Bt Satisfied by cash 131,000
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a) W EBIL TR EREA B BR 3T EE (a) Acquisition of Beijing Combio Pharmaceutical Inc.
BMAERD T (#) (continued)
REEBEE  B5 kEMENK The fair value of the trade and other payables as at the date of
TR TFERARE918,0007T acquisition amounted to RMB918,000 being the same as the gross
EAENBSEEER - contractual amount.
WENBATINESRESTHW An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries
Nk is as follows:
ARETT
RMB’000
RERE Cash consideration (131,000)
FrU s IR & R IRITAEER Cash and bank balance acquired =
AAREEHAEESREMNIRSE  Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from
KA EEYR L FE investing activities (131,000)

(b)

BT RE-T-— &4
A=+—HLSE FHERA
AEBEHOKEAT LA
44 BB A R#31,626,0007T °

i & 1tk B U BB R F R OE T
A REBRILFENFELCHE
EBREREMNDAEAR
¥ 3,291,270,000 T & A R #
232,083,0007T ©

W B Genesis Biosystems,
Inc.
RZTEZ—F+ZA=+—
H - 7 & B A K {& 3,000,000 5
T E R K AR 19,138,000
70 ) Y BEGenesis  Biosystems, Inc.
(IGenesis| + iz /A = B 45 1 2 Ay
—RIFELETRR B—KEBRHM
AEESERRER  EMKES
TAREORE RERDH -
WEITRMBBRFMARER
ME EEEABUARBEFMN
fEmM R EM) M2 EBARE - Wi
K {E3,000,000F€ T 2R T =—
FURSHAINM -

(b)

Since the acquisition, Combio Pharmaceutical contributed nil to
the Group’s revenue and incurred a loss of RMB31,626,000 to the

consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue
from continuing operations of the Group and the profit of the Group for
the year would have been RMB3,291,270,000 and RMB232,083,000,
respectively.

Acquisition of Genesis Biosystems, Inc.

On 31 December 2021, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest
in Genesis Biosystems, Inc. (“Genesis”), an unlisted company based
in Delaware USA which is a manufacturer of aesthetic and biomedical
products specialising in the development, manufacture and distribution
of beauty devices with a focus on microchannel systems and fat
harvesting products for cosmetic and skin care treatments as well as
plastic surgery, at a consideration of USD3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB19,138,000). The consideration of USD3,000,000 was
settled in cash in 2021.
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36. &bt 36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(b) Y & Genesis Biosystems, (b) Acquisition of Genesis Biosystems, Inc.
Inc.(#&) (continued)
GenesisiR I EE B AT &R EE R A The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Genesis as at the
BHAFEWMT : date of acquisition were:
UK B B FE SR A
AFRE
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
AR®T T
RMB’000
M BEREZHE Property, plant and equipment 534
RekReFEBD Cash and cash equivalents 511
B 5 K H At UBR 3R Trade and other receivables 917
FE Inventories 1,651
B 5 & E At FE T BR X Trade and other payables (515)
U B B Y e R B Provisional goodwill on acquisition 16,040
BRAFER#MNEEFERRE Total identifiable net assets at fair value 3,098
AR & B Satisfied by cash 19,138
WHE—"T - —F+—-A=+— The assessment of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
B IF 8 W EE B Genesis A 3 Bl & of Genesis acquired during the year ended 31 December 2021 is still
EREGEHNATEY FGIMELE in process and the information of the fair values of the identifiable
T BRARA GBI R ER assets and liabilities was provisional at the date of the approval of the
HEZH BRABMNEERAE consolidated financial statements. None of the goodwill recognised is
ANFEHERETTEN - FBtE expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.
WRZEERMERME AT
e
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36. B &0t 36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(b) Y & Genesis Biosystems, (b) Acquisition of Genesis Biosystems, Inc.
Inc.(#&) (continued)
YU B GenesisI IR 2R E DI An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of Genesis is as
o follows:
AR®T T
RMB’000
BERE Cash consideration (19,138)
FTUREER & R RTT A5 6 Cash and bank balance acquired 511
FFARAESReRENRS K Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from
ReEEBYRLFRE investing activities (18,627)
BlERE HE2_ET-_—F+= Since the acquisition, Genesis contributed nil to the Group’s revenue and
B=+—HILFE  GenesisA A incurred Nil to the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
SEEMOKNEARAT  E£NE 2021.
ARMEE -
A FEEITUEE @ BIAEER Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue
FANBEBELEEBKE R ET from continuing operations of the Group and the profit of the Group for
# 7 5l & A R #3,305,005,0007C the year would have been RMB3,305,005,000 and RMB234,412,000,

& AR #234,412,0007T ° respectively.
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37. RIFHENBE LT

REZ2-_FT-_—F+-_A=+—HI1
FE HRE=ZFREETE F£E
REMERREILEBRAAEH MK
EE] XA EMBAR) MW
By HmEREMERKALAEERN
Bt AT WERESRIEDEREARE
59,228,0007T ° A B H & EMER A F
WamEBESREAIWNET

37. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group's interest in Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection Engineering Co.,
Ltd. (“Jilin Zesheng”), a former wholly-owned subsidiary, was diluted during
the year ended 31 December 2021 as a result of the capital injection from a
third party investor, which resulted that Jilin Zesheng became an associate of
the Group and a gain on deemed disposal amounting to RMB59,228,000 was
recorded. An analysis of the net gain and cash inflow in respect of the disposal
of Jilin Zesheng is as follows:

ARETT
RMB’000
WHEZEEFE - Net assets disposed of:
ME - BEREHE Property, plant and equipment 110,284
TREEE Right-of-used assets 53,652
B 5 &k H b EWRR Trade and other receivables 16,345
EHEWAEH Current income tax receivables 1,742
HEMIERBEE Other non-current liabilities (22,250)
B REMERERR Trade and other payables (114,773)
RIFERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 45,000
RAE & B AR U = Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 59,228
REE & R A 2% E (B EE12G3)) Investment in an associate (note 12(i)) 104,228
AR & E R Satisfied by cash _
HHREHERNBATNE S RIRSZEE An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
MREFEN SO ¢ deemed disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:
ARET T
RMB’000

BEWRRERE Cash consideration received
HEZHRERIRSEEY

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

BIEHEZREMEFR

Net cash flow on deemed disposal
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38. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of Chonghui
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group transferred its

follows:

EENFRBERBRSREN DT

entire interest in Chonghui related party, CFS Development Holding
Limited, for a consideration of RMB143,400,000. An analysis of the

net gain and cash outflow in respect of the disposal of Chonghui is as

m

AREEFTT
RMB’'000
s BEREE Property, plant and equipment 40,060
FREEE Right-of-use assets 104,810
BVEE Intangible assets 6,528
HEMIERBEE Other non-current assets 5,106

BRATEF ARG ESHEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(R#E) (current) 129
FE Inventories 6,370
FRAERETENKRE Investment accounted for using the equity method 66,637

EAFEFAEENSREE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(JERE) (non-current) 5,500
B 5 K& H b AR K Trade and other receivables 51,482
ReERBLEED Cash and cash equivalents 155,329
HEARG Lease liabilities (5,370)
EMIERBBE Other non-current liabilities (169,340)
B 5 K& Hh FE - BR 5k Trade and other payables (182,640)
IE 122 A% Non-controlling interests 3,603
RILERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 88,204
HESBHNRE Consideration for disposal of Chonghui 143,400
R E B W = Gain on derecognition of Chonghui 55,196

FRLEERNBESRENIT Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Chonghui:

ERBEERE Cash consideration received 143,400
HEMNBRESRESESEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (155,329)
HEREREFE Net cash flow on disposal (11,929)

FE

B

Ea
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.HEHNBLATINER 2 38. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES continued)

(b)y HERA (b)
REBEZE_ZT_TF+RA=+—
HEFE XEBBERERN
2 B 7 %5 ¥ E T A 55 77 Weicheng
investment Holding Limited * {8

Disposal of Tengwei

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group transferred its
entire interest in Tengwei to a related party, Weicheng investment
Holding Limited, for a consideration of RMB136,200,000. An analysis of
the net gain and cash inflow in respect of the disposal of Tengwei is as

7 AR #136,200,0007T © B8 follows:
ERANFURERRESRADN
mE
ARBFT
RMB’'000
FRERETENKRE Investment accounted for using the equity method 116,089
BATEFABGNEMEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(JER®) (non-current) 3,000
BIFERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 119,089
LEEAEHNE Consideration for disposal of Tengwei 136,200
TR R U Gain on derecognition of Tengwei 17,111
FRLEBANBEEREDHT Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Tengwei
BYEESRE Cash consideration received 129,500
HENRSRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of -
HERSMEFHE Net cash flow on disposal 129,500
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39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of year:

R+=—A=+—8~

As at 31 December
—E=-—-F —TEF
2021 2020
ARET T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BETHBEREE Contracted, but not provided for:

LS N Property, plant and equipment 396,381 650,478
BmLEAE-#THERMAE Intangible assets — product development in progress 72,091 62,016
468,472 712,494

40. R 5

FAEENSEERBRRSERFTE
BEBELE RAEBENLZTER
Ao

BAEE Ty & 1 N ELEE R D BRI T

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling shareholders of the Group are Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr.

Guo Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong and Mr. Meng Xianhui.

Name and relationship with related parties are as follows:

=t ke
Name Relationship
BEAEE BEEgER
Dr. Che Fengsheng Chairman of the Board
Weicheng Investment Holding Limited ER R4 B AR 1
Weicheng Investment Holding Limited Controlled by Dr. Guo Weicheng
CHEE REBE RS QT
Renfang Medical Associate of the Group
SIS REBBEE QA
Beijing Ruiye Associate of the Group
BIERE REBAHE LR E]
Tonghua Tianshi Associate of the Group
BFELfERA] REE B E N T
Pharmadax (Foshan) Associate of the Group
PEaEnRMERAR ([ LEE] ) REE LR A
Shanghai Lide Biotech Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Lide"”) Associate of the Group
EMER REBAHEE R E]
Jilin Zesheng Associate of the Group
Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited ( [Sihuan Strides] ) REBENEERE
Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited (“Sihuan Strides”) Joint venture of the Group
Euromax Holdings Limited FR G B AR 1

Euromax Holdings Limited

Controlled by Dr. Che Fengsheng

FE

B

E2
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40. BB R 5 2)
BB RREMIBOMFLANL S R iE
BN AEERFRETHR I KR
TE -+ - A=t+—HHNESW

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions during the year and
balances as at 31 December 2021:

T
—E=-—-F —TEF
2021 2020
AR¥TT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M Bt & N A RE B A 8 R 7S Purchase of R&D service from an associate
- LB - Shanghai Lide - 93
BB AREE Capital contribution to a subsidiary from a related party
— Euromax Holdings Limited — Euromax Holdings Limited 13,465 -
R HE D E R F B U Interest income from associates
- E — Beijing Ruiye 6,796 7,058
- HEMER — Jilin Zesheng 4,930 -
-RERE - Tonghua Tianshi 2,755 2,928
14,481 9,986
) B N B B SR (M RE22 K 24) (i) Loan to associates (notes 22 and 24) (i)
-dE R E - Beijing Ruiye 181,917 156,770
— BB ER — Pharmadax (Foshan) 125,000 120,000
-EMER — Jilin Zesheng 88,745 -
-B{tXRE — Tonghua Tianshi 75,970 78,033
-CHER - Renfang Medical - 2,412
471,632 357,215
U A &1 ¥ RE (M iE24) Amount due from a joint venture (note 24)
— Sihuan Strides (ii) — Sihuan Strides (ii) 2,911 675
JE W H th B8 Bk 5 5k 18 (BT 5E24) Amounts due from other related parties (note 24)
— B T B8 AR (i) — Dr. Che Fengsheng (i) 9,600 9,600
— Weicheng Investment Holding — Weicheng Investment Holding Limited
Limited - 6,700
9,600 16,300

(i RERABLEQARDBERDFEBHR
R B HmERMF22K%24 -

(i)  FEUYsSihuan Stridesf% )6 FH 28
REBAERE  BEERARER
ERg-HE-_ZT=-_—F+=A
S+ BLEFE - RKREEREK
BESEAELEREESARARE
9,600,000 C(ZZT_TF : AR
#9,600,0007T) °

(i) Details of the loans to associates as at the end of the year are disclosed
in notes 22 and 24 to the financial statements.

(i)  The amounts due from Sihuan Strides and Dr. Che Fengsheng are
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. The maximum
outstanding amount due from Dr. Che Fengsheng was RMB9,600,000
during the year ended 31 December 2021(2020: RMB9,600,000).
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continue)

Details of key management compensation during the year are as follows:

—B--F —

2021 2020

AR®T T ARBT T

RMB’'000 RMB’000

HHEERF Short-term employee benefits 24,368 25,137
ARG E R B AR AE R 2 Equity-settled share option expense 6,020 1,791
ITNGBFTEERANTHNAERE Total compensation paid to key management personnel 30,388 26,928

HzeE T -_—4F+-_A=+—81ItHF
B AEEWEETEMBZT ETHR
AIETABERRERFEEZRENH
ERGAFERERGH(ERR LR
A1) o

1. €T ESHE
RER  ZEeMIANEESEN
T

R-ZB-—-%+=ZA=+-—8H
EWMEE

41.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has not conducted any
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined under
the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements
under the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
the end of the year are as follows:

As at 31 December 2021
Financial assets

EAFETA
Hir2mEki
RAFEFTA HemEE
REHERA BEMNELEMEE  Financial assets
STEHNSMEE  Financial assets at fair value
Financial at fair value  through other
assets at through comprehensive st
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
AR¥ETT ARMT T ARMT T ARMT T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BATEGFABEMN Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss - 376,303 = 376,303
JE W 3 1% Notes receivable - - 171,215 171,215
B 5 R H MW Trade and other receivables
(TBREEMR) excluding prepayments 923,122 - - 923,122
HiERBEE Other non-current assets
(TREEMR) excluding prepayments 377,400 - - 377,400
BEBFR Pledged deposits 144,631 = = 144,631
RekRELFEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,682,425 = = 5,682,425
7,127,578 376,303 171,215 7,675,096
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1. €T E9 8w 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continued)
RER SHEJCcRTANKEESEND The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
T (#) the end of the year are as follows: (continued)
R-B-—-%+=-HA=+-—H As at 31 December 2021
cREE Financial liabilities
TR R
FTENEMEE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

AR®T T

RMB’000

HiEx(BEHEEaE) Other borrowings including lease liabilities 68,186
FFERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,013,216
BB A RIAR 7 H FE Bl & (& Redemption liabilities on a subsidiary’s shares 1,662,783
B REMENMER(TEEIELFAME) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,890,539
4,634,724
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M. eI ESE 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continued)
RER SHEJCcRTANKEESEND The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
T (#) the end of the year are as follows: (continued)
RZEZZFEF+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020
SREE Financial assets

BAFEFA

Hih 2 mEmkes

BAFERA MR EE

LEESHPK AN BmMEREE  Financial assets
FTERESEEE  Financial assets at fair value

Financial at fair value  through other
assets at through  comprehensive #eEt
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
BROFEFABRD Financial assets at fair value through
CMEE profit or loss - 528,836 - 528,836
e E & Notes receivable - - 128,427 128,427
B 5 &k H bW RIE Trade and other receivables
(T EEEMR excluding prepayments 692,495 - - 692,495
HMFERBDEE Other non-current assets
(T BREBENSF) excluding prepayments 353,770 - - 353,770
[REATFEE Pledged deposits 144,548 - - 144,548
BehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,604,041 - - 4,604,041
5,794,854 528,836 128,427 6,452,117
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1. €T E9 8w 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continued)
RER SHEJCcRTANKEESEND The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
T (#) the end of the year are as follows: (continued)
RZEZZFEF+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020
cREE Financial liabilities
bize 3z [BHN
ATERNEHAE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

ARBFT

RMB’000

HiEH(BEHEERE) Other borrowings including lease liabilities 35,951
FPERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 719,103
ESNEMENAER(TRIEIESBMAME) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,766,019
2,521,073
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42. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair

EMEmMELAFEERT : value or those measured at fair value, are as follows:
BREE NEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
R+=ZA=+—H R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
—E_—fF T -FF —E_—F —E_FTF
2021 2020 2021 2020
ARET T AREFTT ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERMEE Financial assets
MBS N ERGERD) Loans to associates (non-current) 263,521 243,770 273,481 250,988
H i FE R SR (3E R ED) Other receivables (non-current)
(BERNE=ZFER) (including loans to third parties) 113,846 110,000 104,024 98,523
377,367 353,770 377,505 349,511
tHMas Financial liabilities
H A f& 5K Other borrowings (other than lease
(TEEREERE) liabilities) 31,530 32,000 32,283 33,224
FFERITER Interest-beating bank borrowings 1,013,216 719,103 1,055,366 730,859
1,044,746 751,103 1,087,649 764,083

EEEEHBREMESEEY A
B 5 R E i IR A & BB B DA MGGt
ANESREBENERNERABENR

BHBREE -

EMEELBENRAFERERR ST
CRAFBRHERINEENZ ST A
XHMZTEEZRAR - BURMEF QYT
BEHHERBREAOT -

MR E DR R IR B B SRR IE R B E A
AR - BIRRE  fFERITENREK
HERNAFEESBBKRAHKR
XReRE  EHABELUFEH EFE&
o B K T BAPR ) T ELIR I ] 45 69 b 3K
BUOTHE R_BE_—F+_A=+—
B AEEEFNERRBORRBRER
MAFEEPHRFIERTERX -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets included in trade and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in trade and other payables approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

The fair values of non-current loans to associates and non-current other
receivables, notes receivables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own
non-performance risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were assessed to
be insignificant.
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42. M ITEMNAFERAFE 42 Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

BEE&K»

ARBRANELTRE - B E M
RATRATRORMER - A K BE (88
RASHEHEEY - REAUFHR
LB 0 T R0 T 48 0 o 5 % 5 9 £
BAHDTE -

BAFEFABRNIELTRERED
AFEDRELIEHATRMER L RE
BrBE  EAMBEERERD -G
BEEREFRIETE  RE  BEERE
BETAUALBEARDR » WatdslhH
MEAELBRARARTEABERE
Ol EEEHRAS BIE T
B 35 1 & A ([EV/EBITDA L) & & &
BIRYBF(TPED)EZEE - EH IR
BB ARMCEBERUANENES:
HEY RHBEHUSTELBERAAR
BARBAEREZRBEINEERZ - Al
WIERBHERAEER - PRI - B
S SN IE LA AR S K 4R e 2 7
BEUHEQATFE BERAMGESE
FHBETATEGRERES BB
MER)RBEATEED (RERELE
H)BAE UYAFRASAEMMEE -

ARBBARFLTIRE - R E N
RITHTHRNER - AREE E A
RR SR EMGERL  RIEALEER
BBHOTANTSHEEEZSE LD
BARODTE -

instruments (continued)

which

management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group has

The Group invests in unlisted investments, represent wealth
estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates of instruments

with similar terms and risks.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value through
profit or loss have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The valuation requires the directors to determine comparable public
companies based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate
an appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple and
price to earnings (“P/E") multiple, for each comparable company identified.
The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted for
considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between the comparable
companies based on company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted
multiple is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted
equity investments to measure the fair value. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
year.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group has
estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates of instruments

with similar terms and risks.
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42. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continuea)

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2021

BRUTHETEAFE
Fair value measurement using
IR R BX BEX
G ZHRE AEEZ2H TUEEZH
(B—%&) (B=&) (B=#) et
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR®T T ARETT ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BATFEFAERDN Financial assets at fair value
ERMEE - through profit or loss:
BAFEFED Unlisted equity investments,
SELTRERE at fair value - - 266,999 266,999
12 BF EE M Wealth management products - 109,304 - 109,304
BAFEGEAHEMEE Debt instruments at fair value
WaeEBITA through other comprehensive
income:
e W E % Notes receivable - 171,215 - 171,215
- 280,519 266,999 547,518
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42. TR T EMAFEER2AF  42. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

BEE& @ instruments (continued)
NFEERE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
HRTEHEHELE  (#&) Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
RZEZZFEF+-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020
BRATEHEFEATE
Fair value measurement using
OE 2 BR =N
Ti% 2 WIE ABE28 TABRE2H
(Z—#) (F=%) (B=%) #at
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EBEAFEFABRDY Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss:
BATFEFED Unlisted equity investments,
JELmRERE at fair value - - 196,153 196,153
12 B E Wealth management products - 332,683 - 332,683
BATFEFAHMEZE Debt instruments at fair value
WaeEBTA through other comprehensive
income:
e S Notes receivable - 128,427 - 128,427
- 461,110 196,153 657,263
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BHRE R
DNV EER A
B FEGENEE - (#)
TXRR-B_—FR_F_FTHF+_
A=t+—HemMIAGENTEEHEE
DMZERTABRL2HME

SREE RAFEER  EEDE

Fair value Valuation
Financial assets hierarchy technique

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

BERTAIBEZ2H Gl RN EH2HNGURE
Significant Sensitivity of fair value
unobservable input Range to the input

JEETRERE F= HERZR

Unlisted equity Level 3 Valuation
investment multiples

FELTmERE E=/ MIRBEMRITE

Unlisted equity Level 3 Discounted

investment cash flow

method

FITH TR R (& E 1.11-11.76  BEEEI5%
(ZZ2=2F+-A
=+—H :5%)
BN, A 1 B
DA, 5%
(ZZE-ZH+-A
=+—H :5%)
Average price-to-book 5% (31 December 2020:
ratio multiple of peers 5%) increase/decrease
in multiple would result
in increase/decrease in fair
value by 5%
(31 December 2020: 5%)

BEIR & 15% & 8H5%
(ZZE=ZF+-A
=+—H :5%)
B R # E B
RNFERD11%
(ZEZZF+=A
=t+—H 1%k
RNFEZIN1%

—T_TF+_A

=+—8 :12%)

Discount rate 5% (31 December 2020:
5%) increase/decrease
in multiple would result
in decrease in fair
value by 11%
(31 December 2020:
11%) and increase in fair
value by 11% (31
December 2020: 12%)
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42. TR T EMAFEER2AF  42. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

BE&K= instruments (continued)
NFEERE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
BRFEFTENEE  (8) Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
FRN FEZBRANATFEFEZSH N The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are
T as follows:
—E=--F T E
2021 2020
AR®ETF T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BAFEGABED Equity investments at fair value through
IR A profit or loss:
wn—H—AH At 1 January 196,153 174,220
e Purchases 80,926 30,433
H & Disposal (10,080) (8,500)
R+=-—A=1+—H At 31 December 266,999 196,153
BN FEGAEMBE - Liabilities measured at fair value:
R_EBE - FR_ZT_FTF+_A4 The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
=+—8  AEEBRECFAEAFER December 2021 and 2020.
ENSRAE-
FRA - REeMEELRSREGEMS During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
ENTVEFAEEF —MME_FoEE Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
BonEEAREHE=H(ZT-F assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).
Fom)o
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2. cHMITENAFERAF
BE &K
NFEEHKE)
BEATFENEE
W-—®-—%f+=-A=+-A8

42. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2021

BRUTREBEFEATE

Fair value measurement using

ATE B BX BX

hiE 2 HE BE2Y TUBEEZSY
(B—%) (B=8) (E=4) AR5t

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
mE SRR ER(EAS) Loans to associates (non-current) - 273,481 - 273,481

H b fE Y E (FERDER) Other receivables (non-current)
(BREMAE=ZFEXK) (including loans to third parties) = 104,024 = 104,024
- 377,505 - 377,505
RZZE_ZEE+-_R=+—8H As at 31 December 2020
BRATREFERATE
Fair value measurement using

SR EPN =X

% 2 BB AER28 TABR2H
(B—%&) (=) (B=#) 5t

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
mEEE N B ER(GERIER) Loans to associates (non-current) - 250,988 = 250,988

E fih 8 YR TE (JERNER) Other receivables (non-current)

(BEME=FEK) (including loans to third parties) = 98,523 = 98,523
- 349,511 - 349,511
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42. SMIEWAFERAY

42. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial

BEE& @ instruments (continued)
AEEERE) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
RENTFENEE - Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
R-ZZB--%+-A=+—H As at December 2021
BRUTREBEFEATE
Fair value measurement using
ATE B BX BX
hiE 2 HE BE2Y TUBEEZSY
(B—%) (B=8) (E=4) AR5t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H a5 Other borrowings
(FREaERiN) (other than lease liabilities) = 32,283 = 32,283
FFERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 1,055,366 = 1,055,366
- 1,087,649 - 1,087,649
RNR-_EFE-—_FHFE4+—-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2020
BRATREFERATE
Fair value measurement using
SR EPN EDN
% 2 BB AER28 TABR2H
(B—%&) (=) (B=#%&) 5t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H b & 5% Other borrowings
(FREB BB (other than lease liabilities) = 33,224 = 33,224
ST ERRITHER Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 730,859 = 730,859
- 764,083 - 764,083

204 | mIBEEEEAREE AR 2 A SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



B EkEEE
43.1 B 75 R B (R ==

REBNERETHAIZEMH
Rk - WmiHER(BENERR

ERRBREFERR)  FERR
ErEgtRERR  AEEEERR
EERRBE IR EBRTEHTA

AN TERFEREHLRE
B BRENBEETNEE -

(a) THERE
()  SrEERE

AARREWER
AMMEEE B A
R  -AEBENMAE
WA R B A B
TEFEUAREKE
B ARBERAI
W 2P B BT 28 A Y
SNEE B B3R B OE R
EE o REBUINE
HENTIZEELEER
B EAET(E
L) BT (ETD
KRBT (TBOT)) &HE
WETRERESS
B (MfsE25) - AR
AEFENTEER
B AEBEYERER
BJBAIINEE R -

7K $ 8 3 B 3 f ) 0
K -

R-T_—F+_H

=t—H HMEAR
WHETRE/FE

3% (ZEBE-FF+ =
A=+—8 :3%) -
mEAAAEHEMEZE#
BAE ABE_F
——f%+=-—A=+-—
HIEFEHBREER
G AR KA
R #1,293,000 7t (=
E_FF: AR®
496,0007T) * £ E M
RBREUETAEMN
MBS RBEEEEYD
HIEE 5 425 518 FT
g( °

8175 5 < I ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

43.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk

(including foreign currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit

risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
is RMB. All of the revenues of the Group are derived from
operations in the PRC. The financial instruments of the
Group are mainly denominated in RMB. The conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The main foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities of the Group were certain cash and
cash equivalents (Note 25), which were denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD"), Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$")
and Euro (“EUR"). In the opinion of the executive directors
of the board of the Company, the Group does not have
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedge
policy.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2020: 3%) against USD
with all other variables held constant, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
approximately RMB1,293,000 (2020: RMB496,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of the USD-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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43. i EREE )

431 Bt E B R &= (2)
(a) THEEE#)

(1)

(ii)

SN S B (4E)

RZZE=Z—F+=A
=t—H fMEAR
MEBTREFHE
3% (ZE_ZTF+=
A=+—H :3%) -
mAaTA R E#E
Brg AEE=ZT
——F+-A=+—
B IEFE 8RB &
TG AR KA
R # 1,516,000 7L (=
TZTF: AR
4,968,0007T) + £ &
HRBENBTAEE
NHReRBESEE
YR EE 58
FTEL »
—E-—F+=H
=t+t—H fMEAR
B H BT EFHE
3% (ZE_ZTFE+ =
A=+—H :3%) -
mATA EaEE#E

BAE AEE—F
——H+ZA=+-—

HIEFERNRKR%
i F SR A 49
AR 47,0007t (=
TEZTF: AR
655,0007T) + £ E M
PRI E AR IT B B AL
MRS MESEEY
B IE X Wz B AT
g(o

1B 18 B %
7K & [B 3 4% [ B A £
EABRAT SRR
TR E R EmE
®E R

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2020: 3%) against
HK$ with all other variables held constant, the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have
been approximately RMB1,516,000 (2020: RMB4,968,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of the HK$-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2020: 3%) against EUR
with all other variables held constant the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
approximately RMB47,000 (2020: RMB655,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of the EUR-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any significant equity market

risk, nor exposed to any commodity price risk.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Interest rate risk
The interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Group
mainly include the wealth management products, cash and
cash equivalents, other borrowings and interest-bearing
bank borrowings, details of which have been disclosed
in notes 21, 25, 29 and 33 to the financial statements,
respectively.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, notes receivable, wealth management products and
other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain
PRC reputable financial institutions and high-quality international
financial institutions outside Mainland China. All those irrevocable
bank bills, classified as notes receivable (Note 24), are issued by
the banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There was no recent
history of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation
to these financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk and has policies in place to ensure
that certain cash advance has been received upon the agreement
of the related sales orders with customers. For those with credit
periods granted, the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed
by taking into account their financial position, credit history and
other factors. The Group also undertakes certain monitoring
procedures to ensure that proper follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group regularly performs ageing
analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates the recoverability
regarding such receivables based on historical date and cash
collection history of groups of trade receivables bearing similar
credit risk.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Wealth management products are the bank financial products
issued by certain PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no
recent history of default and the executive directors of the board
of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk related to

the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors
is assessed by taking into account their financial position,
relationship with the Group, credit history and other factors.
Management will also regularly review the recoverability of these
other receivables and follow up on the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any. The executive directors of the board of the
Company are of the opinion that the default by counterparties is

low.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on ageing information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amount presented is gross
carrying amount for financial assets.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

H
1218 A
BHEEER 2HENGEEER
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
E1EER E2AREER EIEER B 5% st
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AR¥TT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
EE NN E Loans to associates 471,632 - - - 471,632
JEWAEMERIE  Amount due from a joint venture 2,911 = = = 2,911
B 5 W R Trade receivables* - - - 651,490 651,490
B EE - [EF** Notes receivable — normal** 171,215 = = = 171,215
st AFERT B - 24 Financial assets included in
R AT BR 30 R E prepayments, other receivables
EENGREE and other assets
— [EFE> - normal** 237,960 - - - 237,960
BEEAER Pledged deposits
- R H — Not yet past due 144,631 = - - 144,631
BeRFEESEY  Cash and cash equivalents
- K@ — Not yet past due 5,682,425 - = = 5,682,425
6,710,774 - - 651,490 7,362,264
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43. M5 E R EE ) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
431 R E =) 43.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) EEREE %) (b) Credit risk (continued)
= A BB R F K 5 R Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
(%)
R-E-_EF+_-_A=+— As at 31 December 2020
=
1218 A
HHEEEE 2 HBRBREEER
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
k%
F1REE FAEER IR Simplified #st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARBFT ARBFTT ARBFTT ARBFTT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B DR E K Loans to associates 357,215 - - - 357,215
el e &R Amount due from
B a joint venture 675 - - - 675
B 5 W R Trade receivables* - - - 272,514 272,514
FEWEYE - E®**  Notes receivable - normal** - - - 128,427 128,427
sPAFERMFE - E4b Financial assets included in
FE U BR TR R HoAtb prepayments, other receivables
EENGREE and other assets
— g - normal** 442,823 - - - 442,823
BEAEFR Pledged deposits
- REH - Not yet past due 144,548 - - - 144,548
BeEREELSEY  Cash and cash equivalents
- REH - Not yet past due 4,604,041 - - - 4,604,041
5,549,302 - - 400,941 5,950,243
e R AEZEBERD 3 For financial assets included in trade receivables to which the Group
SHEEME ' A%H applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based
REBBRETFER on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 24 to the financial
B REREEENE statements.
FER B 75 R 3R P 7 24 88
%o
i st ATEATRRIE ~ Bty **  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
ERERREAMEE R other receivables and other assets and notes receivable is considered
BREBEHNESREEL to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
KEf - AREENR information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
TZELMEENEER increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
[B B B ¥ 4R TE R LA PR A quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

ZEm AEERER
WARAEIERE] - B A
ZEETRMEENRERE
RWARAE[ATE] -
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FEORDE S EIRIERS
RABE - REBBEREH
MR UREBEED
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RZBZ—F+ZA=+—
H A"&EEEBRDHEE
F 58 A R #5,239,620,000
T BRERSRESEED
A B #5,682,425,000 7T °
RAAREFERTEER
A AEEBBRBORE
BoEE -

AEBRFRREBED TR
MBEFBEFEZERARD

BE - T -+ _-_A=+—HBItFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

() FEItEAE (0

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash.

The Group maintains sufficient cash balances to provide flexibility
in meeting its day to day funding requirements.

The Group had net current assets of RMB5,239,620,000 which
included cash and cash equivalents of RMB5,682,425,000 as
at 31 December 2021. The executive directors of the board of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group maintains an
adequate liquidity reserve.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the year based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

BRI follows:
DPR—F 125%F BIBSF BEt
Less than
1 year 1to 5years Over 5 years Total
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R=ZZB=-Z-—F+=A=+—H At31December 2021
Z 5 Rk E M ER R Trade and other payables 1,890,539 = = 1,890,539
MEARRNOHERAE Redemption liabilities on
a subsidiary’s shares - 1,662,783 - 1,662,783
HEARE Lease liabilities 5,193 30,189 1,274 36,656
H & 5K Other borrowings - - 31,530 31,530
FFERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 200,000 327,324 485,892 1,013,216
2,095,732 2,020,296 518,696 4,634,724
R-_ZT-ZTF+_-F=+—H At31 December 2020
B 5 & H AR K Trade and other payables 1,766,019 = = 1,766,019
HEEBR Lease liabilities 1,441 2,510 - 3,951
H At & 3R Other borrowings 4,000 - 28,000 32,000
STEBEITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 387,930 199,980 131,193 719,103
2,159,390 202,490 159,193 2,521,073
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43. I EBER @)
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

43.2 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.

The Group monitors capital using a debt to capital ratio, which is a
percentage of borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company. Borrowings includes bank loans and other borrowings.
The debt to capital ratio as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

™

R+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—EZ—F —E-TF
2021 2020
AR®ETT ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
H it & 2 (K E29) Other borrowings (note 29) 31,530 32,000
BT EERIT A (P 7E33) Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 33) 1,013,216 719,103
1,044,746 751,103
NEHER ANEEER Equity attributable to owners of the parent 8,284,148 9,190,342
BEEBEARLEX Debt to capital ratio 12.6% 82%

44, REWEEE

RRAFE S FARBME QB EFN
EPHRBRNIER EBRFFIZAME
wEM(THRZESF]) - BAT > RARE
ERAHRTENERNERTRAND
62.39% ° AN EHE D IF - AR FHEH
TEMFOREEERD  LARDHF R
EHERE AR RDEEERFTE
YR IR AR IR -

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company intended to spin off the shares of Xuanzhu Biopharm, a
subsidiary of the Company, for listing (the “Proposed Spin-off”) on the STAR
Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Currently, the Company directly holds
approximately 62.39% of the total issued share capital of Xuanzhu Biopharm.
As a result of the Proposed Spin-off, the Company’s interests in Xuanzhu
Biopharm will be reduced, and the Company will remain as the controlling
shareholder of Xuanzhu Biopharm after the completion of the spin-off and
listing.
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45, XD T BB AR R &R 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
R+=BA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E_—F ZETF
2021 2020
P =E AR®T T ARBT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=93 ASSETS
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BEREZHE Property, plant and equipment 8 10
TREEE Right-of-use assets 2,185 3,423
R BRRIMNIEKE Investments in subsidiaries 19 227,120 213,081
229,313 216,514
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
H b fE Y BR K Other receivables 100 187
NGRS Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,623,038 7,730,024
HERBLZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 252,246 444,831
7,875,384 8,175,042
HEE TOTAL ASSETS 8,104,697 8,391,556
s EQUITY
& 7 Share capital 77,058 78,186
&% 17 ' (B Share premium 3,882,304 4,084,846
=R =0) Reserves (i) 49,518 28,655
IR 88 & F(i) Retained earnings (i) 4,008,110 4,159,493
mER TOTAL EQUITY 8,016,990 8,351,180
=R LIABILITIES
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEalE Lease liabilities 2,332 3,569
E b & BR K Other payables 85,375 36,807
wmes TOTAL LIABILITIES 87,707 40,376
EzRkaEAE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,104,697 8,391,556
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45. KD B B RN Tk 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
() ARAAFELRBAEMNBEZMN () A summary of the Company's reserves and retained earnings is as
T follows:
g n BEREH
F A EE
Share-based Hibf# & REEF
payment Other Retained
reserve reserve earnings
AR%FR AR¥TT AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE=-ZEF—H—H At 1 January 2020 - 22,608 5,612,504
FEEE Loss for the year - - (33,159)
EERMDEEE Employee share award scheme
-BERKER — value of employee services 6,047 - -
iR (FifRE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (1,419,852)

RZZEZTF+_A=+—8BK At 31 December 2020 and

—FE-—F—A—H 1 January 2021 6,047 22,608 4,159,493
FEEE Loss for the year - - (28,329)
EB R EEEE Employee share award scheme

-EERBER — value of employee services 20,863 = =
B S (K EE12) Dividend (note 12) - - (123,054)
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 26,910 22,608 4,008,110
46. #t & B % 3R &R 46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZFZZF=ZAZ+NA  HBHRE The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board
MEESHAERRERD - of directors on 29 March 2022.
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